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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)
X  ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011
OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-33264

U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Chaer)

Delaware 68-0623433
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)

16941 Keegan Avenue, Carson, CA 90746
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code(310) 735-0085

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dlfie Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, $0.001 par value per st The NASDAQ Stock Market LL(
(NASDAQ Global Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢tie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405co8#turities Act. Yes™ No x
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®acl5(d) of the Act. Yes™ No x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @b filed all reports required to be filed by Sewti® or 15(d) of the Securities Excha
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordioch shorter period that the registrant was redquodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastig9s. Yesx No ~

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lisntted electronically and posted on its corpo¥absite, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted fumtsto Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of dtiapter) during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). Yes No ~

Indicate by a check mark if disclosure of delinguars pursuant to ltem 405 of Regulation S-Ka contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledgealdfinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part IIl of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-I.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer, or a smaller

reporting company. See the definitions of “largeederated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “small@porting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated file ~ Accelerated file X

Non-accelerated file "~ (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar



Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 2Rb-Yes © No X

The aggregate market value of the common stocktheltbn-affiliates of the registrant as of July2@,11 was approximately
$112,924,090 (based on the closing sales priceeofdgistrant’'s common stock on that date). Foptirposes of this calculation, shares owned
by officers, directors and 10% stockholders knowthe registrant have been deemed to be ownedibsitas. This determination of affiliate
status is not necessarily a conclusive determindtio other purposes.

As of March 19, 2012, there were 30,645,764 shafréise registrant's common stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of our proxy statement for the 2012 Anriakting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement’§ mrcorporated by reference in
Part 11l hereof. Except with respect to informatgpecifically incorporated by reference in thisfAdk0-K, the Proxy Statement is not deemed

to be filed as a part hereof.




Table of Contents

Iltem 1.
Item 1A
Item 1B
Iltem 2.
Item 3.
Item 4.

Iltem 5.
Iltem 6.
Item 7.
Item 7A
Iltem 8.
Iltem 9.
Item 9A
Item 9B

Item 10.
Item 11.
Iltem 12.
Item 13.
Item 14.

Item 15.

U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC.
ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART |
Business
Risk Factors
Unresolved Staff Commen
Properties
Legal Proceeding
Mine Safety Disclosure

PART I

Market for Registra’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters asddsPurchases of Equity Securit
Selected Financial Da

Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatior

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk

Financial Statements and Supplementary |

Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants @oying and Financial Disclosu

Controls and Procedur:

Other Informatior

PART Il

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govaoa

Executive Compensatic

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dahagement and Related Stockholder Mal
Certain Relationships and Related TransactionsPargttor Independenc

Principal Accounting Fees and Servi

PART IV

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedt

44
44
44
44

45

Unless the context requires otherwise, as usdusmreport, the terms “U.S. Auto Parts,” the “Comypa “we,” “us” and “our” refer to U.S.
Auto Parts Network, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

U.S. Auto Part® , U.S. Auto Parts Network™, PaéT® , Partsbin™, Kool-Vue™, Auto-Vend™, JC Whitreyand Stylintruck§™ |
amongst others, are our United States tradematksthfer trademarks and trade names appearingsnébort are the property of their

respective owner:
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statements included in this report, other thi@tements or characterizations of historical orremt fact, are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A o$twurities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Secsriiet”) and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended “Exchange Act”), and we intend that such forwaraking statements be subject to the safe harbors
created thereby. Any forward-looking statementtuithed herein are based on management’s beliefsaaadmptions and on information
currently available to management. We have attedjatédentify forward-looking statements by termshsas “anticipates,” “believes,”
“could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “shou Id,” “will,” “would”, “will likely
continue,” “will likely result” and variations of hese words or similar expressions. These forwaoltiftg statements include, but are not
limited to, statements regarding future events,fature operating and financial results, financedpectations, expected growth and strategies,
current business indicators, capital needs, capigloyment, liquidity, contracts, litigation, pract offerings, customers, acquisitions,
competition and the status of our facilities. Forddooking statements, no matter where they oceuhis document or in other statements
attributable to the Company involve known and umkmeisks, uncertainties and other factors that mayse our actual results, performance
or achievements to be materially different from &rtyre results, performances or achievements esgee or implied by the forward-looking
statements. We discuss many of these risks inegréatail under the heading “Risk Factors” in Pdrtitem 1A of this report. Given these
uncertainties, you should not place undue reliaoeehese forward-looking statements. You should this report and the documents that we
reference in this report and have filed as exhititthe report completely and with the understagdhmat our actual future results may be
materially different from what we expect. Alsoward-looking statements represent our managemésetisfs and assumptions only as of the
date of this report. Except as required by law,agsume no obligation to update these forward-loglsitmtements publicly, or to update the
reasons actual results could differ materially frémose anticipated in these forward-looking statetseeven if new information becomes
available in the future.

” o LI " ou ”ou ” ” o ” o ” i, ” i,

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are one of the leading online sources for autwmaftermarket parts and repair information. ®ision is that vehicle owners never
overpay for service and repair. Our mission isd¢dhe service and repair advocate for vehicle ogyrterincrease their confidence in the repair
process, and to provide the most affordable ogdtotheir service and repair needs.

We principally sell our products, identified asadtdkeeping units (“SKUs"), to individual consuméisough our network of websites and
online marketplaces. Our user-friendly websites/jol® customers with a comprehensive selection pf@pmately 2 million SKUs with
detailed product descriptions and photographs. #e lileveloped a proprietary product database tapsmur SKUs to product applications
based on vehicle makes, models and years.

Our online sales channel and relationships wittpBers enable us to eliminate several intermedsarnehe traditional auto parts supply
chain and offer a broad selection of SKUs. Addiin as an online retailer, we believe greatemecoies of scale can be achieved online than
in brick and mortar stores.

We were incorporated in Delaware in 1995 as ailigior of aftermarket auto parts and launched wat Website in 2000. Since then, we
have continued to expand our online operationseaging the number of SKUs sold through our e-corneneetwork, adding additional
websites, improving our internet marketing proficig, and commencing sales on online marketplaceSctober 2008, we acquired
AutoMD.com for the purpose of developing conterd aruser community to educate consumers on maimterend service of their vehicles.

In August 2010, we acquired all of the issued amtanding shares of Automotive Specialty Accegsoaind Parts, Inc. and its wholly-
owned subsidiary Whitney Automotive Group, Incféreed to herein as “WAG”), at the time, the natoleading catalog and internet direct
marketer of automotive aftermarket performancespant accessories. This acquisition has expandegroduct line into all terrain vehicles,
recreational vehicles and motorcycles, as wellrasiged us deep product knowledge into niche segsride Jeep, Volkswagen and trucks.
The expansion of our product line increases ouitalbd reach customers in the do-it-yourself (“D)Yautomobile and off-road accessories
market. Our flagship websites are locatednatv.autopartswarehouse.cgmww.partstrain.com www.jcwhitney.comwww.stylintrucks.com
and www.AutoMD.corand our corporate website is locatedvatw.usautoparts.net
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Our Products

We offer a broad selection of aftermarket autogaste frequently refine our product offering byragducing new merchandise and
updating the existing product selection to offen@ae complete and relevant product line and to remow-selling or obsolete SKUs. We
broadly classify our products into three categotiesly parts, engine parts, and performance patdsiacessories.

Body Parts The body parts category is primarily comprisegaits for the exterior of an automobile. Our partthis category are
typically replacement parts for original body pattat have been damaged as a result of a coll@itmrough general wear and tear. The
majority of these products are sold through oursitek. In addition, we sell an extensive line ofrori products, including our own private-
label brand called Kool-Vue™, which are marketed aold as aftermarket replacement parts and asdegito existing parts.

Engine/Hard Parts The engine parts category is comprised of engimeponents and other mechanical and electricas pattich are
often referred to as hard parts. These parts sexveplacement parts for existing engine partsaaadenerally used by professionals and do-it-
yourselfers for engine and mechanical maintenandeepair.

Performance Parts and Accessorid&/e offer performance versions of many parts sokhch of the above categories. Performance
and accessories generally consist of parts thatrerhthe performance of the automobile, upgradstiegifunctionality of a specific part or
improve the physical appearance or comfort of thteraobile.

Our Sales Channels
Our sales channels include the online channel lamdffline channel.

Online Sales ChannelOur online sales channel consists of our e-coroeneinannel, online marketplaces and online adimgti©ur e-
commerce channel includes a network of e-commegdwsites, supported by our call-center sales agéfesalso sell our products through
online marketplaces, including third-party auctsites and shopping portals, which provide us witteas to additional consumer segments.
The majority of our online sales are to individuahsumers. We sell online advertising and spongogsisitions on our e-commerce websites
to highlight vendor brands and offer complementagducts and services that benefit our custometseising is targeted to specific sections
of the websites and can also be targeted to spersérs based on the vehicles they drive. Advedipartners primarily include part vendors,
national automotive aftermarket brands, and autdleatanufacturers.

Offline Sales ChannelWe sell and deliver to collision repair shopotilghout Southern California and the state of Viegiria our offline
sales channel. We also market our Kool-Vue™ praginationwide to auto parts wholesale distributoid serve consumers by operating retalil
outlet stores in Independence, Ohio and LaSallrois.

Our Fulfillment Operations

We fulfill customer orders using two primary metkod) stock-and-ship, where we take physical @ginof merchandise and store it in
one of our distribution centers until it is shipgeda customer, and (ii) drop-ship, where merchesd shipped directly to customers from our
suppliers. We believe that the flexibility of fulfing orders using two different fulfillment methsallows us to offer a broader product
selection, helps optimize product inventory andagrdes our overall business profitability.

The selection of fulfilment methodology occurdfa time of order submission. When a customer stgoam order, our fulfillment syste
performs a check on the ordered item to deternfiitésiin stock at any of our distribution centeFalfillment teams in our distribution centers
then process orders for in-stock products. Ordaradn-stocked products are sent to our supplizigpaocessed via drop-ship.

Stock-and-Ship FulfillmentOur stock-andship products are sourced primarily from manufaatuand other suppliers located in Asia
in the U.S. and are stored in one of our distrdoutenters in Carson, California; Chesapeake, MaglLaSalle, Illinois; and Independence,
Ohio. All products received into our distributioanters are entered into our inventory managemestes)s, allowing us to closely monitor
inventory availability. We consider a number ofttas in determining which items to stock in ourtdimution centers, including which produ
can be purchased at a meaningful discount to dacrstes for similar items, which products havstbiically sold in high volumes, and wh
products may be out of stock when we attempt tillfula drop-ship.

Drop-Ship Fulfillment We have developed relationships with several-ba8ed automobile parts distributors that opetatg bwn
distribution centers and will deliver products ditg to our customers. We internally developed@ppietary distributor selection system, Auto-
Vend™, which allows us to electronically select tiplé vendors for a given order. Auto-Vend™ wilteahpt to first direct an order to one of
our warehouses. If the product is not in stock,0Adend™ will process the order to the next apprerivendor based on customer location,
contractual agreements, and service level history.
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Suppliers

We source our products from foreign manufacturacsimporters located in Taiwan and China, and fkdu®. manufacturers and
distributors. We drop-ship orders for low demanddorcts manufactured in the U.S. directly from oanirfacturers and distributors. We
generally place large-volume orders with these Begpand, as a result, may receive volume dissantcertain ordered products. Our
domestic suppliers offer direct-to-customer shigpellowing us to save on fulfillment costs andeofd broader selection of products. We have
developed application programming interfaces withesal of these suppliers that allow us to eledtadly transmit orders and check inventory
availability. We are a significant customer for manf our drop-ship vendors and have long standétgtionships and contracts with many of
these suppliers. For the fiscal year ended DeceBhe2011, two of our drop-ship vendors provided’¥8of our total product purchases.

Marketing

Our online marketing efforts are designed to attvégitors to our websites, convert visitors intarghasing customers and encourage
repeat purchases among our existing customer Was@se a variety of online marketing methods t@aettvisitors, including paid search
advertising, search engine optimization, affiliptegrams, e-mail marketing and inclusion in onh@pping engines. To convert visitors into
paying customers, we periodically run in-site praéiomes for discounted purchases. We seek to creass<selling opportunities by displaying
complementary and related products available fier theiloughout the purchasing process. We utilizess marketing techniques, including
targeted e-mails about specific vehicle promotidosncrease customer awareness of our products.

International Operations

In April 2007, we established offshore operatiamghie Philippines. Our offshore operations allowaiaccess a workforce with the
necessary technical skills at a significantly lowest than comparably experienced U.S.-based miofeals. Our offshore operations are
responsible for a majority of our website developimeatalog management, and back office suppont.ofishore operations also house our
main call center. We have 1,005 employees in thigppimes.

In addition to our operations in the Philippineg ave a Canadian subsidiary to facilitate salesioproducts in Canada; the subsidiary
has no distribution center or employees. We alfo érts directly to Canada and elsewhere througth@uworld through a freight forwarding
partner. In 2011, we shipped auto parts to overdii€rent countries.

Competition

The auto repair information and parts industryospetitive and highly fragmented, with productgritisited through multi-tiered and
overlapping channels. We compete with both onlime @ffline retailers who offer original equipmenanufacturer (“OEM”) and aftermarket
parts to either the DIY or do-it-for-me (“DIFM”) stomer segments. Current or potential competitariside the following:

. national auto parts retailers such as Advance Ratts, AutoZone, Napa Auto Parts, CarQue’Reilly Automotive and Pep Boy
. large online marketplaces such as Amazon.com dlaissen eBay

. other online retailers and auto repair informatieebsites

. local independent retailers or niche auto partslest; anc

. wholesale aftermarket auto parts distributors sagchKQ Corporation

We believe the principal competitive factors in ouairket are helping customers easily find theitgaducating consumers on the set
and maintenance of their vehicles, maintainingappetary product catalog that maps individual p#otrelevant vehicle applications, broad
product selection and availability, price, knowledgle customer service, and rapid order fulfillmemd delivery. We believe we compete
favorably on the basis of these factors. Howevamesof our competitors may be larger, have strobggemnd recognition or may have access to
greater financial, technical and marketing resaiarenave been operating longer than we have.

Government Regulation

We are subject to federal and state conspnagection laws, including laws protecting thé/pcy of customer non-public information and
the handling of customer complaints and regulatfmosibiting unfair and deceptive trade practicdse growth and demand for online
commerce has and may continue to result in moirgsint consumer protection laws that impose aduiicompliance burdens on online
companies. These laws may cover issues such aprisaey, spyware and the tracking of consumeniigs, marketing e-mails and
communications, other advertising and promotiomatfices, money transfers, pricing, content andityuaf products and services, taxation,
electronic contracts and other communications afatrnation security. In addition, most states hpassed laws that prohibit or limit the us
aftermarket auto parts in collision repair work amdequire enhanced disclosure or vehicle ownasent before using aftermarket auto par
such repair work and additional legislation of tkisd may be introduced in the future.
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There is also great uncertainty over whether or bristing laws governing issues such as propertyeoghip, sales and other taxes,
auctions, libel and personal privacy apply to thteinet and commercial online services. These sssway take years to resolve. For example,
tax authorities in a number of states, as well @prgressional advisory commission, are curremlyewing the appropriate tax treatment of
companies engaged in online commerce, and newtatategulations may subject us to additional states and income taxes. New legislation
or regulation, the application of laws and reguolasi from jurisdictions whose laws do not curremibply to our business or the application of
existing laws and regulations to the Internet ammmercial online services could result in significadditional taxes or regulatory restrictions
on our business. These taxes or restrictions duaNe an adverse effect on our cash flows and sesfitiperations. Furthermore, there is a
possibility that we may be subject to significanek or other payments for any past failures toglgmwith these requirements.

Environmental

We are subject to environmental regulation asféica$ certain of the products we sell. For insta@adifornia currently only allows
catalytic converters approved by the state to l#sithin the state and, during 2010 and early 2@hé Company met with the California Air
Resources Board (“CARB”) to discuss alleged safestalytic converters into California by the Compand third-party suppliers that are not
compliant with California regulations. CARB inforeh¢he Company that penalties shall be assessedegtrd to any non-compliant sales. On
October 26, 2011, the Company and CARB enteredargettiement agreement related to this inquinth@it admitting any liability, the
Company agreed to pay a non-material cash persaibject to being offset by contributions from samfithe Company’s third-party suppliers,
in exchange for a release from CARB of the Compamy such third-party suppliers. There has beendination that other states may be
pursuing the enactment of similar regulations.ddigion, if we expanded our product lines, we mayshbject to additional environmental
regulation.

Seasonality

We believe our business is subject to seasonalfitions. We have historically experienced higlees of body parts in winter months
when inclement weather and hazardous road conditigrically result in more automobile collisionsidine parts and performance parts and
accessories have historically experienced highessa the summer months when consumers have rimoeetd undertake elective projects to
maintain and enhance the performance of their aoibiles and the warmer weather during that timeigdaicive for such projects. We expect
the historical seasonality trends to continue teehematerial impact on our financial condition aesults of operations in subsequent periods.

Employees

As of December 31, 2011, we had 516 employeesittiited States and 1,005 employees in the Philggpfor a total of 1,521
employees. None of our employees are representaddiyor union, and we have never experienced & stoppage.

Available Information

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reportd~=orm 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and almemts to those reports are
available free of charge on the Investor Relatsetgion of our corporate website locategvetw.usautoparts.nets soon as reasonably
practicable after such reports are electronicdlbgfwith, or furnished to, the Securities and Eaefje Commission (“SEC”). The inclusion of
our website address in this report does not incbrdacorporate by reference into this report arfgimation on our website.

4



Table of Contents

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business is subject to a number of risks whrehdiscussed below. Other risks are presentedublsee in this report and in the
information incorporated by reference into this oep You should consider carefully the followingks in addition to the other information
contained in this report and our other filings witle SEC, including our subsequent reports on Fat€ and 8-K, and any amendments
thereto, before deciding to buy, sell or hold oamenon stock. If any of these known or unknown dskscertainties actually occurs with
material adverse effects on us, our business, filahiondition, results of operations and/or ligitidcould be seriously harmed. In that event,
the market price for our common stock will likegctine and you may lose all or part of your invesimn

Risks Related To Our Business

Purchasers of aftermarket auto parts may not choaseshop online, which would prevent us from acqmig new customers who ai
necessary to the growth of our business.

The online market for aftermarket auto parts is dsveloped than the online market for many otheiness and consumer products, and
currently represents only a small part. Our sucegslepend in part on our ability to attract newstomers and to convert customers who |
historically purchased auto parts through traddloetail and wholesale operations. Furthermoremag have to incur significantly higher and
more sustained advertising and marketing experaditar may need to price our products more comypeljtthan we currently anticipate in
order to attract additional online consumers anm/ed them into purchasing customers. Specificdi@cthat could prevent prospective
customers from purchasing from us include:

. concerns about buying auto parts without -to-face interaction with sales personr

. the inability to physically handle, examine and game products

. delivery time associated with Internet orde

. concerns about the security of online transactansthe privacy of personal informatic
. delayed shipments or shipments of incorrect or dgdgroducts

. increased shipping costs; a

. the inconvenience associated with returning or arging items purchased onlir

If the online market for auto parts does not gaidespread acceptance, our sales may decline artzlsimess and financial results may
suffer.

We depend on search engines and other online sositceattract visitors to our websites, and if weeamable to attract these visitors and
convert them into customers in a cost-effective man, our business and results of operations will barmed.

Our success depends on our ability to attract erdomsumers to our websites and convert them irgtbomers in a cost-effective manner.
We are significantly dependent upon search engsteqping comparison sites and other online sodoresur website traffic. We are includ
in search results as a result of both paid seé#stthds, where we purchase specific search teratsathl result in the inclusion of our listing,
and algorithmic searches that depend upon thelssaleccontent on our sites. Algorithmic listingsieat be purchased and instead are
determined and displayed solely by a set of forsuldlized by the search engine. Search enginegpshg comparison sites and other online
sources revise their algorithms from time to timeun attempt to optimize their search resultsné or more of the search engines, shopping
comparison sites or other online sources on whiehlrely for website traffic were to modify its geaemethodology for how it displays or
selects our websites, it could result in fewer comsrs clicking through to our websites, and ouafficial results could be adversely affected.
We operate a multiple website platform that gemgrdlows us to provide multiple search resultsdqguarticular algorithmic search. If the
search engines were to limit our display resulta gingle result or entirely eliminate our resiiitsn the algorithmic search, our website traffic
would significantly decrease and our business woeldnaterially harmed. If any free search enginghoipping comparison site on which we
rely begins charging fees for listing or placementf one or more of the search engines, shoppimgparison sites and other online sources on
which we rely for purchased listings, modifies @mbinates its relationship with us, our expensesdcise, we could lose customers and traffic
to our websites could decrease. In addition, oacess in attracting visitors who convert to custeweéll depend in part upon our ability to
identify and purchase relevant search terms, peorgtevant content on our sites, and effectivelgdbour other marketing programs such as e-
mail campaigns and affiliate programs. If we arahla to attract visitors to our websites and coneam to customers in a cost-effective
manner, then our sales may decline and our busaresfinancial results may be harmed.
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We may not be able to successfully acquire new besses or integrate acquisitions, which could caase business to suffer.

We may not be able to successfully complete pakstiategic acquisitions if we cannot reach agesdron acceptable terms or for other
reasons. If we buy a company or a division of apany, we may experience difficulty integrating thampany’s or division’s personnel and
operations, which could negatively affect our ofiataresults. In addition:

. the key personnel of the acquired company may eewid to work for us
. customers of the acquired company may decide nmtitchase products from
. we may experience business disruptions as a refsiltormation technology systems conversic

. we may experience additional financial and accogntihallenges and complexities in areas such gslaaxing, treasur
management, and financial reportil

. we may be held liable for environmental, tax oresthisks and liabilities as a result of our acdigsis, some of which we may n
have discovered during our due diligen

. we may intentionally assume the liabilities of twmpanies we acquire, which could materially anceaskly affect our busines
. our ongoing business may be disrupted or recemgfficient management attentic

. we may not be able to realize the cost savingst@rdinancial benefits or synergies we anticipatgther in the amount or in the
time frame that we expect; a

. we may incur debt or issue equity securities tofpayny future acquisition, the issuance of whiclild involve the imposition of
restrictive covenants or be dilutive to our exigtstockholders

As part of our growth strategy, we acquired WAGAugust 12, 2010 and we expect that we will seletyiypursue additional
acquisitions of businesses, technologies or sesviterder to expand our capabilities, enter newketa or increase our market share. In
conjunction with the acquisition of WAG, we recodde significant valuation allowance against ouredefd tax asset, and have incurred gre
than usual legal and accounting fees, as well asrgeand administrative expenses. Additionallgause the acquisition of WAG was a stock
purchase, we may incur liability for acts takeroptd our acquisition that may involve costly latipn. Integrating any newly acquired
businesses’ websites, technologies or servicelealy lto be expensive and time consuming. For examqur acquisition of All OEM Parts,
Inc., Partshin.com, Inc., and other affiliated camigs (collectively “Partsbin”), resulted in sigo#dnt costs, including a material impairment
charge, a write-down of goodwill associated with #tquisition, and a number of challenges, inclydataining employees of the acquired
company, integrating our order processing and tpgdcessing, integrating our product pricing ®gst and integrating the diverse
technologies and differing e-commerce platforms arwbunting systems used by each company. Ouraiteq activities in connection with
our acquisitions have also caused a substantiafgion of our managemestattention. If we are unable to successfully cetgpthe integratic
of acquisitions, we may not realize the anticipatgdergies from such acquisitions, we may take impent charges and write-downs
associated with such acquisitions, and our busiaedsesults of operations could suffer. In conipactvith the acquisition of WAG, during
fiscal 2011, we incurred acquisition and integnatielated costs of $7.4 million and recorded a cash impairment charge on certain trade
name intangible assets totaling $5.1 million (§¢ete 6- Goodwill and Intangiblesbf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemerdisidlec
in Part 1V, Item 15 of this report).

Our operations are restricted by our credit facifit

Our credit facility includes a number of restrigtiscovenants. These covenants could impair our dingrand operational flexibility and
make it difficult for us to react to market condits and satisfy our ongoing capital needs and igipated cash requirements. Specifically,
such covenants restrict our ability and, if ap@ieathe ability of our subsidiaries to, among otfngs:

. incur additional debt

. make certain investments and acquisitic

. enter into certain types of transactions with &fés;

. use assets as security in other transact

. pay dividends on our capital stock or repurchasesquity interests
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. sell certain assets or merge with or into other games;
. guarantee the debts of othe

. enter into new lines of busine:

. pay or amend our subordinated de

. form any joint ventures or subsidiary investme

In addition, our current credit facility requires to satisfy certain financial covenants. Thesarfaial covenants and tests could limit our
ability to react to market conditions or satisfyranrdinary capital needs and could otherwiseicsiur financing and operations.

Our ability to comply with the covenants and ottegms of our debt obligations will depend on ouufe operating performance. If we
fail to comply with such covenants and terms, weilddoe required to obtain waivers from our lendermaintain compliance with our debt
obligations. As of January 1, 2011 and Octobei01,12in connection with our credit facility, ourrsmlidated fixed charge coverage ratio was
lower than the ratio required by the covenanth@ndredit facility. In February 2011 and Octobet POwe and Silicon Valley Bank (“Bank”)
entered into Amendment No. 1 and Amendment Noeshectively, to Loan and Security Agreement anditeidnWaiver (collectively, the
“Amendments”). The Amendments waived our lack ahptiance with the consolidated fixed charge covenagio covenant in the loan
agreement as of January 1, 2011 and Octoberl, ZBElAmendments also amended the definition of ‘@tidated EBITDA” (Earnings
Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortmgtio more readily accommodate our integratiothefWAG acquisition. In December
2011, the Company and the Bank entered into Amendie. 3 to Loan and Security Agreement in conmectvith a vendor purchasing card
program with J.P Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. During 8ha?2012, the Company determined it was probabletiigaconsolidated fixed charge
coverage ratio would not be in compliance with idguired minimum level for the quarter ending MaBdh 2012. This determination was
made during the Company’s monitoring of their caugts, which includes monthly calculations of “Cdidated EBITDA” projected to quart:
end. As a result, on March 23, 2012, the Compauytla@ Bank entered into Amendment No. 4 to Loan3&clrity Agreement (the “Fourth
Amendment”). The Fourth Amendment reduced the requionsolidated fixed charge coverage ratio &vallwe are projected to be in
compliance with as of March 31, 2012. In the futifrgve are unable to obtain any necessary waigrdsthe debt is accelerated, a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and fataperating performance would result. Additionatlyr indebtedness could have important
consequences, including the following:

. we will have to dedicate a portion of our cash flmamaking interest and principal payments on adebtedness, thereby reduc
the availability of our cash flow to fund workingmital, capital expenditures, acquisitions or othgmeral corporate purpos:

. certain levels of indebtedness may make us lesctite to potential acquirers or acquisition tasg

. certain levels of indebtedness may limit our flélit§pto adjust to changing business and markedittons, and make us mo
vulnerable to downturns in general economic cood#ias compared to competitors that may be lessdged; an

. as described in more detail above, the documentsding for our indebtedness contain restrictiveermants that may limit our
financing and operational flexibility

Furthermore, our ability to satisfy our debt seevibligations will depend, among other things, uffoctuations in interest rates, our
future operating performance and ability to reficemdebtedness when and if necessary. Thesedai#pend partly on economic, financial,
competitive and other factors beyond our controd May not be able to generate sufficient cash fsperations to meet our debt service
obligations as well as fund necessary capital edip@res and general operating expenses. In addifiare need to refinance our debt, or obr
additional financing or sell assets or equity tiiséaour debt service obligations, we may not bkedo do so on commercially reasonable
terms, if at all.

If we are unable to manage the challenges assodatéth our international operations, the growth afur business could be limited and o
business could suffer.

We maintain international business operations énRhilippines. This international operation inclsdievelopment and maintenance of
our websites, Internet marketing personnel, anessahd customer support services. We also opef@émadian subsidiary to facilitate sales in
Canada. We are subject to a number of risks aniteolgas that specifically relate to our internaibaperations. Our international operations
may not be successful if we are unable to meebaaccome these challenges, which could limit theaglh of our business and may have an
adverse effect on our business and operating sediiiese risks and challenges include:

. the amount and timing of operating costs and ch@ipenditures relating to the maintenance andresipa of our busines
operations and infrastructut

. difficulties and costs of staffing and managingefgn operations
. restrictions imposed by local labor practices awasl on our business and operatic
. exposure to different business practices and ketgaldards
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. unexpected changes in regulatory requirems

. the imposition of government controls and restitsi

. political, social and economic instability and tiek of war, terrorist activities or other interiwatal incidents

. the failure of telecommunications and connectiirfiyastructure

. natural disasters and public health emergen

. potentially adverse tax consequenc

. the failure of local laws to provide a sufficierdgitee of protection against infringement of oueliettual property; an
. fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates ratative weakness in the U.S. doll

We are dependent upon relationships with supplierdraiwan, China and the United States for the vasgjority of our products.

We acquire substantially all of our products frormmuafacturers and distributors located in Taiwann€land the United States. Our top
ten suppliers represented approximately 41% otatat product purchases during the fifty-two weeksled December 31, 2011 (“fiscal
2011"). We do not have any long-term contractsxafuesive agreements with our foreign suppliers thatild ensure our ability to acquire the
types and quantities of products we desire at dab&pprices and in a timely manner. In additiam, ability to acquire products from our
suppliers in amounts and on terms acceptable i® despendent upon a number of factors that codiettbur suppliers and which are beyond
our control. For example, financial or operatiodifficulties that some of our suppliers may faceldoresult in an increase in the cost of the
products we purchase from them. In addition, tleeeasing consolidation among auto parts supplieng disrupt or end our relationship with
some suppliers, result in product shortages aneéal to less competition and, consequently, highiees.

In addition, because many of our suppliers areideitsf the United States, additional factors caotdrrupt our relationships or affect our
ability to acquire the necessary products on aetdpterms, including:

. political, social and economic instability and tirek of war or other international incidents in Agir abroad
. fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates thay increase our cost of produc

. tariffs and protectionist laws and business prastitat favor local business:

. difficulties in complying with import and exportie, regulatory requirements and restrictions;

. natural disasters and public health emergen

If we do not maintain our relationships with ouisting suppliers or develop relationships with revppliers on acceptable commercial
terms, we may not be able to continue to offercatirselection of merchandise at competitive praceh as a result, we could lose customers
and our sales could decline.

We are dependent upon third parties for distributi@nd fulfillment operations with respect to many our products.

For a number of the products that we sell, we autsothe distribution and fulfillment operation aax@é dependent on our distributors to
manage inventory, process orders and distributsetipooducts to our customers in a timely mannarfiseal 2011, our product purchases fr
two drop-ship suppliers represented 18.7% of otal froduct purchases. If we do not maintain ousteng relationships with these suppliers
and our other distributors on acceptable commeteiais, we will need to obtain other suppliers aray not be able to continue to offer a
broad selection of merchandise at competitive priaed our sales may decrease.

In addition, because we outsource to distributararaber of these traditional retail functions rigigtto those products, we have limited
control over how and when orders are fulfilled. ®eo have limited control over the products thatdistributors purchase or keep in stock.
Our distributors may not accurately forecast trapcts that will be in high demand or they maycdte popular products to other resellers,
resulting in the unavailability of certain produéts delivery to our customers. Any inability tofef a broad array of products at competitive
prices and any failure to deliver those productsuocustomers in a timely and accurate manneraaayage our reputation and brand and
could cause us to lose customers.
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We depend on third-party delivery services to daligur products to our customers on a timely anchs@stent basis, and any deterioration in
our relationship with any one of these third partier increases in the fees that they charge couédrh our reputation and adversely affect
our business and financial condition.

We rely on third parties for the shipment of oungurcts and we cannot be sure that these relatimghil continue on terms favorable to
us, or at all. Shipping costs have increased fiom to time, and may continue to increase, whialiccbarm our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations by increasingamsts of doing business and resulting in redgeeds margins. In addition, if our
relationships with these third parties are tern@dair impaired, or if these third parties are uadbldeliver products for us, whether due to
labor shortage, slow down or stoppage, deterigydtirancial or business condition, responses totist attacks or for any other reason, we
would be required to use alternative carrierslierghipment of products to our customers. Changamgers could have a negative effect on
business and operating results due to reducedlitistif order status and package tracking and yiela order processing and product delivery,
and we may be unable to engage alternative caoieestimely basis, upon terms favorable to ustatl.

If commaodity prices such as fuel, plastic and steehtinue to increase, our margins may shrin

Our third party delivery services have increasedl $urcharges from time to time, and such increasgatively impact our margins, as
we are generally unable to pass all of these diststly to consumers. Increasing prices in the ponent materials for the parts we sell may
impact the availability, the quality and the prafeour products, as suppliers search for altereatie existing materials and as they increase the
prices they charge. We cannot ensure that we cavee all the increased costs through price in@gaand our suppliers may not continue to
provide the consistent quality of product as theyrsubstitute lower cost materials to maintainipgdevels, all of which may have a negative
impact on our business and results of operations.

If our fulfillment operations are interrupted for ay significant period of time or are not sufficierib accommodate increased demand, «
sales would decline and our reputation could be hed.

Our success depends on our ability to succesgfetlgive and fulfill orders and to promptly delivarr products to our customers. The
majority of orders for our auto body parts prodwts filled from our inventory in our distributiaenters, where all our inventory managen
packaging, labeling and product return processeparformed. Increased demand and other considesatiay require us to expand our
distribution centers or transfer our fulfillmentevptions to larger facilities in the future.

Our distribution centers are susceptible to danmageterruption from human error, fire, flood, pawess, telecommunications failures,
terrorist attacks, acts of war, break-ins, eartkgaand similar events. We do not currently mamkeick-up power systems at our fulfillment
centers. We do not presently have a formal disastavery plan and our business interruption instceanay be insufficient to compensate us
for losses that may occur in the event operatiosiafulfillment center are interrupted. Any intgptions in our fulfillment operations for any
significant period of time, including interruptionssulting from the expansion of our existing fiigis or the transfer of operations to a new
facility, could damage our reputation and brand sunostantially harm our business and results ofadjpes and alternate arrangements may
increase the cost of fulfillment. In addition, ievdo not successfully expand our fulfillment cafiies in response to increases in demand, we
may not be able to substantially increase our aless

We rely on bandwidth and data center providers asttier third parties to provide products to our costers, and any failure or interruption
in the services provided by these third parties Icbdisrupt our business and cause us to lose cusosn

We rely on third-party vendors, including data egrstnd bandwidth providers. Any disruption in tlegwork access or co-location
services, which are the services that house anddadnternet access to our servers, provided bgehhird-party providers or any failure of
these third-party providers to handle current ghki volumes of use could significantly harm ousibass. Any financial or other difficulties
our providers face may have negative effects orbosimess, the nature and extent of which we cgomealict. We exercise little control over
these third-party vendors, which increases ourenalbility to problems with the services they previtVe also license technology and related
databases from third parties to facilitate elemehtsur e-commerce platform. We have experiencebexipect to continue to experience
interruptions and delays in service and availabftir these elements. Any errors, failures, intptians or delays experienced in connection
with these third-party technologies could negativgipact our relationship with our customers andeaisely affect our business.

Our systems also heavily depend on the availahifitylectricity, which also comes from third-papgoviders. If we were to experience a
major power outage, we would have to rely on baglgenerators. These back-up generators may noategemoperly through a major power
outage, and their fuel supply could also be inadegduring a major power outage. Information systeath as ours may be disrupted by even
brief power outages, or by the fluctuations in povesulting from switches to and from backup getogsa This could disrupt our business and
cause us to lose customers.
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We face intense competition and operate in an inttyswith limited barriers to entry, and some of ogompetitors may have greater
resources than us and may be better positionedapitalize on the growing e-commerce auto parts metrk

The auto parts industry is competitive and higihdgfented, with products distributed through miigtied and overlapping channels. We
compete with both online and offline retailers wifter OEM and aftermarket auto parts to either®he or DIFM customer segments. Curre
or potential competitors include the following:

. national auto parts retailers such as Advance Ratts, AutoZone, Napa Auto Parts, CarQue’Reilly Automotive and Pep Boy
. large online marketplaces such as Amazon.com aagt;

. other online retailers and auto repair informatieebsites

. local independent retailers or niche auto part;entetailers; an

. wholesale aftermarket auto parts distributors aschKQ Corporation

Barriers to entry are low, and current and new oatitgrs can launch websites at a relatively lowt.celgny of our current and potential
offline competitors have longer operating historlasger customer bases, greater brand recogratidrsignificantly greater financial,
marketing, technical, management and other ressuihea we do. In addition, some of our competit@arge used and may continue to use
aggressive pricing tactics and devote substantiatiye financial resources to website and systereldpment than we do. We expect that
competition will further intensify in the future &sternet use and online commerce continue to growdwide. Increased competition may
result in reduced sales, lower operating margediced profitability, loss of market share and distied brand recognition.

We would also experience significant competitivegsure if any of our suppliers were to sell theddpicts directly to customers. Since
our suppliers have access to merchandise at vergdgts, they could sell products at lower priaed maintain higher gross margins on their
product sales than we can. In this event, our atiard potential customers may decide to purchisetly from these suppliers. Increased
competition from any supplier capable of maintagnimgh sales volumes and acquiring products atigsiees than us could significantly
reduce our market share and adversely impact nandial results.

If we falil to offer a broad selection of products aompetitive prices to meet our custon” demands, our revenue could decline.

In order to expand our business, we must succégsfifiér, on a continuous basis, a broad seleabioauto parts that meet the needs of
our customers. Our auto parts are used by consuoreasvariety of purposes, including repair, pemfiance, improved aesthetics and
functionality. In addition, to be successful, ouoguct offerings must be broad and deep in scaopapetitively priced, well-made, innovative
and attractive to a wide range of consumers. Weaasapredict with certainty that we will be succesdh offering products that meet all of
these requirements. If our product offerings faisatisfy our customers’ requirements or resporthemges in customer preferences, our
revenue could decline.

Challenges by OEMs to the validity of the aftermatkauto parts industry and claims of intellectuatgperty infringement could adversely
affect our business and the viability of the afteamket auto parts industry.

OEMs have attempted to use claims of intellectuaperty infringement against manufacturers andidigtors of aftermarket products to
restrict or eliminate the sale of aftermarket prdduhat are the subject of the claims. The OEM& laought such claims in federal court and
with the United States International Trade CommissiWe have received in the past, and we anticipatenay in the future receive,
communications alleging that certain products wkisginge the patents, copyrights, trademarks #ade names or other intellectual property
rights of OEMs or other third parties. For instarafeer approximately three and a half years afdiion and related costs and expenses, on
April 16, 2009, we entered into a settlement agesgmith Ford Motor Company and Ford Global Tecbgas, LLC that ended the two legal
actions that were initiated by Ford against usteeléo claims of intellectual property infringement

The United States Patent and Trademark Office dscimdicate that OEMs are seeking and obtainingerdesign patents then they have
in the past. To the extent that the OEMs are sséalesith intellectual property infringement claimse could be restricted or prohibited from
selling certain aftermarket products which coulgiéhan adverse effect on our business. Infringeraims could also result in increased costs
of doing business arising from increased legal egps, adverse judgments or settlements or chan@es business practices required to settle
such claims or satisfy any judgments. Litigatiomldaresult in interpretations of the law that reguis to change our business practices or
otherwise increase our costs and harm our busiésslo not maintain insurance coverage to covetythes of claims that could be asserte
a successful claim were brought against us, itcceMpose us to significant liability.
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If we are unable to protect our intellectual proptgrrights, our reputation and brand could be impaid and we could lose custome

We regard our trademarks, trade secrets and simikdtectual property such as our proprietary baokl order processing and fulfillment
code and process as important to our success. Werrérademark and copyright law, and trade searetection, and confidentiality and/or
license agreements with employees, customers,grarémd others to protect our proprietary rights. 8&nnot be certain that we have taken
adequate steps to protect our proprietary riglsizeeially in countries where the laws may not moterr rights as fully as in the United States.
In addition, our proprietary rights may be infringer misappropriated, and we could be requireddar significant expenses to preserve them.
For instance, on June 25, 2009, we filed a lawauitnited States District Court, Central Distri¢t@alifornia against PartsGeek LLC, its
members and several of its employees, alleging hgnather things, misappropriation of trade sectaisach of contract and unfair competit
We are requesting both monetary and injunctivefelihe outcome of such litigation is uncertaind #me cost of prosecuting the litigation may
have an adverse impact on our earnings. We havenoonaw trademarks, as well as pending federaktresdk registrations for several marks
and several registered marks. Even if we obtaimagb of such pending registrations, the resultiegjstrations may not adequately cover our
intellectual property or protect us against inféngent by others. Effective trademark, service meokyright, patent and trade secret protec
may not be available in every country in which products and services may be made available otfgealso currently own or control a
number of Internet domain names, includumgw.usautoparts.netwww.autopartswarehouse.cgmvww.partstrain.com www.jcwhitney.com
www.AutoMD.comandwww.stylintrucks.comand have invested time and money in the purcbBdemain names and other intellectual
property, which may be impaired if we cannot progcch intellectual property. We may be unablertigrt these domain names or acquire or
maintain relevant domain names in the United Statekin other countries. If we are not able to gebbur trademarks, domain names or other
intellectual property, we may experience difficedtiin achieving and maintaining brand recognitiod austomer loyalty.

If our product catalog database is stolen, misappriated or damaged, or if a competitor is able t@ate a substantially similar catalo
without infringing our rights, then we may lose aimportant competitive advantage.

We have invested significant resources and timeutidl and maintain our product catalog, which ismtened in the form of an electrol
database, which maps SKUs to relevant product eégmins based on vehicle makes, models and yearfalieve that our product catalog
provides us with an important competitive advantageoth driving traffic to our websites and cortirgy that traffic to revenue by enabling
customers to quickly locate the products they negqiWe cannot assure you that we will be able ¢dget our product catalog from
unauthorized copying or theft or that our prodwattéog will continue to operate adequately, withany technological challenges. In addition,
it is possible that a competitor could develop talog or database that is similar to or more cotmpngive than ours, without infringing our
rights. In the event our product catalog is damaged stolen, copied or otherwise replicated tmpete with us, whether lawfully or not, we
may lose an important competitive advantage andosiness could be harmed.

Our e-commerce system is dependent on open-sowfterare, which exposes us to uncertainty and potehiiability.

We utilize open-source software such as Linux, ApadlySQL, PHP, Fedora and Perl throughout our preperties and supporting
infrastructure although we have created proprigiaograms. Open-source software is maintained pagdaged by a general community of
software developers under various open-sourcedegrincluding the GNU General Public License (“GPThese developers are under no
obligation to maintain, enhance or provide anydire updates to this software in the future. Addiilly, under the terms of the GPL and other
open-source licenses, we may be forced to releatbe tpublic sourceode internally developed by us pursuant to sumnBes. Furthermore,
any of these developers contribute any code ofrstiteany of the software that we use, we may Ippsed to claims and liability for
intellectual property infringement. A number of lswits are currently pending against third partiesrdhe ownership rights to the various
components within some opaource software that we use. If the outcome ofethessuits is unfavorable, we may be held liabldritellectua
property infringement based on our use of thesa-gperce software components. We may also be faccedplement changes to the code-
base for this software or replace this softwardwiternally developed or commercially licensedwafe.



We face exposure to product liability lawsuits.

The automotive industry in general has been subjeatiarge number of product liability claims doehe nature of personal injuries that
result from car accidents or malfunctions. As dritigtor of auto parts, including parts obtainee®eas, we could be held liable for the injury
or damage caused if the products we sell are degeat malfunction. While we carry insurance agapreduct liability claims, if the damages
in any given action were high or we were subjecattdtiple lawsuits, the damages and costs couléexthe limits of our insurance coverage.
If we were required to pay substantial damagesrasudt of these lawsuits, it may seriously harmlmusiness and financial condition. Even
defending against unsuccessful claims could casige incur significant expenses and result in @idivon of management’s attention. In
addition, even if the money damages themselvesdaidause substantial harm to our business, thagamo our reputation and the brands
offered on our websites could adversely affectfature reputation and our brand, and could resuét decline in our net sales and profitability.
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We rely on key personnel and may need additionatpanel for the success and growth of our business.

Our business is largely dependent on the persdfmatseand abilities of highly skilled executivechnical, managerial, merchandising,
marketing, and call center personnel. Competit@rstich personnel is intense, and we cannot agsurthat we will be successful in attract
and retaining such personnel. The loss of any keyl@yee or our inability to attract or retain otlyeralified employees could harm our
business and results of operations.

System failures, including failures due to naturdisasters or other catastrophic events, could preveccess to our websites, which col
reduce our net sales and harm our reputation.

Our sales would decline and we could lose exigtingotential customers if they are not able to asa@air websites or if our websites,
transactions processing systems or network infragtre do not perform to our customers’ satisfactiny Internet network interruptions or
problems with our websites could:

. prevent customers from accessing our webs

. reduce our ability to fulfill orders or bill custars;
. reduce the number of products that we

. cause customer dissatisfaction

. damage our brand and reputati

We have experienced brief computer system inteipogtin the past, and we believe they will contitmeccur from time to time in the
future. Our systems and operations are also vubfeeta damage or interruption from a number of sesyincluding a natural disaster or other
catastrophic event such as an earthquake, typlvotoanic eruption, fire, flood, terrorist attaclomaputer viruses, power loss,
telecommunications failure, physical and electrdmigak-ins and other similar events. For example headquarters and the majority of our
infrastructure, including some of our servers,lacated in Southern California, a seismically astiggion. We also maintain offshore and
outsourced operations in the Philippines, an drabhas been subjected to a typhoon and a voleangtion in the past. In addition, California
has in the past experienced power outages as laoéBmited electrical power supplies and duedaent fires in the southern part of the state.
Such outages, natural disasters and similar eveaysrecur in the future and could disrupt the ofi@naof our business. Our technology
infrastructure is also vulnerable to computer \@sjphysical or electronic break-ins and similaruptions. Although the critical portions of
our systems are redundant and backup copies argaimaid offsite, not all of our systems and da&afally redundant. We do not presently
have a formal disaster recovery plan in effectgag not have sufficient insurance for losses thay occur from natural disasters or
catastrophic events. Any substantial disruptioowftechnology infrastructure could cause inteliou or delays in our business and loss of
data or render us unable to accept and fulfill@ustr orders or operate our websites in a timelymagror at all.

Risks Related To Our Common Stock
Our stock price has been and may continue to beatitd, which may result in losses to our stockhotde

The market prices of technology and e-commerce emeg generally have been extremely volatile ave hacently experienced sharp
share price and trading volume changes. The trgalilcg of our common stock is likely to be volatied could fluctuate widely in response to,
among other things, the risk factors describedhim teport and other factors beyond our controhsagfluctuations in the operations or
valuations of companies perceived by investorstadmparable to us, our ability to meet analystpeetations, or conditions or trends in the
Internet or auto parts industries.

Since the completion of our initial public offerimg February 2007, the trading price of our comratotk has been volatile, ranging from
a high of $12.61 per share to a low per share diGtMWe have also experienced significant fluctregiin the trading volume of our common
stock. General economic and political conditioneelated to our performance may also adversely #ffecprice of our common stock. In the
past, following periods of volatility in the marketice of a public company’s securities, securitkess action litigation has often been initiated.
Due to the inherent uncertainties of litigation, @aanot predict the ultimate outcome of any suidlion if it were initiated. The initiation of
any such litigation or an unfavorable result cdudde a material adverse effect on our financiatidmn and results of operation.
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Our executive officers and directors own a signgiat percentage of our stock.

As of December 31, 2011, our executive officers dinelctors and entities that are affiliated witkrhbeneficially owned in the aggreg
approximately 46.1% of our outstanding shares airoon stock. This significant concentration of shammership may adversely affect the
trading price for our common stock because invesiften perceive disadvantages in owning stoclomganies with controlling stockholders.
Also, these stockholders, acting together, wilabée to significantly influence our management affdirs and matters requiring stockholder
approval including the election of our entire Boafdirectors and certain significant corporaté@td such as mergers, consolidations or the
sale of substantially all of our assets. As a teshis concentration of ownership could delayedefr prevent others from initiating a potential
merger, takeover or other change in our contrandf/these actions would benefit our other stotdtdis and us.

Our future operating results may fluctuate and mé#gil to meet market expectations.

We expect that our revenue and operating resultgavitinue to fluctuate from quarter to quarteeda various factors, many of which
are beyond our control. If our quarterly revenu@perating results fall below the expectationswkstors or securities analysts, the price of
our common stock could significantly decline. Thetbrs that could cause our operating results méiroee to fluctuate include, but are not
limited to:

. fluctuations in the demand for aftermarket autds:
. price competition on the Internet or among offlie&ilers for auto part:
. our ability to attract visitors to our websites amwhvert those visitors into custome

. our ability to maintain and expand our supplier digribution relationships without significant eiincreases or reduced service
levels;

. the effects of seasonality on the demand for cadcts;

. our ability to accurately forecast demand for onoduicts, price our products at market rates anetaiai appropriate inventol
levels;

. our ability to build and maintain customer loyal

. our ability to successfully integrate our acquisis;

. infringement actions that could impact the viapitif the auto parts aftermarket or portions ther
. the success of our bre-building and marketing campaigr

. our ability to accurately project our future revespearnings, and results of operatic

. government regulations related to use of the letieior commerce, including the application of exigttax regulations to Internet
commerce and changes in tax regulati

. technical difficulties, system downtime or Interebwnouts

. the amount and timing of operating costs and cbpigaenditures relating to expansion of our busnpeperations an
infrastructure; an

. the impact of adverse economic conditions on retdés, in genere
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If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal control over financial reporting or comply witlsection 404 of the Sarban-Oxley Act o
2002, we may not be able to accurately report daehcial results or prevent fraud, and our stockipe could decline.

While management has concluded that our internarols over financial reporting were effective ddecember 31, 2011, we have in
the past, and could in the future, have a matemakness or significant deficiency in our contreéofinancial reporting or fail to comply with
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.dffail to properly maintain an effective systemraérnal control over financial reporting, it
could impact our ability to prevent fraud or toussour financial statements in a timely manner ginasents fairly our financial condition and
results of operations. The existence of any sufitidecies or weaknesses, even if cured, may @&ad to the loss of investor confidence in the
reliability of our financial statements, could haowr business and negatively impact the tradingepof our common stock. Such deficiencies
or material weaknesses may also subject us to lsygwestigations and other penalties.

Our charter documents could deter a takeover effavhich could inhibit your ability to receive an gaisition premium for your shares.
Provisions in our certificate of incorporation amdaws could make it more difficult for a third pato acquire us, even if doing so wol
be beneficial to our stockholders. Such provisioctude the following:

. our Board of Directors are authorized, without petockholder approval, to create and issue predestock which could be used to
implement an-takeover devices

. advance notice is required for director nominationfor proposals that can be acted upon at stddehmeetings

. our Board of Directors is classified such that albtmembers of our board are elected at one tinligtwmay make it more difficu
for a person who acquires control of a majoritpof outstanding voting stock to replace all or gamity of our directors

. stockholder action by written consent is prohibiéedept with regards to an action that has beeroapg by the Boarc

. special meetings of the stockholders are permitidze called only by the chairman of our Board @kbtors, our chief executi
officer or by a majority of our Board of Directol

. stockholders are not permitted to cumulate theiesdor the election of directors; a

. stockholders are permitted to amend certain prongsdf our bylaws only upon receiving at leas2/3% of the votes entitled to
cast by holders of all outstanding shares thenledtio vote generally in the election of directargting together as a single cla

We do not intend to pay dividends on our commonc&to

We currently intend to retain any future earningd o not expect to pay any cash dividends on apital stock for the foreseeable
future.

General Market and Industry Risk

Economic conditions have had, and may continue taMe an adverse effect on the demand for aftermardeto parts and could adverse
affect our sales and operating results.

We sell aftermarket auto parts consisting of baaly engine parts used for repair and maintenanc&rpgnce parts used to enhance
performance or improve aesthetics and accesstia¢aicrease functionality or enhance a vehicle&dres. Demand for our products has been
and may continue to be adversely affected by géeemmomic conditions. In declining economies, eonsrs often defer regular vehicle
maintenance and may forego purchases of nonedsgertiarmance and accessories products, whichesuitrin a decrease in demand for auto
parts in general. Consumers also defer purchasaesvof/ehicles, which immediately impacts perforneaparts and accessories, which are
generally purchased in the first six months of hisle’s lifespan. In addition, during economic ddums some competitors may become more
aggressive in their pricing practices, which woaittversely impact our gross margin and could caarge Ifluctuations in our stock price.
Certain suppliers may exit the industry which nrapact our ability to procure parts and may advgrisepact gross margin as the remaining
suppliers increase prices to take advantage ofddrdiompetition.
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Vehicle miles driven, vehicle accident rates andimance companies’ willingness to accept a variefytypes of replacement parts in the
repair process have fluctuated and may decreasegctvicould result in a decline of our revenues anégatively affect our results of
operations.

We and our industry depend on the number of velmidles driven, vehicle accident rates and insurarmeepanieswillingness to accept
variety of types of replacement parts in the repeicess. Decreased miles driven reduce the nudfilzecidents and corresponding deman
crash parts, and reduce the wear and tear on eshigth a corresponding reduction in demand foiicleliepairs and replacement or hard p
all of which may reduce our revenues and advelisghact our results of operations.

The success of our business depends on the contirgrewth of the Internet as a retail marketplace éithe related expansion of the
Internet infrastructure.

Our future success depends upon the continued alebpread acceptance and adoption of the Intesn@tvahicle to purchase products.
If customers or manufacturers are unwilling to theelnternet to conduct business and exchangeniaion, our business will fail. The
commercial acceptance and use of the Internet rmagamtinue to develop at historical rates, or maydevelop as quickly as we expect. The
growth of the Internet, and in turn the growth af business, may be inhibited by concerns overpgivand security, including concerns
regarding “viruses” and “worms,” reliability issuassing from outages or damage to Internet infeastire, delays in development or adoption
of new standards and protocols to handle the desafhithicreased Internet activity, decreased adaiisgi increased government regulation,
and taxation of Internet activity. In addition, dursiness growth may be adversely affected if tiberhet infrastructure does not keep pace with
the growing Internet activity and is unable to supphe demands placed upon it, or if there isdalgy in the development of enabling
technologies and performance improvements.

Negative conditions in the global credit markets ynianpair the liquidity of a portion of our investmgs portfolio, and adversely affect ot
results of operations and access to financing.

Our investment securities consist of high-gradeiancate preferred securities (“ARPS”). As of Detteer 31, 2011, our long-term
marketable securities were comprised of $2.1 mil{i@ir value) of high-grade (AAA rated) ARPS isdygimarily by closed end funds that
primarily hold debt obligations from municipalitieBhe recent negative conditions in the global itnex@drkets have prevented some investors
from liquidating their holdings, including their ldings of ARPS.

In response to the credit situation, in Februai&Q@ve instructed our investment advisor to liqtedal our investments in closed end
funds and move these funds into money market invests, but there was insufficient demand at audtbour remaining four high-grade
ARPS, representing approximately $7.8 million (palue) at that time. As a result, our remaining ARRirrently are not liquid, and have been
reclassified as long-term investments. For theggedune 30, 2008 through December 31, 2011, appedgly $5.7 million of our investments
in ARPS were redeemed at par value, but we do mmvkvhen we will have access to the capital inrearaining $2.1 million (par value) of
ARPS investments. In the event we need to accedsitiuls that are in an illiquid state, we will fat able to do so without a loss of principa
until a future auction on these investments is sssful, the securities are redeemed by the issuwesecondary market emerges. If we cannot
readily access these funds, we may be requiredrtow funds or issue additional debt or equity sities to meet our capital requirements.

As of December 31, 2011, management concludedtbaé remaining investments were temporarily ingehénd has recognized an
unrealized loss in other comprehensive incomeitm&21,000. Management is not sure that thesestments will not be settled in the short
term, although the market for these investmengsasently uncertain. If the credit ratings of teewwity issuers deteriorate and any decline in
market value is determined to be other-than-tenrgpree would be required to adjust the carryingueadf the investment through an
additional impairment charge.

We may be subject to liability for sales and othiaxes and penalties, which could have an adverdeafon our business.

We currently collect sales or other similar taxal/@n the shipment of goods to the states of Galif, Kansas, Virginia, lllinois and
Ohio. The U.S. Supreme Court has ruled that vendbmse only connection with customers in a statyyisommon carrier or the U.S. malil are
free from state-imposed duties to collect salesimadtaxes in that state. However, states couldtséepose additional income tax obligations
or sales tax collection obligations on out-of-stadenpanies such as ours, which engage in or faelidnline commerce, based on their
interpretation of existing laws, including the Seipre Court ruling, or specific facts relating to isales tax obligations are successfully
imposed upon us by a state or other jurisdictiomcauld be exposed to substantial tax liabilit@spast sales and penalties and fines for fa
to collect sales taxes. We could also suffer dee@aales in that state or jurisdiction as thecgffe cost of purchasing goods from us increases
for those residing in that state or jurisdiction.
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In addition, a number of states, as well as the Gdhgress, have been considering various inigatihat could limit or supersede the
Supreme Court’s apparent position regarding saldsuge taxes on Internet sales. If any of thesiativies are enacted, we could be required to
collect sales and use taxes in additional statdanrevenue could be adversely affected. Furtbegnthe U.S. Congress has not yet extended
a moratorium, which was first imposed in 1998 bas Bince expired, on state and local governmehiktyato impose new taxes on Internet
access and Internet transactions. The impositiostdte and local governments of various taxes Uip@nnet commerce could create
administrative burdens for us as well as substiintrapair the growth of e-commerce and adversélga our revenue and profitability. Since
our service is available over the Internet in npldtistates, these jurisdictions may require usutdify to do business in these states. If we fz
qualify in a jurisdiction that requires us to dq s could face liabilities for taxes and penalties

Security threats to our IT infrastructure could exjse us to liability, and damage our reputation ahdsiness

It is essential to our business strategy that echrology and network infrastructure remain seamkis perceived by our customers tc
secure. Despite security measures, however, amporietnfrastructure may be vulnerable to cyberekttaby hackers and other security threats.
As a leading online source for automotive afterreapgarts and repair information, we may face cyditaeks that attempt to penetrate our
network security, including our data centers, tootage or otherwise disable our network of websites online marketplaces, misappropriate
our or our customers’ proprietary information, whimay include personally identifiable informati@m,cause interruptions of our internal
systems and services. If successful, any of thitggeka could negatively affect our reputation, dgenaur network infrastructure and our abi
to sell our products, harm our relationship witlstouners that are affected and expose us to finldradidity .

If we do not respond to technological change, ouebsites could become obsolete and our financiauiessand conditions could be advers
affected.

We maintain a network of websites which requirdsssantial development and maintenance efforts eatails significant technical and
business risks. To remain competitive, we mustinartto enhance and improve the responsivenesstjdnality and features of our websites.
The Internet and the e-commerce industry are ctexiaed by rapid technological change, the emergehcew industry standards and
practices and changes in customer requirementprafiekences. Therefore, we may be required tosie@merging technologies, enhance our
existing websites, develop new services and teclgyahat address the increasingly sophisticatedvaniéd needs of our current and
prospective customers, and adapt to technologibadreces and emerging industry and regulatory stasdand practices in a cost-effective and
timely manner. Our ability to remain technologigatbmpetitive may require substantial expenditanmed lead time and our failure to do so
may harm our business and results of operations.

Existing or future government regulation could expe us to liabilities and costly changes in our busss operations and could redu
customer demand for our products and services.

We are subject to federal and state consumer pgimteaws and regulations, including laws protegtihe privacy of customer nguniblic
information and regulations prohibiting unfair ashekceptive trade practices, as well as laws andatgns governing businesses in general and
the Internet and e-commerce and certain enviroreh&aws. Additional laws and regulations may bepdd with respect to the Internet, the
effect of which on e-commerce is uncertain. Thaseslmay cover issues such as user privacy, spyamaréhe tracking of consumer activities,
marketing e-mails and communications, other adsiagiand promotional practices, money transfefising, content and quality of products
and services, taxation, electronic contracts ahdratommunications, intellectual property rightsd énformation security. Furthermore, it is
not clear how existing laws such as those goverisisiges such as property ownership, sales and tatkes, trespass, data mining and
collection, and personal privacy apply to the In&trand e-commerce. For example, California hasteddegislation banning the sale of
catalytic converters that do not meet Californiassions regulations, and the current federal adstration has indicated that 13 additional
states will be allowed to enact their own legislatthat mirrors the California legislation. Durig§10 and in early 2011, we met with CARB to
discuss alleged sales of catalytic converters@atifornia by us and our third-party suppliers theg not compliant with California regulations.
CARB informed us that penalties may be assessddredfard to any non-compliant sales and, on Oct®6eP011, we and CARB entered into
a settlement agreement related this inquiry. Witlaabmitting any liability, we agreed to pay a noatarial cash penalty, which was partially
offset by contributions from some of our third-gastippliers, in exchange for a release from CARBs&nd such third-party suppliers. To the
extent we expand into international markets, wé vélfaced with complying with local laws and regfidns, some of which may be materially
different than U.S. laws and regulations. Any sfarkeign law or regulation, any new U.S. law or riagion, or the interpretation or application
of existing laws and regulations to the Internebthrer online services or our business in generay, have a material adverse effect on our
business, prospects, financial condition and resiflbperations by, among other things, impedimggitowth of the Internet, subjecting us to
fines, penalties, damages or other liabilitiespngg costly changes in our business operatiomlspractices, and reducing customer demand
for our products and services. We do not maintasuiiance coverage to cover the types of claimsbitities that could arise as a result of s
regulation.
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We may be affected by global climate change ordyel, regulatory, or market responses to such chang

The growing political and scientific sentimentlist global weather patterns are being influencethtrieased levels of greenhouse gases
in the earth’s atmosphere. This growing sentimedttae concern over climate change have led tslbggie and regulatory initiatives aimed at
reducing greenhouse gas emissions. For exampleogats that would impose mandatory requiremengreenhouse gas emissions contint
be considered by policy makers in the United Stdtew's enacted that directly or indirectly affear suppliers (through an increase in the cost
of production or their ability to produce satisfagt products) or our business (through an impaatwrninventory availability, cost of sales,
operations or demand for the products we sell)ccadversely affect our business, financial conditiesults of operations and cash flows.
Significant increases in fuel economy requirementsew federal or state restrictions on emissidresatbon dioxide that may be imposed on
vehicles and automobile fuels could adversely affliemand for vehicles, annual miles driven or trapcts we sell or lead to changes in
automotive technology. Compliance with any new orerstringent laws or regulations, or stricteriptetations of existing laws, could require
additional expenditures by us or our suppliers. iDability to respond to changes in automotive tetbgy could adversely impact the demand
for our products and our business, financial caoujtresults of operations or cash flows.

The United States government may substantially e&se border controls and impose restrictions ongsdorder commerce that may
substantially harm our busines:

We purchase a substantial portion of our product® fforeign manufacturers and other suppliers whoee products internationally.
Restrictions on shipping goods into the United &tdtom other countries pose a substantial rigkutdbusiness. Particularly since the terrorist
attacks on September 11, 2001, the United Statesrgment has substantially increased border sleme# and controls. If the United States
were to impose further border controls and restmist, impose quotas, tariffs or import duties, @age the documentation requirements
applicable to cross border shipments or take athions that have the effect of restricting thevflaf goods from other countries to the United
States, we may have greater difficulty acquiringiouentory in a timely manner, experience shippiletays, or incur increased costs and
expenses, all of which would substantially harm lousiness and results of operations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2011, the square footage ofeamsed and owned office and warehouse space wa30888nd 347,000, respectively.
Our corporate headquarters and primary distributemters are located in Carson, California and lleSdinois in approximately 510,000
square feet of office and warehouse space. We &&1¢,000 square foot distribution center in Cheake, Virginia, and an additional 61,000
square foot of warehouse space in Independence, @kd currently lease approximately 43,000 squeet df office space in the Philippines
for our employees located in that country.

In September 2011, we entered into a subleaseragredor the leasing of approximately 25,000 sqdiee¢ of commercial office space
located in Carson, California. The sublease willda us to consolidate our corporate office spem® three buildings into one, and will allow
us to consolidate our California fulfillment opécets into one warehouse, which will reduce our rhintent expense and potentially create
warehouse operating efficiencies once the spacgotidation has been completed. For additional imfation regarding our obligations under
property leases, séBote 12-Commitments and Contingenciesthe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeéntided in Part 1V, Item 15
of this report.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information set forth under the caption “Lelyktters” in Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidateddricial Statements, included in Part
IV, Item 15 of this report, is incorporated herbinreference. For an additional discussion of @eriaks associated with legal proceedings, see
the section entitled “Risk Factors” in Item 1A bfg report.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information

Our common stock is being trading on the NASDAQaldMarket under the symbol “PRTS.” The table bekeis forth the high and
low sales prices of our common stock for the peviodicated:

High Low
Quarter ended April 3, 201 $7.6-5 $5.11
Quarter ended July 3, 20: 9.4( 6.0C
Quarter ended October 2, 20 9.04 5.92
Quarter ended January 1, 2( 9.07 7.7:
Quarter ended April 2, 201 9.8t 6.7t
Quarter ended July 2, 20 8.5E 6.62
Quarter ended October 1, 20 7.8t 4.31
Quarter ended December 31, 2( 6.0C 3.6¢

On March 19, 2012, the last reported sale prioguofcommon stock on the NASDAQ Global Market wa8®3er share.

Holders
As of March 19, 2012, there were approximately 2,f6lders of record of our common stock.
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Stock Performance Graph
The material in this section is not “soliciting neaial,” is not deemed “filed"with the SEC, and shall not be deemed to be incatpd by
reference into any of our filings under the SedesitAct of 1933, as amended, or the Securities &g Act of 1934, as amended.

The following graph shows an annual comparisomeftotal cumulative returns of an investment of@GOcash on February 9, 2007,
first trading day following our initial public offeng in (i) our common stock, (ii) the Morgan StayplTechnology Index, (iii) the S&P 500
Retail Index and (iv) NASDAQ Composite Index, irckaase through December 31, 2011. The comparisedhe graph are required by the
SEC and are not intended to forecast or be indieatf the possible future performance of our commstock. The graph assumes that all
dividends have been reinvested (to date, we hawvdaabared dividends).
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Dividend Policy

No dividends were paid during the fifty-two weekipds ended January 1, 2011 and December 31, @& Turrently intend to retain
any future earnings to finance the growth and dgpmakent of our business, and we do not anticipatevile will declare or pay any cash
dividends on our common stock in the foreseealilgdéu In August 2010, the Company and Silicon \laBank entered into a Loan and
Security Agreement, as amended, and other defnitocumentation for a $35 million secured creditlity. The Loan and Security Agreeme
requires us to obtain a prior written consent fi®iticon Valley Bank when we determine to pay anyidénds on or make any distribution with
respect to our common stock. Se&uidity and Capital Resourcesih Item 7 of Part Il included in this report forrthier information on the
covenants under the secured credit facility. Artyifer determination to pay cash dividends will blejsct to the above restriction as well as
restrictions under any other existing indebtedrédke discretion of our Board of Directors and wé dependent upon our financial condition,
results of operations, capital requirements, ahérofiactors the Board of Directors deems relevant.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.

Use of Proceeds from Sales of Registered Securities
None.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and #fiiated Purchasers
We did not repurchase any of our outstanding ecqégturities during the most recent quarter covbyetthis report.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial information asawfd for the dates and periods indicated have beewed from our audited consolidated
financial statements. The information set fortholels not necessarily indicative of results of fetoperations, and should be read in
conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and As&yof Financial Condition and Results of Operatian Part II, Iltem 7 of this report and
our consolidated financial statements and relatgdsincluded elsewhere in this report.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, 52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
2007 2008 Ended Ended Ended
(“calendar (“calendar January 2, January 1, December 31,
year year 2010 (“fiscal 2011 (“fiscal 2011 (“fiscal
20071 () 2008 () 2009") 2010M ®) 2011 4

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
Consolidated Statements of Operations Date

Net sales $ 160,95 $ 153,42 $ 176,28¢ $ 262,27 $ 327,07
Cost of sale: 107,13: 100,86 112,41! 172,66¢ 220,07:
Gross profil 53,82t 52,55¢ 63,87: 89,60¢ 107,00(
Operating expense
Marketing 21,55 22,96¢ 23,41¢ 38,757 55,78t
General and administrati\ 18,58 18,23 19,64( 28,62¢ 31,96
Fulfillment 7,551 9,11¢ 11,437 14,94¢ 19,16«
Technology 1,98 3,64: 4,467 5,902 7,27¢
Amortization of intangible: 8,35( 4,95¢ 661 2,80¢ 3,67
Impairment loss on intangibl — 18,93¢ — — 5,13¢
Impairment loss on goodwi — 4,43( — — —
Total operating expens: 58,03: 82,28: 59,624 91,03’ 122,99!
(Loss) income from operatiot (4,207%) (29,729 4,24¢ (1,429 (15,999
Other income (expense), r 1,14¢ 1,00( 191 (280) (6549)
(Loss) income before income tax (3,059 (28,729 4,44( (1,70¢) (16,649
Income tax provision (benefi 53¢ (11,827) 3,12: 12,21¢ (1,512)
Net (loss) incoms $ (3,599 $ (16,900 $ 1,315 $ (13,920 $ (1513)
Basic net (loss) income per shi $ (0.19) $ (0.57) $ 0.04 $ (0.46) $ (0.50
Diluted net (loss) income per sh $ (0.1%) $ (0.57) $ 0.04 $ (0.4¢€) $ (0.50
Shares used in computation of basic net (loss)yie
per share 28,274,02 29,846,75 29,851,87 30,269,46 30,545,63
Shares used in computation of diluted net (li
income per shar 28,274,02 29,846,75 30,809,11 30,269,46 30,545,63

(1) Calendar year 2007 included a reserve of $4.5anillor the securities litigation settlement fee asdociated expenst

(2) " Calendar year 2008 included a $23.4 million-cash impairment charge on goodwill and intangilsigets

(3) " Fiscal 2010 included the results of WAG which wagudred in August 2010, and was not reflected inreriods. During fiscal 2010,
the net sales of $39.1 million and the net los$60 million of WAG were included in the consoliddtstatement of operations since the
acquisition date of August 12, 2010. Also the rettgn of $13.6 million valuation allowance for @efed income tax assets was inclu
in fiscal 2010. The total valuation allowance ret=t during the year was $18.3 million, of which@#hillion was recorded as a reduct
to the value of the acquired deferred tax asset8A6 recorded as part of the purchase accounting\iaG.

Fiscal 2011 included the full year results of WAGIa $5.1 million non-cash impairment charge oarigible assets related to WAG
trade names

(4
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52 Weeks
Year Ended Year Ended 52 Weeks 52 Weeks Ended
December 31 December 31 Ended Ended December 31
January 2, January 1,
2007 2008 2010 2011 2011
(in thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Datz¢
Cash and cash equivalel $ 19,39¢ $ 32,47 $ 26,25: $ 17,59 $ 10,33t
Working capital® 40,421 36,01: 42,04¢ 19,17¢ 8,66¢
Total asset@ 110,05¢ 90,43( 104,61« 153,53 142,21¢
Notes payable to stockholde 1,00 — — — —
Long-term debt (excluding current portio 48 — — 18,06( 11,66
Stockholder equity 91,64: 77,52 82,68 72,80¢ 60,92

@ Calendar year 2008 excluded $6.5 million of invesits which were reclassified to Ic-term due to illiquidity in the marke
Additionally, fiscal 2009, fiscal 2010 and fisc 2L excluded $4.3 million, $4.1 million and $2.1llran, respectively, of the same
investments

@ Fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011 included a deferredrime tax asset valuation allowance of $18.3 milaod $22.8 million, respectively, th
is netted against the total ass

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial conditiand results of operations should be read togetbithy our consolidated financial
statements and related notes included in ParttMml15 of this report. This discussion containsvBnd-looking statements that involve risks
and uncertainties. As a result of many factorshsag those set forth under the section entitledskRactors” in Iltem 1A and elsewhere in this
report, our actual results may differ materiallypfn those anticipated in these forward-looking steats.

We are one of the largest online providers of afteket auto parts, including body parts, enginéspand performance parts and
accessories. Our user-friendly websites providéooosrs with a broad selection of SKUs, with dethjpeoduct descriptions and photographs.
Our proprietary product database maps our SKUsddyzt applications based on vehicle makes, madelsyears. We principally sell our
products to individual consumers through our neknafrwebsites and online marketplaces. Our flagstépsites are located at
www.autopartswarehouse.cgmvww.partstrain.comwww.jcwhitney.comwww.stylintrucks.comwww.AutoMD.conand our corporate
website is located atww.usautoparts.netWe believe our strategy of disintermediatingtiiaelitional auto parts supply chain and selling
products directly to customers over the Internlewad us to more efficiently deliver products to @austomers while generating higher margins.

Our History. We were formed in Delaware in 1995 as a distdbof aftermarket auto parts and launched our firgbsite in 2000. We
rapidly expanded our online operations, increafiegnumber of SKUs sold through our e-commerce oktywadding additional websites,
improving our Internet marketing proficiency androencing sales in online marketplaces. AdditionatlyAugust 2010, through our
acquisition of WAG, we expanded our product-lined &creased our customer reach in the DIY autolaaid off-road accessories market.
As a result, our business has grown since 200&rgéng net sales of $327.1 million for fiscal 2011

International Operationsin April 2007, we established offshore operatianghie Philippines. Our offshore operations allowaiaccess
workforce with the necessary technical skills atgmificantly lower cost than comparably experiehtkeS.-based professionals. Our offshore
operations are responsible for a majority of oubsite development, catalog management, and baide affipport. Our offshore operations i
house our main call center. We had 1,005 emploiyette Philippines as of December 31, 2011. Intaldito our operations in the Philippin
we have a Canadian subsidiary to facilitate sal@sioproducts in Canada; the subsidiary has niwilligion center or employees. We also ship
parts directly to Canada and through a freight #oding partner throughout the world. In 2011, wipgld auto parts to over 160 different
countries. We believe that the cost advantagesiobfishore operations provide us with the abit@ygrow our business in a cost-effective
manner, and we expect to continue to add heademshinfrastructure to our offshore operations.

AcquisitionsFrom time to time, we may acquire certain busingssebsites, domain names, or other assets. lthitldequarter of fiscal
2009, we completed the acquisition of the assetsamhall website and the related domain names wvibitiher expanded and enhanced our
product offering and our ability to reach more oasérs. In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, we cdetgd two additional website and domain
name asset acquisitions, which increased our et aad internet traffic. In August 2010, Go Fitie., a wholly-owned subsidiary of ours,
completed the purchase of all of the outstandimmitabstock of Automotive Specialty Accessories &adts, Inc. and its wholly-owned
subsidiary Whitney Automotive Group, Inc. (refertecherein as “WAG”). WAG’s Midwest
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facility expanded our distribution network and therchandise WAG offers extended our go-to markedpet-lines into all terrain vehicles,
recreational vehicles and motorcycles, as wellragiges us with deep product knowledge into nickgnsents like Jeep, Volkswagen and
trucks. This expansion of our product line incresasier customer reach in the DIY automobile androffd accessories market. The Company
believes that the combination of WAG'’s establisheahds and focus on the customer experience, abupth the Company’s capacity to
compete online, creates opportunity for growth.aka to the WAG acquisition, the Company has irediercquisition and integration related
costs of $3.1 million and $7.4 million for the fidg/ear ended January 1, 2011and December 31, B8Hdectively. These costs included one-
time contract cancellation costs of $1.5 millioattthe Company recorded in September 2011, foritetmg WAG's sublease agreement
related to its former corporate offices locate€hicago, lllinois. No significant integration coste anticipated in the future, as such the
majority of the acquisition and integration relatests have been paid as of December 31, 2011e 8irdWAG acquisition, certain residual
WAG operations have been separately accountedifamgithe integration process. These operatiorsgead certain WAG product revenues,
the related operating costs and integration c¥¢eshave presented such residual WAG operationgugposes of providing comparable
financial information for the impacted fiscal yearsded 2010 and 2011. We will not provide this iinfation going forward into 2012, since
2011 represented a full year with these residualG\oderations and will thus be more comparable t22We expect such revenues and
expenses that directly relate to WAG products giidldually decrease over fiscal 2012. For additiamfakmation, seéNote 5 — Business
Combination”of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementtuded in Part IV, Item 15 of this report. We mayrsue additional
acquisition opportunities in the future to increase share of the aftermarket auto parts markekpand our product offering.

Executive Summary

For the fiscal year 2011, the Company generatedales of $327.1 million, compared with $262.3 imillfor fiscal 2010, representing
increase of 25%. Excluding $83.4 million and $3%illion of net sales from WAG in fiscal 2011 and1®0 respectively, our net sales for fiscal
2011 and 2010 were $243.7 million and $223.2 nrillieespectively, for an increase of 9% over theryear. Net loss for fiscal 2011 was
$15.1 million, or $0.50 per share, which includetba-cash writedown of intangibles and restructuring charges eelab WAG of $3.4 millio
(net of a $1.7 million tax benefit) and $7.4 milliaespectively, and $0.5 million of legal expengeprotect intellectual property. This
compares to a net loss of $13.9 million, or $0.d6ghare for fiscal 2010, which included $3.1 roilliof restructuring charges related to WAG,
and $2.3 million of legal expenses to protect Ietgbal property. Earnings per share for fiscal2@hd 2010 also included amortization
expense related to intangibles of $3.7 million @r1® per share and $2.8 million or $0.09 per shaspectively. We generated Adjusted
EBITDA (Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreoigteand Amortization plus current year's share-tdasempensation expense, legal costs to
enforce intellectual property rights, restructurengenses related to acquisition and a fiscal 20109 charge for change in revenue recognit
of $16.3 million in fiscal 2011 compared to $19.8lion in fiscal 2010. Adjusted EBITDA excludes shabased compensation expense of $2.6
million in fiscal 2011 and $2.7 million in fiscaD20. Adjusted EBITDA is presented because such uneas used by rating agencies, secur
analysts, investors and other parties in evaludatisgCompany. It should not be considered, howeasean alternative to operating income a
indicator of the Company’s operating performancaoan alternative cash flows as measures of thgp@ay’s overall liquidity as presented
the Company’s consolidated financial statementsthey, the Adjusted EBITDA measure shown for thenpany may not be comparable to
similarly titted measures used by other companies.

To understand revenue generation through our n&tefog-commerce websites, we monitor several kesjriass metrics, including the
following:

Unique Visitors:A unigue visitor to a particular website representsser with a distinct IP address that visits gaaticular website. We
define the total number of unique visitors in aegivnonth as the sum of unique visitors to eachuofaebsites during that month. We measure
unigue visitors to understand the volume of trafifiour websites and to track the effectivenessuofonline marketing efforts. The number of
unique visitors has historically varied based aumber of factors, including our marketing actedtiand seasonality. We believe an increa
unigue visitors to our websites will result in acliease in the number of orders. We seek to inersesnumber of unique visitors to our
websites by attracting repeat customers and impgosearch engine marketing and other internet ntiagkactivities.

Total Number of OrdersiVe monitor the total number of orders as an indicatf future revenue trends. We recognize revesseaated
with an order when the products have been delivexausistent with our revenue recognition policy.

Average Order ValueAverage order value represents our net sales tecagorders basis for a given period of time didithy the total
number of orders recorded during the same periditnaf, We seek to increase the average order @ @emeans of increasing net sales.
Average order values vary depending upon a numidactors, including the components of our prodefééring, the order volume in certain
online sales channels, macro-economic conditioms tlae general level of competition online.
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The tables below reconcile net (loss) income tsobdated Adjusted EBITDA and U.S. Auto Parts (“USAexcluding the WAG
acquisition for the periods presented (in thousgnds

Thirteen Weeks

Thirteen Weeks Fifty -Two Fifty -Two
Ended Ended Weeks Ended Weeks Ended
January 1, 201: December 31, 201 January 1, 201: December 31, 201
Consolidated
Net loss $ (2,89¢) $ (7,020 $  (13,92¢) $ (15,13))
Interest expense, n 24C 244 371 962
Income tax provision (benefi 64 (1,723) 12,21¢ (1,512
Amortization of intangible: 1,64( 34t 2,80¢ 3,67:
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,98z 3,494 9,46¢ 12,69t
EBITDA (loss) 2,03( (4,669 10,93: 682
Impairment loss on intangibl — 5,13¢ — 5,13¢
Shar-based compensatic 63C 66C 2,74 2,60
Legal costs to enforce intellectual
property rights 87 19 2,28¢ 462
Charge for change in revenue recogni — — 411 —
Add back restructurin 1,53¢ 784 3,12¢ 7,37¢
Adjusted EBITDA $ 4,281 $ 1,93 $ 19,49 $ 16,26¢
Thirteen Weeks
Thirteen Weeks Fifty -Two Fifty -Two
Ended Ended Weeks Ended Weeks Ended
January 1, 201: December 31, 201 January 1, 201: December 31, 201
USAP excluding WAG
Net income (loss $ 21¢ $ 12¢ $ (7,909 $ 4,74¢
Interest expense, n 29t 24% 37¢ 964
Income tax provision (benefi 29 (305) 12,18: (144
Amortization of intangible: 12t 12t 494 50C
Depreciation and amortizatic 2,32¢ 2,56¢ 8,45¢ 9,92¢
EBITDA 2,997 2,751 13,60: 15,99
Shar-based compensatic 63C 66C 2,742 2,607
Legal costs to enforce intellectual
property rights 87 19 2,28¢ 462
Charge for change in reven
recognition — — 411 —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 3,70¢ $ 3,43¢ $ 19,04( $ 19,06:

Basis of Presentation

Net SalesOnline and offline sales represent two differet¢sahannels for our products. We generate onkiesaes primarily through
the sale of auto parts to individual consumersuhoour network of e-commerce websites and onliagketplaces, including online
advertising. E-commerce sales are derived frormetwork of websites, which are company owned aretaipd. E-commerce and online
marketplace sales also include inbound telephdes sarough our call center that supports thesessaiannels. Online marketplaces consist
primarily of sales of our products on online auctigebsites, where we sell through auctions as agethrough storefronts that we maintain on
these third-party owned websites. We sell advedisind sponsorship positions on our e-commerceitestis highlight vendor brands and
offer complementary products and services thatfiteme customers. Advertising is targeted to sfiedections of the websites and can als
targeted to specific users based on the vehictsdhive. Advertising partners primarily includerpaendors, national automotive aftermarket
brands, and automobile manufacturers. Our offlalesschannel represents our distribution of pragldicectly to commercial customers by
selling auto parts to collision repair shops lodateSouthern California and Virginia. Our offlisales channel also includes the distribution of
our Kool-Vue mirror line to auto parts distributorationwide. We also serve consumers by operaétail ioutlet stores in Independence, Ohio
and LaSalle, lllinois.

Cost of SaleLCost of sales consists of the direct costs assatiaith procuring parts from suppliers and delimgrproducts to custome!
These costs include product costs offset by puechasounts, freight and shipping costs and warehsupplies. Depreciation and
amortization are excluded from cost of sales antlided in marketing, general and administrative fatfillment costs as noted below.
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General and Administrative Expens&eneral and administrative expense consists priynafradministrative payroll and related expen
payment processing fees, legal and professions) &sortization of software and other administetests. General and administrative
expense also includes depreciation and amortizatipense and share-based compensation expense.

Marketing ExpenseViarketing expense consists of online advertisirgnsp Internet commerce facilitator fees and otldeedising costs
as well as payroll and related expenses associdateeur marketing catalog, customer service, aldspersonnel. These costs are generally
variable and are typically a function of net saMarketing expense also includes depreciation amoréization expense and share-based
compensation expense.

Fulfillment Expenserulfillment expense consists primarily of payratidarelated costs associated with our warehousecgtegsé and our
purchasing group, facility rent, building maintenandepreciation and other costs associated witthiiory management and our wholesale
operations. Fulfilment expense also includes dept®n and amortization expense and share-basagesation expense.

Technology Expens&echnology expense consists primarily of payrod aglated expenses of our information technologgqenel, the
cost of hosting our servers, communications expeasd Internet connectivity costs, computer supgadtsoftware development. Technology
expense also includes share-based compensationsexpe

Amortization of IntangiblesAmortization of intangibles consists of the anmation expense associated with our intangibletasasich
primarily consist of the intangibles recorded assult of the WAG acquisition.

Impairment loss on Intangibledmpairment loss on intangibles consists of adi@d11 non-cash impairment charge related toicerta
WAG trade name intangible assets.

Interest Income (Expenséiterest income consists primarily of interest imgoon investments. Interest expense consists plynadr
interest expense on our outstanding loan balanwsapital leases.

Other IncomeOther income consists of miscellaneous income asdain from disposition of assets.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements have begpapee in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United Stal
The preparation of our financial statements reguireto make estimates and assumptions that #ffeceported amounts of assets, liabilities,
net sales, costs and expenses, as well as thesliselof contingent assets and liabilities andratlated disclosures. On an ongoing basis, we
evaluate our estimates, including, but not limitedthose related to revenue recognition, uncabécteceivables, intangible and other long-
lived assets and contingencies. We base our estnoat historical experience and on various oth&uraptions that we believe to be reason
under the circumstances, the results of which fibrenbasis for making judgments about carrying v@hfeour assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual resadtdd differ from those estimates, and we incladg revisions to our estimates in our results
for the period in which the actual amounts becomanakn.

We believe the critical accounting policies desetitbelow affect the more significant judgments astiimates used in the preparation of
our consolidated financial statements. Accordintiigse are the policies we believe are the mastalrio aid in fully understanding and
evaluating our historical consolidated financiahdition and results of operations:

Revenue RecognitiorRrom the Company’s inception of business throughfitlst quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company recagdirevenue
from product sales when the following four revenegognition criteria were met: persuasive evidesfcan arrangement exists, delivery has
occurred (to the common carrier), the selling piicéixed or determinable, and collectability imsenably assured. These criteria followed the
Company’s general policy to recognize revenue atingrto its shipping terms, which were F.O.B. simigppoint. Under this policy, title and
risk of loss were transferred to the customer ugelivery to the common carrier, at which time, newe was recognized.

Although the Company had no legal obligation to pemsate the customer, the Company generally reptheeproduct or reimburses the
customer for goods that were lost or damaged irsitand filed a claim to the common carrier fdneursement for such loss. The Company
executed a new pricing agreement with its primanyier which offered a lower price per delivery aiuninated the Company’s option to file
reimbursement claims for product lost or damagedainsit. As a result of this agreement, the Commtermined that the risk of loss or
damage during transit would be retained by the GomipTherefore, the Company determined that revéone product sales should be
recognized at the delivery date, not the ship date.
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This change in the second quarter of fiscal 20%0lted in a deferral of $2.0 million of sales reverand a decrease in cost of goods sold
of $1.5 million, which reduced gross profit by $4000. The Company has recognized revenue uporegiglio the customer starting the sec
quarter of fiscal 2010.

Revenue from sales of advertising is recorded wiegformance requirements of the related advertighogram agreement are met. For
fiscal 2011, the advertising revenue representgdoxpmately 2% of our total revenue.

We evaluated the criteria of Accounting Standarddification (“ASC”) Topic 605-45 Revenue Recognition - Principal Agent
Considerationg“ASC 605-45"), in determining whether it is apprite to record the gross amount of product satdsrelated costs or the net
amount earned as commissions. When we are thenyrpasty obligated in a transaction, are subjedéht@ntory risk, have latitude in
establishing prices and selecting suppliers or lsa@veral but not all of these indicators, revesucorded at gross.

Product sales and shipping revenues, net of promaltdiscounts and return allowances, are recondesh the products are delivered i
title passes to customers. Retail items sold téoousrs are made pursuant to terms and conditi@ptbvide for transfer of both title and risk
of loss upon our delivery to the customer. Retdlowances, which reduce product revenue by our éstiinate of expected product returns
estimated using historical experience.

Payments received prior to the delivery of goodsustomers are recorded as deferred revenue.

We periodically provide incentive offers to our tursers to encourage purchases. Such offers includent discount offers, such as
percentage discounts off of current purchases #ret similar offers. Current discount offers, wretepted by our customers, are treated as a
reduction to the purchase price of the relatedsaeation.

Sales discounts are recorded in the period in wiielrelated sale is recognized. Sales return alloes are estimated based on historical
amounts and are recorded upon recognizing theetekatles. Credits are issued to customers fomedyproducts.

Fair Value Measurement®/e account for fair value measurements in accomarith ASC Topic 82Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures(*ASC 820") , which defines fair value, providesramework for measuring fair value and providesdiselosure requirements for
fair value measurements. ASC 820 also establistie®a-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizéee inputs used in measuring fair value.
These tiers include: Level 1 - defined as observaiguts such as quoted prices in active marketeel2 - defined as inputs other than quoted
prices in active markets that are either directlindirectly observable; and Level 3 - defined ashservable inputs in which little or no market
data exists, therefore requiring an entity to depéis own assumptions.

We have evaluated both Level 2 and Level 3 evidémeeeasure the fair value of our $2.1 million ®RRS as of December 31, 2011.
These investments consist solely of collateralidebit obligations supported by municipal and stgenaies; do not include mortgage-backed
securities or student loans; have redemption feattirat call for redemption at 100% of par value} bave a current credit rating of A or AA
During fiscal 2011, we received partial redemptiabpar value on our investments totaling $2.liamll The fact that there continues to not be
an active market as of December 31, 2011 to ligaid@0% of these investments, continues to beitlaédetermination in classifying them as
Level 3. We used a discounted cash flow valuatiodehto estimate the fair value of the securithesa result of the temporary declines in fair
value of our ARPS, which we attribute to liquidisgues rather than credit issues, we have recendedrealized loss of $21,000 to
accumulated other comprehensive income. If ourdssgmptions used to determine estimated discogasddflows change in the future, we
may be required to record additional losses.

Inventory.Inventory consists of finished goods availablegate. We purchase inventory from suppliers bothekiivally and
internationally, primarily in Taiwan and China. Welieve that our products are generally availatdenfmore than one supplier, and we
maintain multiple sources for many of our produbtsth internationally and domestically. We offdsraad line of auto parts for automobiles
from model years 1965 to 2011. Because of the woatl demand for our products, we primarily purch@seucts in bulk quantities to take
advantage of quantity discounts and to ensure tovgmvailability.

Inventory is accounted for using the first-in fimit (“FIFO”) method and valued at the lower of ttosmarket value. During this
valuation, we are required to make judgments abrpécted disposition of inventory, generally, tlgbsales, returns to product vendors, or
liguidations of obsolete or scrap products, anceetgrl recoverable values of each disposition cagdgased on currently-available
information. If actual market conditions are lesgdrable than those anticipated by managementtiaaali write-down of the value of our
inventory may be required.
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Website and Software Development Coats.capitalize certain costs associated with softveeveloped for internal use according to
ASC Topic 350-40intangibles — Goodwill and Other — Internal-Use 8afre (“ASC 350-40"), and ASC Topic 350-5M1tangibles -Goodwill
and Other — Website Development C@ASC 350-50"). Under these provisions, we cap#talcosts associated with website development and
software developed for internal use when both tieiminary project design and testing stage aregtetad and management has authorized
further funding for the project, which it deems Ipable of completion and to be used for the funcitwended. Capitalized costs include
amounts directly related to website developmentsaitivare development such as payroll and payeddited costs for employees who are
directly associated with, and who devote timehe,ihternal-use software project. Capitalizationhefse costs ceases when the project is
substantially complete and ready for its intendsel. u

Long-Lived Assets and Intangibl&ge acquire tangible and intangible assets in thmabcourse of business. We evaluate the
recoverability of the carrying amount of these ldived assets whenever events or changes in citeumoss indicate that the carrying value of
an asset may not be recoverable in accordanceA8i@ Topic 360-Property, Plant, and Equipme(ftASC 360”). Management assesses
potential impairments whenever events or changesdénmstances indicate that the carrying valuaroasset may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss will result when the carrying vakieeeds the undiscounted cash flows estimatesktdtifrom the use and eventual
disposition of the asset. Impairment losses wiltdxEgnized in operating results to the extenttimacarrying value exceeds the discounted
future cash flows estimated to result from the arse eventual disposition of the asset. We contipuale judgment when applying these
impairment rules to determine the timing of the &inment tests, undiscounted cash flows used teassgpairments, and the fair value of a
potentially impaired asset. The reasonablenessigudgments could significantly affect the cargyivelue of our long-lived assets. We did not
recognize any impairment losses on long-lived assed intangibles for fiscal 2009, 2010 and 2011.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible®¥/e account for goodwill under the guidance sehfamtASC Topic 350intangibles —
Goodwill and Othe(*ASC 350”) , which specifies that goodwill and &fihite-lived intangibles should not be amortizéée have historically
evaluated goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibfes impairment on an annual basis or more fredyehévents or circumstances occur that
would indicate a reduction in fair value. Our anriogairment testing date is October 31. In additive identified a single reporting unit in
accordance with ASC 350. The goodwill impairmest ie a two-step impairment test. The first stempares the fair value of each reporting
unit with its carrying amount including goodwill. &\estimate the fair value of the reporting unitdohsn an equal weighting of two market
approaches and an income approach, which utilizesuanted future cash flows. The market approaatigsed market multiples of invested
capital from 1) comparable publicly traded compargiad 2) comparable transactions. The market nfestipom invested capital include
revenues, total assets, book equity plus debt &1@EA. Assumptions critical to the fair value estites under the discounted cash flow model
include discount rates, cash flow projections, gectgd long-term growth rates and the determinaifderminal values. Management has
performed a sensitivity analysis on its significassumptions and has determined that a changeassumptions within selected sensitivity
testing levels would not impact its conclusion. Exeess of fair value over carrying value for aparting unit as of October 31, 2011, the
annual testing date, was approximately $50 millan there would have to be a 38% decrease irstieated fair value of the reporting uni
fail stepl. If the carrying amount exceeds estichéair value, then the second step of the impaitrtest is performed to measure the amou
any impairment loss by comparing the implied faitue of the reporting unit to its carrying valuee\@bmpleted our annual testing and passed
the first step of the impairment test. Current gumick, adopted in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2@ikayides the option to first assess qualitative
factors to determine whether the existence of eventircumstances leads to a determination thgmnitore likely than not that the fair value of
a reporting unit is less than its carrying amotfnafter assessing the totality of events or aimstances, an entity determines it is not more
likely than not that the fair value of a reportingit is less than its carrying amount, then perfogrhe twostep impairment test is unnecess
We opted to continue to perform the step one tedigcal 2011 as discussed above. We did not rézegny impairment loss on goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangibles for fiscal 2009 and1¥0 During 2011, we recorded a non-cash impairrakatge on certain WAG trade name
intangible assets totaling $5.1 million as furtdescribed irfNote 6- Goodwill and Intangiblesdf the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Part IV, Item 15 of thisorp

Income TaxesThe Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC Topic74dncome Taxe§'ASC 740"). Under ASC 740,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogni@ethe future tax consequences attributable tgtaary differences between the financial
statement carrying amount of existing assets atfulities and their respective tax bases. Defeta@dissets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxablemieda the years in which those temporary differsrare expected to be recovered or settled.
When appropriate, a valuation reserve is estaldisheeduce deferred tax assets, which includertedits and loss carry forwards, to the
amount that is more likely than not to be realiZzBuk ability to realize deferred tax assets dependbe ability to generate sufficient taxable
income within the carryback or carryforward perigasvided for in the tax law for each applicable jizrisdiction. We consider the following
possible sources of taxable income when assedsingalization of our deferred tax assets:

. Future reversals of existing taxable temporaryeddhces
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. Future taxable income exclusive of reversing terapodifferences and carryforwarc
. Taxable income in prior carryback years; i
. Tax-planning strategie:

The assessment regarding whether a valuation atlosvis required or should be adjusted also corsidenong other matters, the nature,
frequency and severity of recent losses of the @oethUSAP and WAG operations, forecasts of futudiability, the duration of statutory
carryforward periods, our experience with tax htttés expiring unused and tax planning alternativesiaking such judgments, significant
weight is given to evidence that can be objectivesified.

Concluding that a valuation allowance is not reggiis difficult when there is significant negater@dence that is objective and
verifiable, such as cumulative losses in recentgdlthough we expect that the operations of #eently acquired WAG business and our
ability to achieve future profitability of these enations was enhanced by the cost reductions tuatied as a result of the acquisition and
subsequent integration efforts, WAG’s historic @ierg results remain relevant as they are refleativthe industry and the effect of economic
conditions. The fundamental businesses and inheskstin which the WAG business operates did hainge from those which existed priol
the acquisition. We utilized a three-year analg$iactual results as the primary measure of cunvelébsses in recent years. However, because
a substantial portion of those cumulative losskdedo impairment of intangible assets and goddthibse three-year cumulative results are
adjusted for the effect of these items. In addijtibe near- and medium-term financial outlook iesidered when assessing the need for a
valuation allowance.

The valuation of deferred tax assets requires juggrand assessment of the future tax consequehegsms that have been recorded in
the financial statements or in the tax returns, andfuture profitability represents our best estienof those future events. Changes in our
current estimates, due to unanticipated eventsherwise, could have a material effect on our faialhcondition and results of operations.
Prior to the acquisition of WAG, the Company couigd that it was more likely than not that we worddlize the deferred tax assets in all
jurisdictions. However, with the acquisition of WA® 2010, based largely on the weight of the comBioumulative thre-year adjusted loss
position, it was determined that it was not mokelf than not that the Company would realize itsdeferred tax assets as of January 1, 2011.
Therefore, a valuation allowance of $18.3 millioaswecorded as of January 1, 2011, of which $4llfomivas recorded in relation to WAG
connection with our acquisition in August 2010. &®n the same determination, an additional valnallowance of $5.7 million was
recorded as of December 31, 2011, resulting inatian allowance balance of $22.8 million as otBmber 31, 2011.

If, in the future, we generate taxable income eustained basis in jurisdictions where we haverdazbfull valuation allowances, our
conclusion regarding the need for full valuatiolabnces in these tax jurisdictions could changsulting in the reversal of some or all of the
valuation allowances. If our operations generatalite income prior to reaching profitability onwstined basis, we would reverse a portic
the valuation allowance related to the correspandialized tax benefit for that period, without ohg our conclusions on the need for a full
valuation allowance against the remaining net deftetax assets.

At December 31, 2011, federal and state net opgrétiss (“NOL”) carryforwards were $28.3 million&f$42.2 million, respectively.
Federal NOL carryforwards of $2.7 million were aitgd in the acquisition of WAG which are subjecinternal Revenue Code section 382
and limited to an annual usage limitation of $188,0Additionally the tax benefit of $0.9 million die federal and state NOL carryforwards
which was created by the exercise of stock optwitidoe credited to additional paid-in-capital onezognized. Federal NOL carryforwards
expire in 2029 and 2030, while state NOL carryfamgabegin to expire in 2016. The state NOL carmyfimds expire in the respective tax years
as follows (in thousands):

2016- 2022 $36,02¢
2023- 2031 6,20(C
$42,22¢

The Company utilizes a two-step approach to re@ggiand measuring uncertain tax positions. Thst §itep is to evaluate the tax
position for recognition by determining if the whtgf available evidence indicates it is more fk#lan not that the position will be sustained
on audit, including resolution of related appeal$itgation processes. The second step is to niedbe tax benefit as the largest amount w
is more than 50% likely of being realized uponméiie settlement. We consider many factors wheruatialy and estimating our tax positions
and tax benefits, which may require periodic agpestts and which may not accurately forecast actutliomes. As of December 31, 2011, the
Company had no material unrecognized tax bendiisiest or penalties related to federal and stat@me tax matters. The Company'’s policy
is to record interest and penalties as incomexprrese.

28



Table of Contents

The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tawell as income tax of foreign and state tax licisons. During fiscal 2010, the
Company was audited by the Internal Revenue Sefordde year ended December 31, 2008. The auditoeacluded with no change. The tax
years 200-2010 remain open to examination by the major guyimisdictions to which the Company is subjectept the Internal Revenue
Service for which the tax years 2009-2010 remainod he Company does not anticipate a significaahge to the amount of unrecognized
tax benefits within the next twelve months.

Share-Based Compensatidrhe Company accounts for share-based compensatamctordance with ASC Topic 718empensation —
Stock CompensatiqiASC 718”). ASC 718 requires that all share-basechpensation to employees, including grants of eyg# stock
options, be recognized in our financial statembated on their respective grant date fair valuaesleUthis standard, the fair value of each
sharebased payment award is estimated on the date of gsing an option pricing model that meets centagquirements. We currently use
Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimatefdievalue of our share-based payment awards, th@étexception of options granted
containing market conditions, for which we estimide fair value using a Monte Carlo model. The Ri&choles and Monte Carlo valuation
models require extensive use of accounting judgrardtfinancial estimates, including estimates efdkpected term participants will retain
their vested stock options before exercising thiam estimated volatility of our common stock prinesr the expected term and the number of
options that will be forfeited prior to the comyitet of their vesting requirements. Application tteanative assumptions could produce
significantly different estimates of the fair valokshare-based compensation and, consequentlyeltited amount of share-based
compensation expense recognized in the Consolid&tedment of Operations could have been signifigalifferent than the amounts
recorded. We estimate volatility using historicalatilities of similar public entities. The expedtkfe of the awards is based on a simplified
method that defines the life as the average ofttigractual term of the options and the weighteztaye vesting period for all open tranches.
Prior to our initial public offering in February @@, we did not have a history of market priceswf@mmon stock. Due to the limited period
time our equity shares have been publicly tradedda not have sufficient historical exercise datprovide a reasonable basis upon which to
estimate expected term. The risk-free interestaaseimption is based on observed interest ratesajgte for the expected life of our awards.
The dividend yield assumption is based on our hystmd expectation of paying no dividends.

Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grantranibed, if necessary, in subsequent periods ifsdorfeitures significantly differ from
those estimates. We consider many factors whematstig expected forfeitures, including employees]aconomic environment, and
historical experience. Share-based compensatioanseprecognized in our financial statements isbaseawards that are ultimately expected
to vest. If factors change and we employ diffe@sgumptions, share-based compensation expenseiffieaignificantly from what we have
recorded in the past. If there are any modificationcancellations of the underlying unvested otiove may be required to accelerate,
increase or cancel any remaining unrecognized dtesed compensation expense.

We have granted to our employees options to puecbasimon stock at exercise prices equal to thenfaiket value of the underlying
common stock at the time of each grant, whichésdlesing market price of our common stock.

Under provisions of ASC 718, we recognized $3.3iom] $2.7 million and $2.6 million of share-bassminpensation expense for fiscal
2009, fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011, respectivelyD&tember 31, 2011, the total compensation costelto unvested stock-based awards
granted to employees and nemployee directors under our equity incentive plausnot yet recognized was approximately $3.5iami|Inet of
estimated forfeitures of approximately $1.8 millidrhis cost will be amortized over a weighted-agergeriod of approximately 2.4 years and
will be adjusted for any subsequent changes imeséid forfeitures.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See “Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Polieied Nature of Operationssf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
included in Part 1V, Item 15 of this report.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth selected statemémperations data for the periods indicated, exg@dsas a percentage of net sales:

52 Weeks Ende

52 Weeks Ende 52 Weeks Ende
December
January 2, 201C January 1, 2011 31, 2011
Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 63.€ 65.¢ 67.:
Gross profil 36.2 34.2 32.7
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52 Weeks Ende

52 Weeks Ende

52 Weeks Ende

December
January 2, 201C January 1, 2011 31, 2011
Operating expense
Marketing 13.2 14.¢ 17.1
General and administrati\ 11.1 10.¢ 9.8
Fulfillment 6.5 5.7 5.8
Technology 2.5 2.3 2.2
Amortization of intangible: 0.4 1.1 11
Impairment loss on intangibl — — 1.6
Total operating expens: 33.€ 34.7 37.€
Income (loss) from operatiol 2.4 (0.5 (4.9
Other income (expense
Other income, ne — — 0.1
Interest income (expens 0.1 (0.7) 0.9
Total other income (expens 0.1 (0.2 (0.2
Income (loss) before income tax 2.5 (0.7 (5.7
Income tax provision (benefi 1.8 4.7 (0.9
Net income (loss 0.7% (5.9% 4.€)%

The impact of foreign currency is related to odslbre operations in the Philippines and salesuofpooducts in Canada and was not
material to our operations.

Fifty-Two Weeks Ended January 1, 2011 Comparedtte Fifty-Two Weeks Ended December 31, 2011
Net Sales and Gross Marg

52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended
January 1, December 31 $ Change % Change
2011 2011
(in thousands)
Net sales $262,27" $ 327,07: $64,79¢ 24. 7%
Cost of sale: 172,66¢ 220,07 47,40 27.5%
Gross profi $ 89,60¢ $ 107,00( $17,39! 19.2%
Gross margit 34.2% 32.1% (1.5%

Consolidated net sales increased $64.8 millior24or %, for fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010. |IEding $83.4 million of sales from
WAG, the USAP net sales for fiscal 2011 were $248illon, an increase of 9.2% over fiscal 2010 sedes, due to increases of $19.5 million,
or 9.4%, in online sales and $1.0 million, or 6.2fwffline sales, which consist of our Kool-Vue "Mdawholesale operations. Our online sales
consist of our e-commerce, online marketplace saiasnels and online advertising. Our e-commereamél includes our e-commerce
websites supported by our call-center sales agemisgenerate cross-sell and sglt opportunities. Our online marketplaces corigharily of
auction and other third-party websites. Online afilsiag is sold on our e-commerce websites.

The USAP increase in online sales is primarily ttua $15.6 million, or 9.0%, increase in e-commesaes, which resulted from an
increase of 211,007, or 11.8%, in total placed isden increase of 10.2 million, or 8.9%, in unigisdtors, partially offset by a decrease of
$2.49, or 2.1%, in average order value from fi@€HlO to fiscal 2011. The increases in total plameitrs and the unique visitors resulted from
increased marketing spend driving higher paid izafhd better content on our websites driving n@ganic traffic. The increases were also
attributed to more effective pricing, better catpttata and a better customer experience. Our averagr value declined due to increased
pricing competition and increased sales of lowest direct sourced products.

Consolidated gross profit increased 19.4% fromafi2010 to fiscal 2011. Consolidated gross margitlided 1.5% to 32.7% comparec
fiscal 2010. Excluding the gross profit from WAGSHP gross profit was $80.4 million, an increasé.4f6, and USAP gross margin was
33.0% for fiscal 2011 compared to 34.0% for fis2@10. USAP gross margin was unfavorably impacted bkift from body to engine parts
and increased freight expenses.
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Marketing Expens

52 Weeks
52 Weeks Ended
Ended December
January 1, 31,
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Marketing expens $38,757 $55,78¢ $17,02¢ 43.%
Percent of net sal 14.&% 17.1% 2.3%

Marketing expense increased $17.0 million, or 43.8%fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010. Exclgd$20.7 million of marketing
expense from WAG, the USAP marketing expense ise@&4.9 million, or 16.4%, from fiscal 2010, priihadue to higher amortization co:
related to software deployments and an increaadvertising spend which resulted in higher listamgl placement fees paid to commercial and
search engine websites such as eBay, Google and MSN

General and Administrative Expense

52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended
January 1, December 31
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
General and administrative expel $28,62¢ $ 31,96 $ 3,33 11.€%
Percent of net sal 10.9% 9.8% (1.1)%

General and administrative expense increased $li8mor 11.6% for fiscal 2011 compared to fis@@10. Excluding $12.9 million fro
WAG, the USAP general and administrative expenseedesed $3.6 million primarily due to lower legapense and depreciation and
amortization.

Fulfillment Expens:

52 Weeks
52 Weeks
Ended Ended
January December
1, 31,
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Fulfillment expenst $14,94¢ $19,16¢ $4,21¢ 28.2%
Percent of net sal¢ 5.7% 5.9% 0.2%

Fulfillment expense increased $4.2 million, or 28,Zor fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010. Exchgd$3.9 million of fulfillment
expense from WAG, the USAP fulfillment expense @aged $2.0 million due to an increase in warehtals® expense in connection with the
WAG integration and higher depreciation and amatiin from software deployments.

Technology Expense

52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended
January 1, December 31
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Technology expens $ 5,90: $ 7.27: $1,37:2 23.2%
Percent of net sal¢ 2.3% 2.2% (0.1)%

Technology expense increased $1.4 million, or 23 2#discal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010. Exclggd$®.3 million of technology
expense from WAG, the USAP technology expense asa@ $0.4 million, however, as a percentage ofales, fiscal 2011 remained
consistent with fiscal 2010.
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Amortization of Intangible

52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended
January 1, December 31
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Amortization of intangible: $ 2,80/ $ 3,67 $ 86¢ 31.(%
Percent of net sale 1.1% 1.1% — %

Amortization of intangibles increased by $0.9 roiflj or 31.0%, in fiscal 2011, primarily due to d fiear of amortization expense in the
amount of $3.2 million related to the intangiblsets acquired in connection with our acquisitioM6&G in August 2010.

Impairment loss on Intangible

Impairment loss on intangibles consists of a fi&dl1 non-cash impairment charge related to ceviéht trade name intangible assets
in the amount of $5.1 million. See further detaitNote 6- Goodwill and Intangiblesdf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Part 1V, Item 15 of this report.

Other Expense, Net

52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended
January 1, December 31
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Other expense, n $ (280 $ (654) $ (379 (133.6)%
Percent of net sal¢ (0.1)% (0.2% (0.)%

Other expense, net increased $0.4 million, or ¥83f6r fiscal 2011 compared to fiscal 2010, priryadiue to the interest of $1.1 million
paid in connection with the Company’s credit fagikxecuted in August 2010.

Income Tax Provision (Benef

52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended
January 1, December 31
2011 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Income tax provision (benefi $12,21¢ $ (1,519 $(13,73() (112.9)%
Percent of net sal¢ 4.7% (0.55% (5.2%

For fiscal 2010 and 2011, the effective tax ratetiie Company was (715.3)% and 9.1%, respectivdlg. Companys effective tax rate
significantly higher in fiscal 2010 than the U.8déral statutory rate primarily due to the recagnibf a valuation allowance of $13.6 million.
Prior to the acquisition of WAG, the Company coumidd that it was more likely than not that we worddlize the deferred tax assets in all
jurisdictions. However, with the acquisition of WABased largely on the weight of the combined cativé thre-year adjusted loss position,
it was determined that it was not more likely tima that the Company would realize its net defeteedassets. Therefore, a valuation
allowance balance of $18.3 million was recordedfakanuary 1, 2011, of which $4.7 million was retEa against the acquired deferred tax
assets of WAG as of August 12, 2010. Based onghesletermination, an additional valuation alloveaof£$5.7 million was recorded in fist
2011, resulting in a valuation allowance balanc82#.8 million at December 31, 2011. The Compasyfsctive tax rate for fiscal 2011 differs
from the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily agsult of the recording of the $5.7 million valioat allowance against the Company’s deferred
tax assets. Additionally, the Company’s fiscal 2844 benefit was substantially the result of thel$&illion impairment loss, as further
discussed above Ittmpairment loss on Intangibles”

Income tax provision (benefit) differs from the ambthat would result from applying the federalstary rate as follows:

52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended
January 2, January 1, December 31
2010 2011 2011
(in thousands)
Income tax at U.S. federal statutory r $ 1,511 $ (68)) $ (5,66))
Shar-based compensatic 1,08¢ (93) 21
State income tax, net of federal tax efi 72¢ (759) (1,629
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52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended
January 2, January 1, December 31
2010 2011 2011
(in thousands)
Tax exempt intere: (16) (8) 3
Foreign tax (163) (210 (20¢)
Non deductible acquisition cos — 25¢ —
Other (24) 1 14C
Change in valuation allowan — 13,61( 5,72¢
Effective tax provision (benefi $ 3,12¢ $12,21¢ $ (1,510

The Company’s effective tax rate was impacted lopiine taxes incurred in foreign and state jurisditgi With respect to the income of
its foreign subsidiaries, the Company takes thétipoghat the earnings of the foreign subsidiages permanently invested in that jurisdiction.
Additionally, the foreign subsidiaries are currgntl a cumulative deficit earning and profits pmsitfor tax purposes. As a result, no additional
income taxes have been provided on the possib&riagion of these earnings to the parent compa@hg.favorable impact of foreign taxes is
due in large part to a tax holiday in the Philigsnwhich was effective through September 2011.Qdrapany is in the process of applying
a one year extension. Although management expeetsxtension to be approved based on its discussthrthe foreign taxing authority, the
full Philippines tax rate has been applied to themgs after the expiration of the initial taxidaly. The impact of this tax holiday decreased
foreign taxes by $136,000, $182,000 and $144,006€<cal 2009, fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011, resprety. The benefit of the tax holiday on
income (loss) per share (diluted) was immateriatfie related years.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had no materi@cognized tax benefits, interest or penaleéésted to federal and state income
tax matters.

Fifty-Two Weeks Ended January 2, 2010 Comparedhe Fifty-Two Weeks Ended January 1, 2011
Net Sales and Gross Marg

52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended
January 2, January 1, $ Change % Change
2010 2011
(in thousands)
Net sales $176,28t¢ $262,27" $85,98¢ 48.8%
Cost of sale: 112,41t 172,66¢ 60,25: 53.6%
Gross profil $ 63,87 $ 89,60¢ $25,73¢ 40.2%
Gross margit 36.2% 34.2% (2.0%

Net sales increased $86.0 million, or 48.8%, fecdi 2010 compared to fiscal 2009. Excluding $38illion of sales from WAG, the net
sales for fiscal 2010 were $223.2 million, an s of 26.6% over fiscal 2009 net sales due teasms of $42.5 million, or 25.9%, in online
sales and $4.4 million, or 36%, in offline salesjah consist of our Kool-Vue™ and wholesale operai Our online sales consist of our e-
commerce, online marketplace sales channels amtecmdvertising. Our e-commerce channel includesetommerce websites supported by
our call-center sales agents who generate crokargklip-sell opportunities. Our online marketptacensist primarily of auction and other
third-party websites. Online advertising is soldoom e-commerce websites.

The increase in online sales resulted from an asgef 355,130, or 24.8%, in total placed ordersnerease of 8.0 million, or 7.6%, in
unique visitors, partially offset by a decreas&®®4, or 1.7%, in average order value from fi&e49 to fiscal 2010. The increases in total
placed orders and the unique visitors resulted frmreased marketing spend driving higher paiditraind better content on our websites
driving more organic traffic. The increases wesoattributed to more effective pricing, betteratay data and a better customer experience.
Our average order value declined due to increageithg competition and increased sales of lowet dogct sourced products.

Gross profit increased 40.3% from fiscal 2009 sedi 2010. Excluding the acquisition of WAG, grpssfit was $75.8 million, an
increase of 18.6%. Gross margin declined 2.0% ta8%%f net sales compared with fiscal 2009. Exelgdhe acquisition of WAG, gross
margin was 34.0% for fiscal 2010. Gross margin wafavorably impacted by increased freight expemseaadiscontinuation of high margin
loyalty programs in fiscal 2010.

33



Table of Contents

Marketing Expens

52 Weeks Ende 52 Weeks Ende
January 2, January 1,
2010 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Marketing expens $ 23,41¢ $ 38,757 $15,33¢ 65.€%
Percent of net sal¢ 13.2% 14.8% 1.5%

Marketing expense increased $15.3 million, or 65.8%fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009. Exclgd$8.6 million of marketing
expense from WAG, the marketing expense increa6etirfillion or 2.9% from fiscal 2009, primarily dte higher amortization costs related
to software deployments and an increase in maigsiiend which resulted in higher listing and plaeetriees paid to commercial and search
engine websites such as eBay, Google and MSN.

General and Administrative Expense

52 Weeks Ende 52 Weeks Ende
January 2, January 1,
2010 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
General and administrative expel $ 19,64( $ 28,62¢ $ 8,98¢ 45.£%
Percent of net sal¢ 11.1% 10.9% (0.2%

General and administrative expense increased $#liormor 45.8% for fiscal 2010 compared to fis@809. Excluding $5.9 million from
WAG, the general and administrative expense ineasimarily due to the acquisition and integratiasts of $1.4 million related to our
acquisition of WAG.

Fulfillment Expens:

52 Weeks Ende 52 Weeks Ende
January 2, January 1,
2010 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Fulfillment expenst $ 11,437 $ 14,94¢ $ 3,50¢ 31.1%
Percent of net sal¢ 6.5% 5.7% (0.8%

Fulfillment expense increased $3.5 million, or 34,%or fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009. Exchgd$1.7 million of fulfillment
expense from WAG, the fulfillment expense increade® million due to an increase in external lalpartially offset by the fixed cost levere
from higher sales during fiscal 2010. The increasexternal labor islue to higher need of workforce at our distributi@mters in fiscal 2010
line with the increase in our inventory.

Technology Expense

52 Weeks Ende 52 Weeks Ende
January 2, January 1,
2010 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Technology expens $ 4,467 $ 5,902 $1,43¢ 32.2%
Percent of net sal¢ 2.5% 2.3% (0.2%

Technology expense increased $1.4 million, or 32@&%iscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009. Exclud#ig3 million of technology
expense from WAG, the technology expense for fi264l0 remained consistent from fiscal 2009.
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Amortization of Intangible

52 Weeks Ende 52 Weeks Ende
January 2, January 1,
2010 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Amortization of intangible: $ 661 $ 2,80« $2,14% 324.2%
Percent of net sal¢ 0.4% 1.1% 0.7%

Amortization of intangibles and impairment lossrgmsed by $2.1 million, or 324.2%, in fiscal 20p@marily due to the amortization
expense of $2.3 million related to the intangitdeeds acquired in connection with our acquisitibWéG in August 2010.

Other Income (Expense)

52 Weeks Ende 52 Weeks Ende
January 2, January 1,
2010 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Other income (expens $ 191 $ (280) $ (47)) (246.0%
Percent of net sal¢ 0.1% (0.1)% (0.2%

Other income, net decreased $0.5 million, or 246@%iscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009, primadlye to the interest of $0.4 million
paid in connection with the Company'’s credit fagikxecuted in August 2010.

Income Tax Provisio

52 Weeks Ende 52 Weeks Ende
January 2, January 1,
2010 2011 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Income tax provisiol $ 3,12 $ 12,21¢ $ 9,09t 291.2%
Percent of net sal¢ 1.8% 4.7% 2.5%

For fiscal 2010 and 2009, the effective tax ratettie Company was (715.3)% and 70.33%, respectifélg Companys effective tax rat
is significantly higher in fiscal 2010 than the Uf&deral statutory rate primarily due to the rattign of a valuation allowance of $13.6
million. Prior to the acquisition of WAG, the Compaconcluded that it was more likely than not tivatwould realize the deferred tax asse
all jurisdictions. However, with the acquisition WAG, based largely on the weight of the combinechalative three-year adjusted loss
position, it was determined that it was not mokellf than not that the Company would realize itsdeferred tax assets. Therefore, a valuation
allowance of $18.3 million was recorded as of Janda2011, of which $4.7 million was recorded agaithe acquired deferred tax assets of
WAG as of August 12, 2010.

Income tax (benefit) expense differs from the antdliat would result from applying the federal staty rate as follows:

Year 52 Weeks 52 Weeks

Ended Ended Ended
December 31 January 2, January 1,

2008 2010 2011

(in thousands)

Income tax at U.S. federal statutory r $ (9,769 $ 1,511 $ (68)
Shar-based compensatic 161 1,08¢ (93
State income tax, net of federal tax efi (2,880 72¢ (75¢
Tax exempt intere: (220 (16) (8
Foreign tax 60 (163) (210
Non deductible acquisition cos — — 25¢
Other (27%) (29 1
Change in valuation allowan — — 13,61(
Effective tax (benefit) provisio $ (11,82) $ 3,128 $12,21¢

The Company’s effective tax rate was impacted lopiine taxes incurred in foreign and state jurisditgi With respect to the income of
its foreign subsidiaries, the Company takes thétipoghat the earnings of the foreign subsidiages permanently invested in that jurisdiction.
As a result, no additional income taxes have beevigeed on the possible repatriation of these egsito the parent company. The Company
has not calculated the amount of deferred taxlitglthat would result from such repatriation aslsaletermination is not practicable.
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The favorable impact of foreign taxes is due igéapart to a tax holiday in the Philippines, whigkeffective through September 2011.
The term of the tax holiday is four years, providsdan incentive for new business and no furttggrirements exist to maintain the tax holic
The impact of this tax holiday decreased foreigreseby $0, $136,000 and $182,000 for calendar 3@@8, fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2010,
respectively. The benefit of the tax holiday oninebme per share (diluted) was immaterial forrilated years.

As of January 1, 2011, the Company had no matgnigdcognized tax benefits, interest or penaltieged to federal and state income tax
matters.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources of Liquidity

In fiscal 2011, we funded our operations with castl cash equivalents generated from operationgdnyears, credit facilities and
capital lease financings. We had cash and caskalguts of $10.3 million as of December 31, 20&presenting a $7.3 million decrease from
$17.6 million of cash and cash equivalents as wfidey 1, 2011. The decrease in cash and cash éeptivavas primarily due to capital
expenditures and pay down of long-term debt, girtidfset by positive cash flows from working cégdiand net proceeds from redemption of
our ARPS. We had no balance outstanding under ank line of credit at any time during the fifty-twaeeks ended December 31, 2011.

On May 2, 2011, we filed a shelf registration statat covering the offer and sale of up to $200iamlbf common stock with the SEC.
The shelf registration was declared effective ey $iEEC on August 10, 2011. We have no immediatesmpaurrent commitments to sell this
common stock. The terms of any offering under tifsegistration statement will be determinedhat time of the offering and disclosed in a
prospectus supplement filed with the SEC.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes the key cash flowtrioe from our consolidated statements of cash flowfiscal 2009, fiscal 2010 and
fiscal 2011, respectively, ended:

January 2, January 1, December 31
2010 2011 2011
(in thousands
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 11,587 $ (1,709 $ 10,37¢
Net cash used in investing activiti (18,079 (31,049 (11,529
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 11F 23,88: (6,100
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 158 21¢ (14
Net decrease in cash and cash equiva $ (6,229 $ (8,656 $  (7,260)

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities increasgdpproximately $12.1 million for fiscal 2011, @smpared to fiscal 2010. The
increase over prior year was primarily due to aisicant decrease in the purchase of inventoryamdnprovement in timing of payments on
accounts payable. This was partially offset byramdase in accounts receivable and a reductioatierarnings in fiscal 2011 compared to 2!
after adjusting for non-cash items such as depiienisamortization, impairment loss on intangiblgisare-based compensation and deferred
income taxes.

Net cash provided by operating activities decredseapproximately $13.3 million for fiscal 2010, asmpared to fiscal 2009. The
decrease was primarily due to an increase in paechiinventory, which was offset by an improvemiarttming of payments on accounts
payable and net earnings in fiscal 2010 after didigigor non-cash items such as depreciation anartation and deferred income taxes.
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Investing Activitie:

Net cash used in investing activities decreaseapmpyoximately $19.5 million for fiscal 2011, as quared to fiscal 2010. The decrease
was primarily due to the cash paid for the WAG asitjon in fiscal 2010, which was partially offdey net proceeds from the sale of
marketable securities.

Net cash used in investing activities increasedyyroximately $13.0 million for fiscal 2010, as qmared to fiscal 2009. The increase
was primarily due to our acquisition of WAG and ghaise of property and equipment, which was partidfset by proceeds from the sale of
marketable securities.

Financing Activities

Net cash flow from financing activities decreasgdapproximately $30.0 million in fiscal 2011, aswoared to fiscal 2010. The decrease
was primarily due to borrowings of $25 million umdrir credit facility in fiscal 2010 and the reldpayments made in fiscal 2011.

Net cash provided by financing activities increabgdpproximately $23.8 million for fiscal 2010, @smpared to fiscal 2009. The
increase was primarily due to borrowings of $28iomilunder our credit facility in fiscal 2010.

Funding Requiremen

As of December 31, 2011, our working capital wag $8illion. The historical seasonality in our buesss during the year can cause cash
and cash equivalents, inventory and accounts payalfluctuate, resulting in changes in our workiagital.

In August 2010, the Company and Silicon Valley Béfdank”) entered into a Loan and Security Agreetr@me “Loan Agreement’and
other definitive documentation for a $35 milliorcaeed credit facility (the “Facility”). The Facilitis comprised of a term loan in the original
principal amount of $25 million and a revolvingdinf credit with availability up to $10 million. EhFacility has a final maturity date of
June 30, 2014, and borrowings under the Faciligr [rgerest, at the election of the Company, at@iB(with a floor of 1.25%) plus a margin
of from 2.00% to 3.00% per annum, or at the Wak&tJournal Prime Rate plus a margin of from 1.80%.00% per annum, based upon the
Companys maximum funded debt ratio. An unused revolving fiee of 0.375% per annum is payable on the undmmmitted amount of tt
revolving line of credit. Interest on outstandirgytowings under the term loan and the revolving lirfi credit is payable no less than quarterly,
and the outstanding principal of the term loan aimed over four years and payable quarterly, with autstanding amount under the Facilit
be paid in full on the final maturity date. Borrowgs under the Facility are secured by liens odaasalets of the Company, including shares of
stock in each of the Company’s subsidiaries. Teth@fCompany’s subsidiaries are acting as co-barswnder the Facility. At December 31,
2011, the LIBOR rate and the margin were 1.25%(flate) and 2.5% per annum, respectively. The Gomad no borrowings on the
revolving line of credit during fiscal 2011. Thewaining term loan balance was $17.9 million as e€&@nber 31, 2011 and is to be repaid
according to the following schedule (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period
Total 2012 2013 2014

$17,87¢ $6,25( $6,87¢ $4,75(

The Loan Agreement requires the Company to comjily asnumber of restrictive covenants, includingaficial covenants related to
maximum funded debt to consolidated EBITDA, ligtydiand consolidated fixed charge coverage ratiegative pledge requirements;
requirements to deliver quarterly and annual cadat#d financial statements; requirements to mairgdequate insurances; prohibitions on
changes in the business and disposition of the @ogip assets; and other customary covenants. Tae Agreement also requires the
Company to obtain a prior written consent from Baak when the Company determines to pay any dids@m or make any distribution
related to its common stock. The Loan Agreemerities usual and customary events of defaults anddies for facilities of this nature. In
February and October 2011, the Company and the Bargted into Amendment No. 1 and Amendment Neeshectively, to Loan and
Security Agreement and Limited Waiver (collectivelye “Amendments”). The Amendments waived the Camyfs lack of compliance with
the consolidated fixed charge ratio covenant inLth@n Agreement as of January 1, 2011 and Octok# 111 to more readily accommodate
Company'’s integration of the WAG acquisition. Inde@enber 2011, the Company and the Bank entereddimiendment No. 3 to Loan and
Security Agreement, to amend the Loan Agreemerdananded (the “Third Amendment”). The Third Amendir@mends the Company’s
permitted indebtedness to allow debt to certairioianks in connection with a vendor purchasind papgram in an aggregate amount not to
exceed $2,500,000 at any one time outstandingtheoquarter ended December 31, 2011, the Compasynw@mpliance with all covenants,
as amended, under the Loan Agreement.
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During March 2012, the Company determined it wasbable that the consolidated fixed charge coveratje would not be in
compliance with the required 1.50:1.00 minimum ldee the quarter ending March 31, 2012. This deiaation was made during the
Company’s monitoring of their covenants, which ut#s monthly calculations of “Consolidated EBITDgrbjected to quarter end. As a res
on March 23, 2012, the Company and the Bank eniateddmendment No. 4 to Loan and Security Agreenftre “Fourth Amendment”JThe
Fourth Amendment reduced the required consolidiited charge coverage ratio to a minimum of 1.0W0for the one quarter ending March
31, 2012 and to 1.25:1.00 for each quarter endiagehfter. Based on the current covenant calcalgtiie Company’s consolidated fixed
charge coverage ratio is projected to be in compéaas of March 31, 2012. All financial covenamsexpected to be in compliance as of
March 31, 2012 and through the remainder of fi2€dl2.

The Company expects to be in compliance with tharftial covenants, as amended, in the Loan Agretetimeugh the remaining term
the Loan Agreement, however, it is possible thiatesmch of the financial covenants may occur inftiere, should the Company’s forecasted
EBITDA levels not be achieved. If the Company brescany of the covenants under the Loan Agreenmehisaunable to obtain waivers from
the Bank, the Bank will be able to exercise thigints and remedies under the Loan Agreement, iimodua call provision on outstanding debt,
which would have a material adverse effect on thm@any’s business and financial condition. S¢&te 7 — Borrowings”of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Ratem 15 of this report for additional informati.

In September 2011, we recorded contract cancellatists of $1.5 million in general and administratexpenses due to the termination
of WAG's sublease agreement related to its fornoeparate offices in Chicago, Illinois. The contraaencellation costs were paid during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2011.

We anticipate that funds generated from operatiomscash on hand will be sufficient to meet ourkimay capital needs, expected capital
expenditures and the servicing of the debt foeast the next twelve months. Our future capitaliiregnents may, however, vary materially
from those now planned or anticipated. Changesiiroperating plans, lower than anticipated netssaldditional acquisitions, increased
expenses, continued or worsened economic conditirather events, including those described irskRiactors” included in Part I, Item 1A
may cause us to seek debt or equity financinglsarfuture. Financings may not be available on deddg terms, on a timely basis, or at all,
our failure to raise adequate capital when needattmegatively impact our growth plans and ouaficial condition and results of operations.
As of December 31, 2011, our $2.1 million (fairwe) of ARPS investments remain classified as l@mgrinvestments as a result of failed
auctions and market liquidity issues. We may neehenmediate access to those funds.

We also plan to continue our technology investmants effort to improve our websites, operatingteyns, and backend platforms.

Debt and Available Borrowing Resourc

Long-term debt decreased by $6.4 million, whilersiterm debt remained relatively flat for fiscalZZ0as compared to fiscal 2010. The
decrease is due to payments made on our fiscal 2&06wings. The Company had no new borrowingssicaf 2011.

Our debt-equity ratio is calculated as the carryialyie of debt divided by the carrying value of igguAs of December 31, 2011, our
debt-equity ratio was 0.30. As of fiscal year-e®d @ our debt-equity ratio was 0.33.

As of December 31, 2011, an unused revolving lineredit with availability up to $10 million was ailable to the Company to obtain
short-term and long-term financings if we need &ddal liquidity.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations
The following table sets forth our contractual cabligations and commercial commitments as of Ddmar31, 2011:

Payment Due By Period (in thousands)

Less thar More than
Contractual Obligations: Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Principal payments on long-term débt $17,87¢  $6,25( $11,62¢ $ — $ —
Interest payments on lo-term debi@ 1,02( 591 42¢ — —
Operating lease obligatior® 5,88¢ 1,658 2,41: 1,81¢ —
Capital lease obligatior® 181 145 38 — —

@ Amounts represent the expected principal cash patamelating to our long-term debt and do not idelany fair value adjustments or
discounts and premium

@ Amounts represent the expected interest cash pagmaating to our long-term debt. The interest mttDecember 31, 2011 was used to

calculate the expected future interest payme

Commitments under operating leases relate primarityur lease on our principal facility in Cars@glifornia, our distribution centers

Chesapeake, Virginia, LaSalle, lllinois and Indegerce, Ohio, and our call center in the Philippii

@ Ccommitments under capital leases relate to equiptease agreements and include intel

®
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Seasonality

We believe our business is subject to seasonalfitions. We have historically experienced higlees of body parts in winter months
when inclement weather and hazardous road conditigrically result in more automobile collisionsigine parts and performance parts and
accessories have historically experienced highes $a the summer months when consumers have rnnoeetd undertake elective projects to
maintain and enhance the performance of their aoibiles and the warmer weather during that timeigdaicive for such projects. We expect
the historical seasonality trends to continue teehematerial impact on our financial condition aeslults of operations during the reporting
periods in any given year.

Inflation

Inflation has not had a material impact upon owerafing results, and we do not expect it to hawh sun impact in the near future. We
cannot assure you that our business will not bectdtl by inflation in the future.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Market RiskMarket risk represents the risk of loss that magdnt our financial position, results of operationgash flows due to
adverse changes in financial commodity market praced rates. We are exposed to market risk priynarihe area of changes in U.S. interest
rates and conditions in the credit markets. We h#se some exposure related to foreign currencyfations. We do not have derivative
financial instruments. Under our current policieg, do not use interest rate derivative instrumemtaanage exposure to interest rate changes.
We attempt to increase the safety and preservafionr invested principal funds by limiting defatikk, market risk and reinvestment risk. We
mitigate default risk by investing in investmenade securities and mutual funds that hold debtritexsu

Interest Rate RislOur investment securities generally consist of fgggde ARPS. As of December 31, 2011, our long-terastments
included $2.1 million (fair value) of investments ARPS, which consist of high-grade (A or AAA ratedllateralized debt obligations issued
by municipalities and state agencies. Our ARPS laavi@terest rate that is reset in short intertlalsugh auctions. The current conditions in
the global credit markets have prevented some foxefom liquidating their holdings of ARPS becailke amount of securities submitted for
sale has exceeded the amount of purchase ordalref® securities. If there is insufficient demé&rdhe securities at the time of an auction,
the auction may not be completed and the inteedss may be reset to predetermined higher rateen\ictions for these securities fail, the
investments may not be readily convertible to aasfil a future auction of these investments is sastul or they are redeemed or mature. I
credit ratings of the security issuers deteriogate any decline in market value is determined tother- thantemporary, we would be requir
to adjust the carrying value of the investmentdigloan impairment charge.

In February 2008, we were informed that there wasfficient demand at auctions for four of our higlade ARPS, representing
approximately $7.8 million (par value). As a restiiese affected securities are currently not diquid the interest rates have been reset to the
predetermined higher rates. For the period Jun@@IB through December 31, 2011, we have receiagthpredemptions at par value on all
four ARPS holdings totaling approximately $5.7 moill. The remaining principal balance on our ARP&gproximately $2.1 million (par
value) as of December 31, 2011.

In the event we need to access the funds thahame illiquid state, we will not be able to do sithout the possible loss of principal until
a future auction for these investments is successtiney are redeemed by the issuer. At this tima@nagement has not obtained sufficient
evidence to conclude that these investments aer-titan-temporarily impaired or that they will rim settled in the short term, although the
market for these investments is presently uncertbime are unable to sell these securities innttagket or they are not redeemed, then we may
be required to hold them indefinitely. We do nopeat to have a need to access these funds fortmpetgourposes for the foreseeable future.
We plan to continue to monitor and evaluate thesestments on an ongoing basis for impairment. @aseour ability to access our cash and
other short-term investments, our expected castsfland our other sources of cash, we do not aateeithat the potential illiquidity of these
investments will affect our ability to execute aurrent business plan. However, due to the illigyioh the market, we have recorded $21,000
of unrealized losses on our ARPS investment paotfad of December 31, 2011, resulting in a léexgr investment balance at fair value of ¢
million at December 31, 2011.

As of December 31, 2011, we had a balance of $hifll®n outstanding under a term loan under ouditracility with Silicon Valley
Bank (“Bank”). The interest rate on this loan isnputed at a LIBOR loan rate, adjusted by featupesified in our loan agreement. At our
current debt level as of December 31, 2011, a H3slpoint increase in interest rates would noenty affect our earnings and cash flows.
If, however, we are unable to meet the covenantsiifoan agreement, we would be required to retieigathe terms of credit under the loan
agreement, including the interest rate. There eandiassurance that any renegotiated terms oftevedid not materially impact our earnings.
In February and October 2011, the Company and #mk Bntered into Amendment No. 1 and Amendment2Nrespectively, to Loan and
Security Agreement and Limited Waiver (collectivelye “Amendments”). The Amendments waived the Camyfs lack of compliance with
the consolidated fixed charge ratio covenant inLib@n Agreement as of January 1, 2011 and Octok20111 to more readily accommodate
Company'’s integration of the WAG acquisition. Inde@enber 2011, the Company and the Bank entereddmiendment No. 3 to Loan and
Security Agreement, to amend the Loan Agreemerdnended (the “Third Amendment”). The Third Amendingmends the Company’s
permitted indebtedness to allow debt to certaiemollanks in connection with a vendor purchasing pangram in an aggregate amount not to
exceed $2,500,000 at any one time outstandingtheoquarter ended December 31, 2011, the Compasynw@mpliance with all covenants,
as amended, under the loan agreement.

During March 2012, the Company determined it waxbable that the consolidated fixed charge coveratie would not be in
compliance with the required 1.50:1.00 minimum ldge the quarter ending March 31, 2012. This daiaation was made during the
Company’s monitoring of their covenants, which ut#s monthly calculations of “Consolidated EBITDgrbjected to quarter end. As a res
on March 23, 2012, the Company and the Bank eniateddmendment No. 4 to Loan and Security Agreenfdre “Fourth Amendment”)The
Fourth Amendment reduced the required consolidiited charge coverage ratio to a minimum of 1.0@0for the one quarter ending March
31, 2012 and to 1.25:1.00 for each quarter endiagehfter. Based on the current covenant calcalgtiie Company’s consolidated fixed
charge coverage ratio is projected to be in compéaas of March 31, 2012. All financial covenantsexpected to be in compliance as of
March 31, 2012 and through the remainder of fi2€dl2.

The Company expects to be in compliance with tharftial covenants, as amended, in the loan agrédhtrengh the remaining term of
the loan agreement, however, it is possible thatach of the financial covenants may occur inftinere, should the Company’s forecasted
EBITDA levels not be achieved. If the Company brescany of the covenants under the loan agreemdrisainable to obtain waivers from
the Bank, the Bank will be able to exercise thigihts and remedies under the loan agreement, imgwcall provision on outstanding debt,
which would have a material adverse effect on thm@any’s business and financial condition. S¢&te 7 — Borrowings”of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Rartem 15 of this report for additional informati.
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Foreign Currency RiskOur purchases of auto parts from our Asian supphee denominated in U.S. dollars; however, a chamthe
foreign currency exchange rates could impact oodget costs over time. Our financial reporting eaay is the U.S. dollar and changes in
exchange rates significantly affect our reportesiiits and consolidated trends. For example, itit& dollar weakens year- over- year relative
to currencies in our international locations, oomsolidated net sales, gross profit, and operatikpgnses will be higher than if currencies had
remained constant. Likewise, if the U.S. Dollaestithens year- over- year relative to currenciesiminternational locations, our consolidated
net sales, gross profit and operating expensedwilbwer than if currencies had remained cons@ut.operating expenses in the Philippines
are generally paid in Philippine Pesos, and agxicbange rate fluctuates, it adversely or favor@hlyacts our operating results. In light of the
above, we believe that a fluctuation of 10% inReso/U.S. dollar exchange rate would have apprdeigna $1.2 million impact on our
Philippine operating expenses for fiscal 2011. Oanadian website sales are denominated in Canddikms; however, fluctuations in
exchange rates from these operations are only &eghém have a nominal impact on our operating teslle to the relatively small number of
sales generated in Canada. We believe it is impbiteevaluate our operating results and growtbsraefore and after the effect of currency
changes.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements required by this lteme3sat forth in Part IV, ltem 15 of this report earé hereby incorporated into this Item 8
by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduregydesi to provide reasonable assurance that infoomatiquired to be disclosed in
reports filed with the SEC under the SecuritiestExge Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Aisttigcorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the specified time periods, #rad such information is accumulated and commuedtto management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ggeopriate, to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure. Our management, with
the participation of our Chief Executive Officerda@hief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectigss of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of December 31, 2011 pursuant toEalel5 and 15d5 of the Exchange Act. Based on that evaluatioen GEO and CFO ha
concluded that, as of such date, our disclosurg@srand procedures were effective to meet theatives for which they were designed and
operated at the reasonable assurance level.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnagidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934rasnded). We assessed the effectiveness of eanahtcontrol over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2011, based on the “Internal Cortrdntegrated Framework” issued by the Committe8monsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the “COSO framework”). Thisessment was conducted utilizing our documentatigrolicies and procedures, risk
control matrices, gap analysis, key process walkeihphs and management’s knowledge of and interaetith its controls and testing of our
key controls.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projection of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future peri@subject to the risk that controls may becomeednadte because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinatibdeficiencies, in internal control over finarlaieporting, such that there is
reasonable possibility that a material misstatero&éptr annual or interim financial statements wit be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Based on such assessment and criteria, Brapaghas concluded that the internal controls imancial reporting were effective, and
were operating at the reasonable assurance leeélZacember 31, 2011. Our independent registeabtiqpaccounting firm, Deloitte &
Touche LLP, has included an attestation reportwrirdernal controls over financial reporting, whiis included below.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company monitors and evaluates on an ongoisig fia internal control over financial reportimgdrder to improve its overall
effectiveness. In the course of these evaluatitvesCompany modifies and refines its internal psses as conditions warrant. As required by
Rule 13a-15(d), the Company’s management, incluttiegChief Executive Officer and the Chief Finah€#ficer, also conducted an
evaluation of the Company’s internal control oveahcial reporting to determine whether any chamgesirred during the quarter ended
December 31, 2011 that have materially affectedremreasonably likely to materially affect, then@mny’s internal control over financial
reporting. Based on that evaluation, there has heesuch change during the period covered by dpert.

42



Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.
Carson, California

We have audited the internal control over financéglorting of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc and sdiasies (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2011 based on criteria establishédémal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Comjzamanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financi
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigsred internal control over financial reportingglided in the accompanyindanagement’s
Report on Internal Control Over Financial ReportirOur responsibility is to express an opinion on@wmpany'’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetiefenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness et@st#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtdfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancesdlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supemnvidi the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or pars performing similar functions, and effected Iy tompany’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakoaaturance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles. A comgfsaimternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(th) pertain to the maintenance of records thagasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of tree&sof the company; (2) provide reasonable asseriat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statetsin accordance with generally accepted acaogiptinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordgdordance with authorizations of management amdtdirs of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prereatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiosg, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on ttentiial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcolhover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatemdue to error or fraud may not be preventatbtected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenekthe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk that the
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fic&al reporting as of December 31,
2011, based on the criteria establishethternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifribe
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated financial statements as of and foy#e ended December 31, 2011 of the Company angepart dated March 26, 2012
expressed an unqualified opinion on those finarstetements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLF

Los Angeles, CA
March 26, 2012
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Entry into a Material Definitive Agreement

On March 23, 2012, the Company and Silicon ValleyB(the “Bank”) entered into an Amendment No. 4¢an and Security
Agreement (the “Fourth Amendment”) pursuant to white Company and the Bank amended that certain &nd Security Agreement dated
August 13, 2010, as amended by that certain AmentiMe. 1 to Loan and Security Agreement and Limiféaiver dated February 28, 2011,
that certain Amendment No. 2 to Loan Security Agrest and Limited Waiver dated November 7, 2011thaticertain Amendment No. 3 to
Loan Security Agreement and Limited Waiver dateddeber 29, 2011, each of which has been previdilstyby the Company with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. The Fourth Aimemt amended Section 6.7 (Financial Covenantgsetion (c) Consolidated Fixed
Charge Coverage Ratio, to reduce the previous let&ls as follows: for the one quarter period agdlarch 31, 2012 to 1.00:1.00, and for
one quarter period ending each fiscal quarter #fereto 1.25:1.00. Sé®lote 7 — Borrowings”of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Part IV, Item 15 of thisareffor additional information.

The Fourth Amendment has been filed as Exhibit@ ith this report, and is included in Part IV,ntel5 “Exhibits, Financial Statement
Schedules”.

PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

(a) Identification of DirectorsThe information under the caption “Election of Qiters,” appearing in the Proxy Statement (“Proxy
Statement”), is hereby incorporated by referente Froxy Statement will be filed with the SEC withi20 days from the end of fiscal year
2011.

(b) Identification of Executive Officers and Certaig@ficant Employeed he information under the caption “Executive Conmgagion
and Other Information—Executive Officers,” appegrin the Proxy Statement, is hereby incorporatedefigrence.

(c) Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Put. information under the caption “Section 16(ah&f&ial Ownership Reporting
Compliance,” appearing in the Proxy Statementgigby incorporated by reference.

(d) Code of Ethics The information under the caption “Corporate Goaace — Code of Ethics and Business Conduct,”appgin the
Proxy Statement, is hereby incorporated by refexrenc

(e) Board CommitteesThe information under the caption “Corporate Gaaeice — Board Committees and Meetings,” appeainitige
Proxy Statement, is hereby incorporated by referenc

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information under the caption “Executive Comgaion and Other Information”, appearing in thexyrStatement, is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information under the captions “Equity CompéiogaPlans” and “Ownership of Securities by Certaemeficial Owners and
Management,” appearing in the Proxy Statemenhdsrporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information under the captions “Corporate Goaece — Director Independence” and “Certain Retatiips and Related
Transactions,” appearing in the Proxy Statemercigrporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information under the caption “Fees Paid tepehdent Registered Public Accounting Firm,” apipgan the Proxy Statement, is
incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 15.

PART IV

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statementg he following financial statements of U.S. Auto BaXetwork, Inc. are included in a separate sedaifahis
Annual Report on Form 10-K commencing on the pagisenced below:

Page
Report of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent regiistl public accounting firt F-1
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, independent registegpedlic accounting firn F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 1, 2@d December 31, 201 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for eacheoftiree years in the period ended December 31, F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for each of the three years in the periodeghDecember 31, 20: F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheottiree years in the period ended December 31, F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-8

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because they daneqoired or the required information is includeaur consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits.

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incomated by reference to the location indicated below

Exhibit
No.

2.1*

2.2

3.1

3.2

4.1*
10.1+*
10.2+*
10.3+*
10.4+*

10.5+*
10.8+*

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Acquisition Agreement dated May 19, 2006 by and ragnid.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Partsbin,,lon.the one hand,
and The Partsbin.com, Inc., All OEM Parts, IncwpoHost, Inc., Auto Parts Web Solutions, Inc., W&at Solutions, Inc.,
Everything Internet, LLC, Richard E. Pine, LowellMann, Brian Tinari and Todd Daugherty, on theeothanc

Stock Purchase Agreement executed August 2, 20bdgithe Acquisition Sub, WAG, Riverside and theeotstockholders ¢
WAG (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.57tte Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed witik Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 4, 20

Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incatjmor of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. as filed wihe Delaware
Secretary of State on February 14, 2007 (incorpdrby reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Annual ReporfForm 10-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Ap2I0D,7)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of U.S. Auto Parts bNiewnc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit ®2he Annual Repo
on Form 1-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarApril 2, 2007]

Specimen common stock certifice

U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 2006 Equity IncentRian

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the U.S. ARdots Network, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive PI

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option under th&UAuto Parts Network, Inc. 2006 Equity IncentRian.

Form of Acceleration Addendum to Stock Option Agneat under the U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 206ity Incentive
Plan.

U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 2007 Omnibus Plan famohs of agreemen
Offer Letter of Employment dated May 19, 2006 bd &etween U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Richiire:
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Exhibit
No.
10.9+*

10.10*
10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*
10.27t*

10.291*
10.32+*
10.33+

10.35*
10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39+

10.40+

10.41+

10.42+

10.43

10.44+

Description

Non-Competition Agreement dated May 19, 2006 by andragyrid.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Richard Plrmyell Mann,
Brian Tinari and Todd Daugher

Shareholde' s Release dated May 19, 2006 by and between U 18.Parts Network, Inc. and Richard P

Commercial Lease Agreement dated January 1, 20@hdpetween U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and@héoe Enterprise
LLC, amended effective February 1, 2(

Standard Industrial/Commercial Mi-Tenant Leas— Gross dated October 1, 2006 by and between U.%. Raitts Network
Inc. and Margay 2003, LLC, amended effective Fetyda2010

Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Leasésress dated July 12, 2004 by and between U.S. Ratts Network, In
and Isadore Socransky, amended effective Febry&91D

Lease dated November 30, 2004 by and between Wi8. Parts Network, Inc. and William Co:

Catalog License and Parts Purchase Agreement Natesimber 20, 2006 by and between U.S. Auto Partedi, Inc. and
WORLDPAC, Inc.

Services Agreement dated October 3, 2006 by avaddest U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Efficienbrier, Inc.
Offer Letter of Employment dated January 1, 200&bg between U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Houdkhavar

Form of Indemnification Agreement for Officers aDdectors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit3®to the Annual Report
on Form 1-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarMarch 15, 201C

Deeds of Assignment and Declarations of Trust ebeeL8eptember 2006 regarding MBS Tek Corporatiockstransfe!

Purchase Agreement, dated April 20, 2007, by anohgnt.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., Access Worldwi@@mmunications,
Inc. and their respective Philippine affiliatesc@nporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the @urbr Report on Form 10-Q
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMay 15, 2007

Lease Agreements, dated August 8, 2007, by and g@M@8 Tek Corporation and Roshan Commercial Cangofporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Repaorform 10-Q filed with the Securities and Excha@genmission on
August 2, 2007

Form of Suppliers’ Agreement entered into betwee®. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and certain of its Lb&sed suppliers and
primary drop-ship vendors (incorporated by refeestacExhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on For@aQ filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 27

Employment Agreement dated March 29, 2010 betwe&n Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Shane Evangetisb¢porated b
reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Quarterly Reporform 10Q filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioMay 12
2010)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated October2l®)7 between U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. anch8Havangelist
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to therént Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securitéesd Exchange
Commission on October 17, 20C

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated October2I®)7 (performance grant) between U.S. Auto Partsvdid, Inc. anc
Shane Evangelist (incorporated by reference tolkx®9.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filediwihe Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 17, 2C

2007 New Employee Incentive Plan (incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 99.5 to the Current Report omi¢-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Octoberdd?):.

Lease Agreement, dated October 11, 2007, by angebetMBS Tek Corporation and Averon Holding Corpiora
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to theaferly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Sedastand Exchange
Commission on November 14, 20(

Employment Agreement, dated March 29, 2010, betweeiCompany and Aaron Coleman (incorporated lsreefce to
Exhibit 10.44 to the Quarterly Report on Forn-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMay 12, 2010
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Exhibit
No

10.45

10.46

10.47+

10.48+

10.49

10.50+

10.51

10.52+

10.53+

10.54+

10.55

10.56

10.58

10.59

10.61

Description

Support Continuity Agreement, dated April 28, 2008tween the Company and Alexander Adegan (incatpdrby referenc
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on For-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiampril 28, 2008’

Consulting Agreement, dated April 28, 2008, amdrgCompany, uParts.com, Inc. and Alexander Adeigaorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current ReporfFomm 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange @dssion on April 28,
2008)

Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement, dated April 2808, between the Company and Alexander Adeganprficated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current ReporForm 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange @ussion on April 28,
2008)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated May 15,208y and between the Company and Shane Evan(jetistporatec
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Reporform 8-K filed with the Securities and Excha@m®mmission on May 15,
2008)

Stipulation of settlement in the matter entitleadré U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. Securities Latign, Case No. CV (-203(-
GW (JC) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 110.the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with ®ecurities and
Exchange Commission on November 6, 2C

Separation Agreement and Release of Claims, dadedrbber 9, 2008, between the Company and Michd&tGlane
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to therént Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securiteesd Exchange
Commission on December 9, 20(

Consulting Agreement, dated December 9, 2008, mtilee Company and Michael J. McClane (incorporbteckference ti
Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on For-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommisgiarDecember 9, 200:

Employment Agreement, dated March 29, 2010 betwleeiCompany and Theodore Sanders (incorporatedfbgence tc
Exhibit 10.53 to the Quarterly Report on Forn-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiMay 12, 2010

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated Februay2D09, between the Company and Theodore Sarideosgorated
by reference to Exhibit 10.63 to the Current ReparfForm 8-K filed with the Securities and Excha@pnmission on
February 17, 200¢

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (performance grateted February 16, 2009, between the Companyraaddore
Sanders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@o6#he Current Report on Form 8-K filed with thec8rities and Exchange
Commission on February 17, 20(

Commercial Lease Agreement dated December 16, 2p@8d between U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. ankléysindian
River, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit@®to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed witlet8ecurities and
Exchange Commission on March 26, 20

Commercial lease dated January 7, 2010 by and batWeS. Autoparts Network Philippines Corporatiod &obinsons Lan
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhilbif5b to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed wikte tSecurities and
Exchange Commission on March 15, 20

Guarantee executed August 2, 2010 by the Compangrfiorated by reference to Exhibit 10.58 to thenBany’s Current
Report on Form -K filed with Securities and Exchange CommissionAagust 4, 2010

Loan and Security Agreement, dated August 13, 2B&flyeen Bank, USAPN, ASAP, Go Fido Inc., Parts Bobo, Whitney.
Value, Private Label, Pacific, AutoMD, and Locald3oShops (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2@dsthe Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the Securities Exchange and Commissiorugust 17, 201(

Sublease Agreement dated September 22, 2011 byedween the Company and Timec Company Inc. ((irratpd by
reference to Exhibit 10.61 to the Company’s Quérteeport on Form 10-Q filed with the SecuritiescBange and
Commission on November 9, 201
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Exhibit
No.

10.63+

10.64

10.65

10.66

10.67

10.68+

10.71

10.72

10.73+

10.74+

10.75+

10.76

16.1

211
23.1
23.2

Description

2011 Base Salaries and Target Bonuses of certhgeis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@he Current Report ¢
Form &K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarDecember 9, 201!

Sublease dated December 4, 2007 by and betweeretayfVerks, Inc. and J.C. Whitney & Co. (incorgerhby reference t
Exhibit 10.64 to the Annual Report on Forn-K filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiarMarch 17, 2011

Second Amendment To Lease Agreement dated Febtu2608 by and between JCM Management LLC andr8i@lbncepts
Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 106%5hte Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Beties and Exchange
Commission on March 17, 201

Amendment No. 1 to Loan and Security Agreementlanmdted Waiver, dated February 28, 2011, by and rgn8ilicon Valley
Bank and U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., Automot8ecialty Accessories and Parts, Inc., Go Fida, Parts Bin, Inc., Lobo
Marketing, Inc., Whitney Automotive Group, Inc., Ma Solutions, Inc., Private Label Parts, Inc.,iff@8PL, Inc., AutoMD,
Inc., Local Body Shops, Inc. (incorporated by refere to Exhibit 10.70 to the Current Report on F8fk filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 4,

Buyout Agreement dated October 11, 2011 by betwreeCompany, Whitney Automotive Group Inc., andddigery
Communications, LLC. (incorporated by referenc&xdibit 10.67 to the Company’s Quarterly Reportramm 10-Q filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Nove@2011)

U.S. Auto Parts Network Inc. Director Payment Blattlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 80t&the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiomNovember 9, 201:

Amendment No 2. to Loan and Security Agreementlamdted Waiver, dated November 7, 2011, by and agn®iticon Valley
Bank and U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., Automot8ecialty Accessories and Parts, Inc., Go Fida, Parts Bin, Inc., Lobo
Marketing, Inc., Whitney Automotive Group, Inc.j\Wte Label Parts, Inc., Pacific 3PL, Inc., AutoMB¢., and Local Body
Shops, Inc. (incorporated by reference to ExhiBi71 to the Current Report on Fornk 8iled with the Securities and Exchar
Commission on November 9, 201

Amendment No 3. to Loan and Security Agreementlamited Waiver, dated December 16, 2011, by andragilicon
Valley Bank and U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., Autative Specialty Accessories and Parts, Inc., Go Hnc., Parts Bin, Inc
Lobo Marketing, Inc., Whitney Automotive Group, InPrivate Label Parts, Inc., Pacific 3PL, Inc.téMD, Inc., and Local
Body Shops, Inc. (incorporated by reference to BixHi0.72 to the Current Report on Form 8-k fileithahe Securities and
Exchange Commission on December 19, 2(

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement datehdaB, 2012 between the Company and Theodore iRlega
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.62 to@erent Report on Form 8-k filed with the Secustad Exchange
Commission on January 4, 201

Employment Agreement dated January 3, 2012 bettteeG@ompany and David G. Robson. (incorporateceisrence tc
Exhibit 10.63 to the Current Report on For-k filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissindanuary 4, 201.

Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement dated JanuaB032 between the Company and David G. Robson.rfiocated by
reference to Exhibit 10.64 to the Current ReporEFormm 8-k filed with the Securities and Exchangen@ussion on January 4,
2012)

Amendment No 4. to Loan and Security Agreemengdidarch 23, 2012, by and among Silicon Valley Ban#l U.S. Autc
Parts Network, Inc., Automotive Specialty Accesssand Parts, Inc., Go Fido, Inc., Parts Bin, Incho Marketing, Inc.,
Whitney Automotive Group, Inc., Private Label Pahe., Pacific 3PL, Inc., AutoMD, Inc., and Lodabdy Shops, Inc

June 21, 2010 Letter from E&Y to the SEC (incorpedaherein by reference to the Company’s CurrepioRen Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on June 23, 201

Subsidiaries of U.S. Auto Parts Network, |
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
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Exhibit
No. Description

31.1 Certification of the principal executive officery@ired by Rule 13-14(a) or 15-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1€
as amende

31.2 Certification of the principal financial officergeired by Rule 1:-14(a) or 15-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1¢
as amende

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer reqgedt by 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursagédedtion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer regeit by 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursaeéBedtion 906 of the

Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z
101.INS¢ XBRL Instance Documer
101.SCHc XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
101.CAL:¢ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.DEF¢ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Documh
101.LAB:¢ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRE: XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

* Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of thene number from the registration statement on Fe&rbhof U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.
(File No. 33:-138379) initially filed with the Securities and Exange Commission on November 2, 2006, as amel

+  Indicates a management contract or compensatomygplarrangemer

U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. has been grantedidential treatment with respect to certain pari®f this exhibit (indicated by

asterisks), which have been separately filed WiehSecurities and Exchange Commiss

¢ Furnished herewith. In accordance with Rule 406Redulation S-T, the information in these exhibitgll not be deemed to be “filed”
for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exglkaict of 1934, as amended, or otherwise subjdahdity under that section, and
shall not be incorporated by reference into anystesgion statement or other document filed unterSecurities Act of 1933, as amen
except as expressly set forth by specific referemseich filing.

—+
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report on
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undgrsd, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 26, 201 U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC.

By: /s/ Shane Evangeli
Shane Evangelis
Chief Executive Office

POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned officers and directors of W80 Parts Network, Inc., do hereby constitute apgoint Shane Evangelist and David
Robson, and each of them, our true and lawful atys-in-fact and agents, each with full power dfstitution and resubstitution, for him and
in his name, place and stead, in any and all cdescto sign any and all amendments to this repoid to file the same, with exhibits thereto,
and other documents in connection therewith, withSecurities and Exchange Commission, granting seitl attorneys-ifact and agents, a
each of them, full power and authority to do andqren each and every act and thing requisite oeggary to be done in and about the
premises, as fully to all intents and purposeseasight or could do in person, hereby, ratifyingl @onfirming all that each of said attorneys-
in-fact and agents, or his substitute or subsstuteay lawfully do or cause to be done by virtueebé

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report on Form 10-K has bsgned below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant in the capecdind on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date
/s/ Shane Evangelist Chief Executive Officer and Director
Shane Evangeli (principal executive officer March 26, 201:
/s/ David Robson Chief Financial Officer
David Robsor (principal financial and accounting office March 26, 201:

/s/ Robert J. Majteles
Robert J. Majtele Chairman of the Boar March 26, 201:

/s/ Joshua L. Berman
Joshua L. Berma Director March 26, 201:

/s/ Fredric W. Harman
Fredric W. Harmat Director March 26, 201:

/s/ Sol Khazan
Sol Khazan Director March 26, 201:

/s/ Warren B. Phelps |
Warren B. Phelps Il Director March 26, 201:

/s/ Ellen F. Siminof
Ellen F. Siminoft Director March 26, 201:
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.
Carson, CA

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. andididotes (the “Company”) as of
January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2011 and thedetansolidated statements of operations, stockhsléquity, and cash flows for each of
the two years in the period ended December 31,.2ZMdse financial statements are the responsilofithe Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on theriicial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamliqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetagresent fairly, in all material respects, tinaficial position of U.S. Auto Parts
Network, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 11201d December 31, 2011 and the results of theradipns and their cash flows for eact
the two years in the period ended December 31,,28Xkbnformity with accounting principles geneyadiccepted in the United States of
America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
Company'’s internal control over financial reportig of December 31, 2011, based on the criterébkstied innternal Control—Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike Treadway Commission and our report datedcmMa6, 2012 expressed
an unqualified opinion on the Company’s internatteol over financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLF

Los Angeles, CA
March 26, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednsates of operations, stockholders’ equity and ¢ksts of U.S. Auto Parts
Network, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) ferykar ended January 2, 2010. These financiahstatis are the responsibility of t
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on these financial statements basedr audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ai efuitie Company’s internal control over finanaiaporting. Our audit included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasare appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrafinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesrémiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting thewems and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesarsg significant estimates made by managementeaaidating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our auditige a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referr@dlbove present fairly, in all material respedis,¢onsolidated results of operations and
cash flows of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. andssdiaries for the year ended January 2, 2010, inficcmity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 12, 2010
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data and per share)data

ASSETS

Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Shor-term investment

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $372 $t#B, respectivel

Inventory
Deferred income taxe
Other current asse
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
Intangible assets, n
Goodwill
Investments
Other nor-current assetl

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Accrued expense

Current portion of lon-term deb!

Current portion of capital leases paya

Other current liabilitie:

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portic
Capital leases payable, net of current por
Deferred income taxe
Other nor-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 stearg®rized at January 1, 2011 and December 31
2011; 30,429,376 and 30,625,764 shares issuedwdsthioding at January 1, 2011 and December

2011, respectivel
Additional paic-in-capital
Accumulated other comprehensive inca
Accumulated defici

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@#stents.

F-3

December 31

January 1,

2011 2011
$ 17,59t $ 10,33t
1,062 1,12¢
5,33¢ 7,92
48,10( 52,24t
35¢ 44¢€
5,64¢ 3,54¢
78,101 75,62:
33,14( 34,627
18,71¢ 9,98¢
18,641 18,85¢
4,141 2,10¢
79C 1,02¢
$153,53" $ 142 21¢
$ 31,66( $ 41,30¢
15,48 11,56¢
6,12¢ 6,25(
132 13t
5,52 7,702
58,92¢ 66,95¢
17,87¢ 11,62¢
18¢E 37
3,04¢ 1,59¢
701 1,07¢
80,73: 81,29:
30 31
153,96: 157,14(
24¢ 327
(81,43)) (96,57)
72,80¢ 60,92¢
$153,53° $ 142,21¢
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended
January 2, 201( January 1, 201:
Net sales $ 176,28¢ $ 262,27
Cost of sale(1) 112,41! 172,66¢
Gross profi 63,87: 89,60¢
Operating expense
Marketing 23,41¢ 38,751
General and administrati\ 19,64( 28,62¢
Fulfillment 11,43: 14,94¢
Technology 4,467 5,90z
Amortization of intangible: 661 2,80¢
Impairment loss on intangibl — —
Total operating expens 59,62/ 91,03’
Income (loss) from operatiol 4,24¢ (1,42¢)
Other income (expense
Other income, ne 2 191
Interest income (expens 18¢ (477
Total other income (expens 191 (280)
Income (loss) before income tax 4,44( (1,709)
Income tax provision (benefi 3,12 12,21¢
Net income (loss $ 1,317 $ (13,926
Basic net income (loss) per sh $ 0.04 $ (0.4¢)
Diluted net income (loss) per sh $ 0.04 $ (0.4¢)
Shares used in computation of basic net incoms)josr shar 29,851,87 30,269,46
Shares used in computation of diluted net incomss]l per shar 30,809,11 30,269,46

52 Weeks
Ended
December 31, 201

$ 327,07.
220,07:
107,00(

55,78t
31,96
19,16
7,27t
3,67¢
5,13¢
122,99
(15,99

364

(1,01¢)

(654)

(16,64¢)

(1,512)

$  (1513)

$ (0.50)

$ (0.50)
30,545,63
30,545,63

@ Excludes depreciation and amortization expensetisiincluded in marketing, general and administeaaind fulfillment costs as
described ir* Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Katf Operation” below.

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@adstents.
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U.S AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands, except share data)

Common Stock

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive

Accumulated

Total

Comprehensive

Additional Stockholders’ Income (Loss)
Paid-in- for the
Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Deficit Equity Period

Balance, December 31, 20C 29,846,75 $ 3C $146,40¢ $ (88) $ (68,82) $ 77,52:
Net income — — — — 1,317 1,317  $ 1,313
Issuance of shares in connection v

stock option exercis 46,87 — 162 — — 162 —
Shar-based compensatic — — 3,51/ — — 3,514 —
Unrealized gain on investments, nel

tax — — — 19 — 19 19
Effect of changes in foreign currenc — — — 152 — 152 152
Total comprehensive incon $ 1,48¢
Balance, January 2, 201! 29,893,633 $ 3C $150,08: $ 84 $ (67,51) $ 82,68
Net loss — — — — (13,926 (23,920 $ (13,92¢)
Issuance of shares in connection with

stock option exercise 323,10¢ — 99¢ — — 99¢ —
Shar-based compensatic 212,64. — 2,87¢ — — 2,87¢ —
Unrealized gain on investments, ne!

tax — — — 15 — 15 15
Effect of changes in foreign currenc — — — 15C — 15C 15C
Total comprehensive lo: $ (13,76)
Balance, January 1, 201 30,429,37 $ 3C $15396: $ 24¢  $ (8143) $ 72,80«
Net loss — — — — (15,13) (15,13) $ (15,13)
Issuance of shares in connection witt

stock option exercise 136,77( 1 353 — — 354 —
Issuance of stock awar 59,61¢ — — — — —
Shar-based compensatic — — 2,82¢ — — 2,82¢ —
Unrealized gain on investments, ne

tax — — — 56 — 56 56
Effect of changes in foreign currenc — — — 22 — 22 22
Total comprehensive lo — — — — — — $ (15,059
Balance, December 31, 201 30,625,766 $ 31 $157,14( $ 327 $ (96,579 $ 60,92/

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ@#stents.
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended
January 2, 201( January 1, 201: December 31, 201

Operating activities
Net income (loss $ 1,317 $ (13,929 $ (15,13Y)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to mshcprovided by (used in)

operating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic 4,91( 9,46¢ 12,69¢
Amortization of intangible: 661 2,804 3,67
Deferred income taxe 3,63¢ 12,57: (1,537)
Shar-based compensatic 3,27( 2,742 2,607
Impairment loss on intangibl — — 5,13¢
Amortization of deferred financing cos — 50 147
Gain from disposition of asse — (5) (12
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Accounts receivabl (2,030 91¢ (2,587)
Inventory (7,700 (17,129 (4,145
Other current asse (1,055 (910) 734
Other noncurrent asse 3 (123 —
Accounts payable and accrued expel 7,56( (68€) 6,21¢
Other current liabilitie: 1,02: 1,812 2,20z
Other noncurrent liabilitie — 70C 37¢
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 11,587 (1,709 10,37¢
Investing activities
Additions to property and equipme (8,400 (12,069 (14,309
Acquisition of assembled workforce and other inthles (739) (1,012) (74)
Cash paid for acquisition, net of cash acqu — (27,500 —
Proceeds from sale of marketable secur 2,15( 29,64 2,60(
Purchases of marketable securi (12,090 (19,540 (572)
Changes in restricted ca — (319 31¢
Purchases of compa-owned life insuranc — (250) (281)
Proceeds from purchase price adjustn — — 787
Net cash used in investing activiti (18,079 (31,049 (11,529
Financing activities
Proceeds from lor-term debt — 25,00( —
Payments made on lo-term debt — (1,000 (6,125
Changes in book overdre — (529) (247
Payments of debt financing co: — (467) (74)
Payments of shc-term financing (47 (77) (1449
Proceeds from exercise of stock optii 162 95€ 384
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 11E 23,88 (6,100
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 15E 21€ 19
Net change in cash and cash equival (6,222) (8,65¢6) (7,260
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe 32,47: 26,25! 17,59t
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe $ 26,25 $ 17,59t $ 10,33t
Supplemental disclosure of r-cash investing and financing activitit
Accrued asset purchas $ 451 $ 1,691 $ 1,28¢
Property acquired under capital le: — 37C 49
Estimated purchase price adjustm — 994 —
Unrealized gain on investmer 19 15 60
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Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the period for income ta
Cash paid during the period for inter

See accompanying notes to consolidated financstistents.
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52 Weeks
Ended

January 2, 201(

$ 58¢
2

52 Weeks
Ended

January 1, 201:

$ 13:
127

52 Weeks
Ended

December 31, 201

$

9
1,09¢
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policieand Nature of Operations

U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. (including its subaites, the “Company”s a distributor of aftermarket auto parts and asodes and we
established in 1995. The Company entered the e-evoensector by launching its first website in 2@0@ currently derives the majority of its
revenues from online sales channels. The Compdlsyitseproducts to individual consumers througheawork of websites and online
marketplaces. Our flagship websites are locatediat.autopartswarehouse.cogmvww.partstrain.comwww.jcwhitney.com
www.stylintrucks.comwww.AutoMD.conand our corporate website is locatedvatw.usautoparts.net

The Company’s products consist of body parts, engarts, performance parts and accessories. Thedaots category is primarily
comprised of parts for the exterior of an automamb®ur parts in this category are typically reptaeat parts for original body parts that have
been damaged as a result of a collision or thr@egteral wear and tear. The majority of these prsdaie sold through our websites. In
addition, we sell an extensive line of mirror protiy including our own private-label brand calledakVVue™, which are marketed and sold as
aftermarket replacement parts and as upgradessiingxparts. The engine parts category is comgrigeengine components and other
mechanical and electrical parts, which are oftéarred to as hard parts. These parts serve asegpént parts for existing engine parts and are
generally used by professionals and dypeitiselfers for engine and mechanical maintenanderepair. We offer performance versions of nr
parts sold in each of the above categories. Pedoce parts and accessories generally consist tf that enhance the performance of the
automobile, upgrade existing functionality of adfie part or improve the physical appearance onfwot of the automobile.

The Company is a Delaware C corporation and isdugatered in Carson, California. The Company alodmployees located in
Kansas, Virginia, lllinois and Ohio, as well agfie Philippines.

Prior Year Balance Sheet Reclassification

Subsequent to the issuance of the Compafigtal 2010 consolidated financial statements Gbmpany identified an error which resu
in reclassifying $1.5 million from accounts recdilato goodwill. The Company considers this an irterial reclassification and has changed
the January 1, 2011 consolidated balance sheetN&¢e 5 — Business Combination” and “Note 6 — Goditland Intangibles”for details on
the immaterial reclassification.

Fiscal Year

The Company'’s fiscal year is based on a 52/53 \liselll year ending on the Saturday closest to Déesr81. Prior to fiscal 2009, the
Company reported on a calendar year basis.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tle®ants of the Company and its wholly-owned subsiés. Intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting prirespl“U.S. GAAP”) requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiztttae reported amounts of assets and liakslisied disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeansl the reported amounts of revenues and expduoseg the reporting period. Significant
estimates made by management include, but arénmitetdl to, the valuation of investments, valuatafrinventory, valuation of deferred tax
assets and liabilities, valuation of intangibleedssincluding goodwill, and recoverability of seftre development costs. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all money market funds and-$&rm investments purchased with original maieesiof ninety days or less to be
cash equivalents. In connection with our acquisitd Automotive Specialty Accessories and Parts, &md its wholly-owned subsidiary
Whitney Automotive Group, Inc. (referred to herag*“WAG”) in August 2010, restricted cash of $319,000 wakuied in other current ass:
as of January 1, 2011. The restricted cash wateteta collateral paid to the landlord for the satsle of WAG's corporate offices in Chicago
and a security deposit made to a payment procémsonline market place transactions. The entilar@e of $319,000 was released from the
restriction and recorded as cash and cash equtgdleRebruary 2011.
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalerasgetable securities, accounts receivable and ate@ayable approximate fair value
at January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2011 dueitostimt-term maturities. Based on the borrowingsaurrently available to the Company
for bank loans with similar terms and average nitist the fair value of our long-term debt undexdit facility approximates its carrying
amount.

Accounts Receivable and Concentration of Credit Ris

Accounts receivable are stated net of allowancedmbtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful acus is determined primarily on the
basis of past collection experience and general@o@ conditions. The Company determines termscanditions for its customers primarily
based on the volume purchased by the customenroastcreditworthiness and past transaction histing. allowance for doubtful accounts
totaled $0.4 million and $0.2 million at January2011 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

Concentrations of credit risk are limited to thestomer base to which the Company’s products ack $ble Company does not believe
significant concentrations of credit risk exist.

Marketable Securities and Investments

Marketable securities and investments are compoéetbsed-end funds primarily invested in auctiate preferred securities (“ARPS”)
and mutual funds. The underlying investments in SRiPe tax-exempt municipal bonds with maturitiethaty or more years, for which the
interest rates are reset through a “Dutch auctawmgty seven days. In accordance with Accountingdgteds Codification (“ASC”) Topic 320,
Investment— Debt and Equity Securiti¢sASC 320”) and based on the Company'’s ability tarket and sell these instruments, the Company
classifies ARPS as available-for-sale and cartiemtat fair value. Mutual funds are classifiedlasisterm investments available-for-sale and
recorded at fair market value, based on quoteeéprif identical assets that are trading in actiaekets as of the end of the period for which
the values are determined.

During 2008, the Company discounted the fair valiie investment in ARPS for illiquidity in the mket as further described in Note 3,
under the caption Financial Assets Valued on a Recurring Bdsis fiscal 2009, there was an increase in ligtyidvhich was evidenced by
redemptions of $2.2 million (33% of the carrying@amt at December 31, 2008 balance). For the pérod June 30, 2008 to December 31,
2011, we have received partial redemptions at plirevon ARPS totaling approximately $5.7 million.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment

All of the Company’s marketable securities and gtaeents are subject to a periodic impairment revidve Company recognizes an
impairment charge when a decline in the fair valfigs investments below the cost basis is judgeloket other-than-temporary. The Company
considers various factors in determining whetheetmgnize an impairment charge, including the tlerod time and extent to which the fair
value has been less than the Company’s cost Itlasifpancial condition and near-term prospecthefinvestee, and the Compasintent ant
ability to hold the investment for a period of timefficient to allow for any anticipated recoverythe market value. No other-than-temporary
impairment charges were recorded on any investnoemisg fiscal 2009, 2010 and 2011.

Inventory

Inventories consist of finished goods availabledale and are stated at the lower of cost or masdee, determined using the first in,
first out (“FIFO”) method. The Company purchaseseimory from suppliers both domestically and in&ionally, and routinely enters into
supply agreements with U.S. based suppliers argdiitgary drop-ship vendors. The Company believesits products are generally available
from more than one supplier and seeks to maintaitiipie sources for its products, both internatibnand domestically. The Company
primarily purchases products in bulk quantitiesace advantage of quantity discounts and to assueatory availability. Inventory is reported
at the lower of cost or market, adjusted for sloawving, obsolete or scrap product. Inventory at dand, 2011 and December 31, 2011 were
$48.1 million and $52.2 million, respectively. Atddnally, at January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2ibd/&ntory included items itransit to ou
warehouses, in the amount of $4.4 million and $8iléon, respectfully.
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Website and Software Development Costs

The Company capitalizes certain costs associatddwébsite and software developed for internalacmrding to ASC 350-50
Intangibles— Goodwill and Other — Website Development CH#tSC 350-50") and ASC 350-5htangibles — Goodwill and Other — Internal-
Use Softwarg¢“ASC 350-40") , when both the preliminary projefesign and testing stage are completed and managéae authorized
further funding for the project, which it deems Ipable of completion and to be used for the functimended. Capitalized costs include
amounts directly related to website and softwareligpment such as payroll and paynmalated costs for employees who are directly assex
with, and who devote time to, the internele software project. Capitalization of such costses when the project is substantially compled
ready for its intended use. The Company capitalf#Zz@ million and $15.3 million during fiscal 20408d 2011, respectively. These amount:
amortized on a straight-line basis over two to frears once the software is placed into use. Atagnl, 2011 and December 31, 2011, our
internally developed website and software cost artezlito $18.0 million and $33.2 million, respecliyend the related accumulated
amortization amounted to $10.7 million and $18.8iom, respectively (see Note 4).

Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles

The Company accounts for the impairment and digiposdf long-lived assets, including intangible®@et to amortization, in
accordance with ASC 3@roperty, Plant and EquipmefitASC 360”) . Management assesses potential impairments wheaegsts or
changes in circumstances indicate that the caryéhge of an asset may not be recoverable. An imyait loss will result when the carrying
value exceeds the undiscounted cash flows estimatexbult from the use and eventual dispositiothefasset. Impairment losses will be
recognized in operating results to the extentttmaicarrying value exceeds the discounted futush fiaws estimated to result from the use and
eventual disposition of the asset. We continuadly judgment when applying these impairment ruletetermine the timing of the impairment
tests, undiscounted cash flows used to assessrimgratis, and the fair value of a potentially impdiesset. The reasonableness of our
judgments could significantly affect the carryirgjwe of our lon-lived assets. The Company did not recognize amairment losses on long-
lived assets and intangibles for fiscal 2009, 2846 2011.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangibles

The Company accounts for goodwill and indefiniteed intangible assets in accordance with ASC B&@ngibles — Goodwill and Other
(“ASC 350"). Under ASC 350, goodwill and intangildesets with indefinite lives are not amortizeddnettested for impairment annually or
more frequently if events or circumstances occat would indicate a reduction in fair value. In #ih, the Company identified a single
reporting unit (the Company itself) in accordanéthwASC 280-Segment ReportingThe goodwill impairment test is a two-step impant
test. The first step compares the fair value oheaporting unit with its carrying amount includiggodwill. The Company estimates the fair
value of the reporting unit based on an equal waiglof two market approaches and an income appraakich utilizes discounted future ce
flows. The market approaches utilized market mldtipf invested capital from 1) comparable publichded companies and 2) comparable
transactions. The market multiples from investeaitehinclude revenues, total assets, book equity gebt and earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA"). Assumptcritical to the fair value estimates under tisea@lnted cash flow model include
discount rates, cash flow projections, projectemjiterm growth rates and the determination of teainvalues. Management has performed a
sensitivity analysis on its significant assumptiansl has determined that a change in its assunspaichin selected sensitivity testing levels
would not impact its conclusion. The excess of ¥alue over carrying value for our reporting urstad October 31, 2011, the annual testing
date, was approximately $50 million, and there widwdve to be a 38% decrease in the estimateddhieof the reporting unit to fail step 1. If
the carrying amount exceeds estimated fair vaher the second step of the impairment test is padd to measure the amount of any
impairment loss. Impairment losses will be recogdin operating results. Current guidance, adoiptélde fourth quarter of fiscal 2011,
provides the option to first assess qualitativediscto determine whether the existence of eventircumstances leads to a determination that
it is more likely than not that the fair value ofegorting unit is less than its carrying amoufjtafter assessing the totality of events or
circumstances, an entity determines it is not ntikedy than not that the fair value of a reportimgit is less than its carrying amount, then
performing the two-step impairment test is unnezgsdVe opted to continue to perform the step esefor fiscal 2011 as discussed above.
We did not recognize any impairment loss on goddwit indefinite-lived intangibles for fiscal 20@8d 2010. During 2011, we recorded a
non-cash impairment charge on certain WAG tradeenautangible assets totaling $5.1 million as furttéescribed irfNote 6- Goodwill and
Intangible?.
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Deferred Catalog Expenses

Deferred catalog expenses consist of third-pargctlicosts including primarily creative design, @agrinting, postage and mailing costs
for all Company direct response catalogs. Suchsa@rst capitalized as deferred catalog expenseararaimortized over their expected future
benefit period. Each catalog is fully amortizedhiitnine months. Deferred catalog expenses araded in other current assets and amounted
to $1.0 million and $0.7 million at January 1, 2Giid December 31, 2011, respectively.

Deferred Financing Costs

In August 2010, the Company entered into a credilify with Silicon Valley Bank. The credit fadiji is comprised of a $25 million term
loan and a $10 million revolving line of credit. éonnection with the credit facility, the Compargip$0.5 million in fees. These fees were
recorded as deferred financing costs in other otiassets and other non-current assets. Defemadding costs are being amortized over the
life of the loan using the straight-line methodtds not significantly different from effective t@rest method. As of January 1, 2011 and
December 31, 2011, the remaining deferred financosys were $0.4 million and $0.3 million, respeltyt

Revenue Recognition

From the Company'’s inception of business througtfitist quarter of fiscal 2010, the Company recagdirevenue from product sales
when the following four revenue recognition critewere met: persuasive evidence of an arrangemits edelivery has occurred (to the
common carrier), the selling price is fixed or detmable, and collectability is reasonably assufidtkese criteria followed the Company’s
general policy to recognize revenue accordingsaliipping terms, which were F.O.B. shipping pdifiider this policy, title and risk of loss
were transferred to the customer upon deliverjpéocommon carrier, at which time, revenue was neizegl.

Although the Company had no legal obligation to pemsate the customer, the Company generally raptheeproduct or reimbursed f
customer for goods that were lost or damaged irsitand filed a claim to the common carrier fdneursement for such loss. The Company
executed a new pricing agreement with its primanyier which offered a lower price per delivery aiuninated the Company’s option to file
reimbursement claims for product lost or damagddainsit. As a result of this agreement, the Commtermined that the risk of loss or
damage during transit would be retained by the GomipTherefore, the Company determined that revéone product sales should be
recognized at the delivery date, not the ship date.

This change in the second quarter of fiscal 20%0lted in a deferral of $2.0 million of sales reverand a decrease in cost of goods sold
of $1.5 million, which reduced gross profit by $4000. The Company has recognized revenue uporegiglio the customer starting the sec
quarter of fiscal 2010.

Revenue from sales of advertising is recorded wieformance requirements of the related advertighogram agreement are met.
During fiscal 2009, 2010 and 2011, the advertisengenue represented approximately 1%, 1% and 28arafotal revenue, respectively.

The Company evaluates the criteria of ASC 605-&gvenue Recognition Principal Agent Consideratiargetermining whether it is
appropriate to record the gross amount of prodeaiessand related costs or the net amount earneshamissions. Generally, when the
Company is the primary party obligated in a tratisagthe Company is subject to inventory risk, lgude in establishing prices and
selecting suppliers, or has several but not ahes$e indicators, revenue is recorded gross.

Product sales and shipping revenues, net of promaltdiscounts and return allowances, are recondesh the products are delivered i
title passes to customers. Retail items sold ttoousrs are made pursuant to terms and conditi@iptbvide for transfer of both title and risk
of loss upon our delivery to the customer. Retdlowances, which reduce product revenue by the Goys best estimate of expected proc
returns, are estimated using historical experience.

Payments received prior to the delivery of goodsustomers are recorded as deferred revenue.

The Company periodically provides incentive offersts customers to encourage purchases. Suclsaffelude current discount offers,
such as percentage discounts off current purclasksther similar offers. Current discount offevhen accepted by the Compasmygustomer:
are treated as a reduction to the purchase pritteeaklated transaction.
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Sales discounts are recorded in the period in wihietrelated sale is recognized. Sales return athoes are estimated based on historical
amounts and are recorded upon recognizing theetekatles. Credits are issued to customers fomeduproducts. Credits amounted to $19.0
million, $25.7 million, and $30.1 million for fist2009, 2010 and 2011, respectively. No customeowaated for more than 10% of the
Company’s net sales in the past three years.

The following table provides an analysis of theerge for sales returns and the reserve for doubtfocbunts:

Balance a Charged tc
Balance a
Beginning Revenue,
Cost or End of
(In thousands) of Period Expenses Deductions Period
Fifty-Two Weeks Ended January 2, 2(
Reserve for sales retur $ 662 $ 19,29t $(19,000) $ 957
Reserve for doubtful accour 11F 27 @) 13t
Fifty-Two Weeks Ended January 1, 2(
Reserve for sales retur $ 957 $ 26,03¢ $(25,675 $ 1,31¢
Reserve for doubtful accour 13t 38C (143 372
Fifty-Two Weeks Ended December 31, 2(
Reserve for sales retur $ 1,31¢ $ 30,521 $(30,117) $ 1,72¢
Reserve for doubtful accour 372 87 (27¢) 183

Interest Income (Expense)

Interest income consists primarily of interest imeoon investments. Interest expense consists plynediinterest expense on our
outstanding loan balance and capital leases.

Other Income
Other income consists of miscellaneous income agajain from disposition of assets.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold consists of the direct costsaated with procuring parts from suppliers andwging products to customers. These
costs include direct product costs, purchase digspoutbound freight, warehouse supplies and warreosts. The Company includes freight
and shipping costs in cost of goods sold. Totagjfeand shipping expense included in cost of gamdd for fiscal 2009, 2010 and 2011 was
$19.2 million, $31.6 million, and $41.1 million,geectively. Depreciation and amortization are edetlifrom cost of goods sold and included
in marketing, general and administrative and flaifédnt costs as noted below.

Warranty Costs

The Company or the vendors supplying it productigle the Company’s customers limited warranties@main products that range
from 30 days to lifetime. In most cases, the Comfsawnendors are the primarily responsible for watyaclaims. Standard product warranties
sold separately by the Company are recorded asrdéfeevenue and recognized ratably over the fith® warranty, ranging from one to five
years. Since May 2010, we also offer extended wéegawith selected branded products we sell. Thdyct brands that include the exten:
warranty coverage are offered at three differentise levels: (a) a five year unlimited productlesgement, (b) a five year one-time product
replacement, and (c) a three year one-time pragptacement. Warranty costs relating to mercharsbte under warranty not covered by
vendors are estimated and recorded as warrantyadioins at the time of sale based on each prodhuisterical return rate and historical
warranty cost. The standard and extended warraiyations are recorded as warranty liabilitiegluded in other current liabilities in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. For fiscal 2010 add,2fe activity in our aggregate warranty liaiktwas as follows:

January 1, December 31
2011 2011
(in thousands)
Warranty liabilities, beginning of peric $ 89 $ 154
Adjustments to preexisting warranty liabiliti — —
Additions to warranty liabilitie: 134 352
Reductions to warranty liabilitie (69 (129
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January 1, December 31
2011 2011
(in thousands)
Warranty liabilities, end of peric $ 154 $ 384

Marketing

Marketing costs, including advertising, are expersgincurred. The majority of marketing expenggaisl to internet search engine
service providers and internet commerce faciligtéor fiscal 2009, 2010 and 2011, the Companygrezed advertising costs of $11.4
million, $16.5 million and $22.4 million, respeatly. Marketing costs also include depreciation anmubrtization expense and share-based
compensation expense.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expense consist prignafibdministrative payroll and related expenses;afmant processing fees, legal and
professional fees, and other administrative c@#heral and administrative expense also includesedition and amortization expense and
share-based compensation expense.

Fulfillment

Fulfillment costs consist primarily of payroll anelated costs associated with warehouse emplofgkty rent, building maintenance,
and other costs associated with inventory manageamehwholesale operations. Fulfillment costs &istude depreciation and amortization
expense and share-based compensation expense.

Technology

Technology expenses consist primarily of payrotl eglated expenses, and costs associated with dengupport, information
technology, software development and connectivigchnology expenses also include share-based ca@@mexpense.

Comprehensive Income

The Company reports comprehensive income in aconosdaith ASC 22@omprehensive IncomeéAccumulated other comprehensive
income includes net income or loss, foreign curyananslation adjustments related to the Compafoysign operations and unrealized gains
and losses from investments in ARPS that hold tett municipal bonds and investments in mutuatifuihat hold debt securities.

Leases

The Company analyzes lease agreements for operedisgs capital lease treatment in accordanceA8i@ 840Leases Rent expense
for leases designated as operating is expensedwaight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Foreign Currency Translation

For each of the Compars/foreign subsidiaries, the functional currencigsgdocal currency. Assets and liabilities of fapeioperations ai
translated into U.S. dollars using the current exge rates, and revenues and expenses are trdristaté).S. dollars using average exchange
rates. The effects of the foreign currency traimfeadjustments are included as a component ofnagiated other comprehensive income (li
in stockholders’ equity.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC 740Income TaxesUnder ASC 740, deferred tax assets and lialslitie
are recognized for the future tax consequencebutible to temporary differences between the firrstatement carrying amount of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective taxebaBeferred tax assets and liabilities are medausimg enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those tempyaddferences are expected to be recovered oesetVhen appropriate, a valuation
allowance is established to reduce deferred taet®sshich include tax credits and loss carry fadsato the amount that is more likely than
not to be realized. In making such determinatibe,EGompany considers all available positive anditieg evidence, including future reversals
of existing taxable temporary differences, futueable income exclusive of reversing temporaryedéhces and carryforwards, taxable income
in prior carryback years, tax planning strategied mecent financial operations.
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Prior to the acquisition of WAG, the Company coulgd that it was more likely than not that we woddlize the deferred tax assets in
all jurisdictions. However, with the acquisition\WfAG in 2010, based largely on the weight of thenbined cumulative three-year adjusted
loss position, it was determined that it was noterlikely than not that the Company would realizeniet deferred tax assets. Therefore, a
valuation allowance of $18.3 million was recordsdéJanuary 1, 2011, of which $4.7 million wasorgied against the acquired deferred tax
assets of WAG as of August 12, 2010. Based onaghesletermination, a valuation allowance of $5.fianiwas recorded during 2011,
resulting in a valuation allowance balance of $28ilion as of December 31, 2011.

The Company utilizes a two-step approach to reaggiand measuring uncertain tax positions. The fitep is to evaluate the tax
position for recognition by determining if the whtgf available evidence indicates it is more ljkilan not that the position will be sustained
on audit, including resolution of related appeal$itiation processes. The second step is to niedbe tax benefit as the largest amount w
is more than 50% likely of being realized uponmbie settlement. We consider many factors wheruatia and estimating our tax positions
and tax benefits, which may require periodic adgpestts and which may not accurately forecast actutiomes. As of December 31, 2011, the
Company had no material unrecognized tax benditsest or penalties related to federal and stat@me tax matters. The Company'’s policy
is to record interest and penalties as income tprrese.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based compensatemtordance with ASC 7XBompensation — Stock Compensatiétl stock
options issued to employees are recognized as-Bhasxl compensation expense in the financial seatenibased on their respective grant date
fair values, and are recognized within the statéroboperations as general and administrative, etary, fulfilment or technology, based on
employee departmental classifications.

Under this standard, the fair value of each shaset payment award is estimated on the date of gsarg an option pricing model that
meets certain requirements. The Company currestg the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estinthe fair value of share-based
payment awards, with the exception of options grautiontaining market conditions, which the Compesiymates the fair value using a Monte
Carlo model. The determination of the fair valueslére-based payment awards utilizing the Blaclkeleshand Monte Carlo models is affected
by the Company'’s stock price and a number of as§omg including expected volatility, expected Jifesk-free interest rate and expected
dividends.

The Company estimates volatility using historicalatilities of similar public entities. The expedtife of the awards is based on a
simplified method that defines the life as the agerof the contractual term of the options andabeighted average vesting period for all open
tranches. Prior to our initial public offering iBruary 2007, we did not have a history of marketgs of our common stock. Due to the
limited period time our equity shares have beeriplyliraded, we do not have sufficient historiexlercise data to provide a reasonable basis
upon which to estimate volatility and expected tefime risk-free interest rate assumption is basedbserved interest rates appropriate for the
expected life of awards. The dividend yield assuompis based on the Company’s expectation of pagingividends. Forfeitures are estimated
at the time of grant and revised, if necessargulmsequent periods if actual forfeitures signiftbadiffer from those estimates. The Company
considers many factors when estimating expectddifores, including employee class, economic emvirent, and historical experience.

The Company accounts for equity instruments issuedchange for the receipt of services from nomleyee directors in accordance
with the provisions of ASC 718.

The Company accounts for equity instruments issueschange for the receipt of goods or servicesifother than employees in
accordance with ASC 505-Fquity-Based Payments to Non-Employ&sssts are measured at the estimated fair markee \adlthe
consideration received or the estimated fair valfutae equity instruments issued, whichever is meliably measurable. The value of equity
instruments issued for consideration other thanleyee services is determined on the earlier ofrffopmance commitment or completion of
performance by the provider of goods or serviceglity instruments awarded to non-employees aregieally re-measured as the underlying
awards vest unless the instruments are fully vestadediately exercisable and non-forfeitable aadhate of grant.

Segment Data

The Company operates in one reportable segmenepodting revenues by product line or geographiation is impracticable. Certain
long-lived assets are held in the Philippines,rrefe Note 4 — Property and Equipment, NefThe criteria the Company used to identify our
reporting segment are primarily the nature of thadpcts the Company sells and the consolidatedatipgrresults that are regularly reviewed
by the Company’s chief operating decision makerssess performance and make operating decisions.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Stand&dard (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Updé#sU”) No. 2009-13,
Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliveral, which amends ASC Topic 605, which modifies thecamting for multiple deliverable
revenue arrangements to enable vendors to aconudeliverables separately rather than as a cordhing. The Company adopted this ASU
on January 2, 2011. The adoption did not have anaaeffect on the consolidated financial stateteen

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010n@roving Disclosures About Fair Value Measurementhich requires reporting
entities to make new disclosures about recurringomrecurring fair-value measurements includingigicant transfers into and out of Level 1
and Level 2 fair-value measurements and informatiopurchases, sales, issuances and settlemeatgross basis in the reconciliation of
Level 3 fair-value measurements. This ASU was éffedor annual reporting periods beginning aftecBmber 15, 2009, except for Level 3
reconciliation disclosures which were effective &mnual periods beginning after December 15, 20h6.adoption of this ASU did not have a
material effect on the consolidated financial steats.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010ER&;losure of Supplementary Pro Forma InformationBusiness Combinations
(“ASU 2010-29"), an update to ASC Topic 8@ysiness CombinatiorfsASC 805”). The amendments in ASU 2010-29 spettifst if a public
entity presents comparative financial statemehesentity should disclose revenue and earningseo€bmbined entity as though the business
combination(s) that occurred during the current yeal occurred as of the beginning of the comparphbr annual reporting period only. The
amendments in ASU 2010-29 also expand the supplat@o forma disclosures under ASC 805 to incladkescription of the nature and
amount of material, nonrecurring pro forma adjustteelirectly attributable to the business comboratncluded in the reported pro forma
revenue and earnings. The amendments are effgutigpectively for business combinations for whioh &cquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period lmegig on or after December 15, 2010. The Compatiyapply the provisions of ASU 20129
to future acquisitions which occur after Januar2@.1. The Company believes that the adoptionneillhave a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-Bdendments to Achieve Common Fair Value MeasuresmenDisclosure
Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFF(*"ASU 2011-04"), an update to ASC Topic 8Fxir Value MeasuremerftASC 820"). The
amendments in ASU 2011-04 are the result of jdifores by the FASB and International Accountingr&tards Board to develop a single,
converged fair value framework and provide convergeidance on how to measure fair value and on disatosures to provide about fair
value measurements. While ASU 2011-04 is largehsistent with existing fair value measurement pples in U.S. GAAP, it expands ASC
820’s existing disclosure requirements for faimeaimeasurements and makes other amendments. Mémgsefamendments were made to
eliminate unnecessary wording differences betwe& GAAP and International Financial Reporting $tads (“IFRS”). However, some
could change how the fair value measurement guelanASC 820 is applied. For public entities, anmapdts are effective for interim and
annual periods beginning after December 15, 20h#&.Jompany will adopt the provisions of ASU 2011ebdJanuary 1, 2012, the starting
date of its fiscal year ending December 29, 201 Tompany believes that the adoption will not heweaterial effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In June and December 2011, the FASB issued two A8tich amend guidance for the presentation of cehgnsive income, an update
to ASC Topic 220Comprehensive Incomé&he amended guidance requires an entity to presemponents of net income and other
comprehensive income in one continuous statemefieiired to as the statement of comprehensive inconir two separate, but consecutive
statements. The current option to report other cetrgnsive income and its components in the stateafiestockholders’ equity will be
eliminated. Although the new guidance changes thegmtation of comprehensive income, there arédhanges to the components that are
recognized in net income or other comprehensivenreunder existing guidance. These ASU’s are éfieébdr the Company on January 1,
2012 and retrospective application will be requirEldese ASU’s will change our financial statemeamisgntation of comprehensive income but
will not impact our net income, financial positiar, cash flows.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011F88ting Goodwill for Impairmer{tASU 2011-08"),an update to ASC 350. Un«
the amendments in ASU 2011-08, an entity has thierofo first assess qualitative factors to deteeniwhether the existence of events or
circumstances leads to a determination that itagenfikely than not that the fair value of a repagtunit is less than its carrying amount. If,
after assessing the totality of events or circuntsta, an entity determines it is not more likertmot
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that the fair value of a reporting unit is lessrtlita carrying amount, then performing the two-stapairment test is unnecessary. However, if
an entity concludes otherwise, then it is requtcederform the first step of the two-step impairtnst by calculating the fair value of the
reporting unit and comparing the fair value witk ttarrying amount of the reporting unit, as desatiim paragraph 350-20-3b-If the carryinc
amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair vathen the entity is required to perform the secdegd sf the goodwill impairment test to
measure the amount of the impairment loss, if asyjescribed in paragraph 350-20-35-9. ASU 201ik-@&ective for annual and interim
goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal yeaeginning after December 15, 2011. Early adopsigrermitted, including for annual and
interim goodwill impairment tests performed as afae before September 15, 2011, if an entity’arfoial statements for the most recent
annual or interim period have not yet been isstibd. Company adopted the provisions of ASU 2081on October 2, 2011, the starting dat
the fourth quarter of its fiscal year ending Decenibl, 2011. The adoption did not have a matefiateon the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011BRlance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about GffggAssets and Liabilities
The amendments in this ASU require an entity toldise information about offsetting and related mgeaments to enable users of its financial
statements to understand the effect of those agraagts on its financial position. The objectivaha$ disclosure is to facilitate comparison
between those entities that prepare their finarst@bements on the basis of U.S. GAAP and thostesnthat prepare their financial statements
on the basis of IFRS. An entity is required to gahke amendments for annual reporting periods Iméggnon or after January 1, 2013, and
interim periods within those annual periods. Antgrghould provide the disclosures required by ¢hasiendments retrospectively for all
comparative periods presented. The Company belitatshe adoption will not have a material effestthe Company’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Note 2 — Investments

As of January 1, 2011, the Company held the follmsecurities and investments, recorded at fairevéih thousands):

(€3]

@

Amortized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losse: Fair Value
Auction rate preferred securities in municipal atate agencie§) $ 4,22¢ $— $(84) $ 4,141
Mutual funds@ 1,07( — (8) 1,062
Total $ 5298  $— $(92 $ 5,20¢

As of December 31, 2011, the Company held theviolig securities and investments, recorded at fauey (in thousands):

Amortized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losse: Fair Value
Auction rate preferred securities in municipal atete agencies) $ 2,12t $— $(21) $ 2,104
Mutual funds@ 1,011 114 — 1,12¢
Total $ 3,13¢ $114 $(212) $ 3,22¢

Auction rate preferred securities in municipal atate agencies have a maturity of 15 to 30 yeatsaeaclassified as long-term
investments available-for-sale. As of January 1,128nd December 31, 2011, all of these securiteze Weld in four and two,
respectively, tax-exempt municipal bonds managettunlosed-end funds and had been in a continusssposition for more than

twelve months

Mutual funds are classified as short-term investsamailable-for-sale and recorded at fair marledti®, based on quoted prices of

identical assets that are trading in active mar&stsf the end of the period for which the valuesdeterminec

Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale stearare disclosed separately in the accompanyingatidated statements of cash flow.
For fiscal 2009, the Company recognized no groalized gain and losses. For fiscal 2010, the Compacognized gross realized gains and

losses of $27,000 and $8,000, respectively. Foalig011, the Company recognized gross realizetsgaid losses of zero and $3,000,
respectively.

Note 3 — Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as an exit price represerttiegamount that would be received to sell an assedid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participantsséeh, fair value is a market-based measuremensitoalld be determined based on
assumptions that market participants would useiging an asset or liability.

Provisions of ASC 820 establish a three-tier faiue hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs usednieasuring fair value. These tiers

include:

Level 1—- Observable inputs such as quoted prices in aotakets;

Level 2— Inputs other than quoted prices in active marltetsare either directly or indirectly observaldagd
Level 3— Unobservable inputs in which little or no marllata exists, therefore, requiring an entity to dgvéts own assumptions.
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Financial Assets Valued on a Recurring Basis

As of January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2011, tmep@ay held certain assets that are required todzesuaned at fair value on a
recurring basis. These included the Company’s firinstruments, including investments associatg¢d the ARPS. The Company measures
the following financial assets at fair value oreaurring basis. The fair value of these financtalets was determined using the following inputs
at January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2011 (in tinoig$a

As of January 1, 2011

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalei® $17,59¢ $17,59¢ $— $ —
Shor-term investment® 1,062 1,062 — —
Non-current investments availal-for-sale®) 4,141 — — 4,141
$22,79¢ $18,651 $— $4,141
As of December 31, 201
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Cash and cash equivale $10,33¢  $10,33¢ $— $ —
Shor-term investment® 1,12¢ 1,12¢ — —
Non-current investments availal-for-sale®) 2,104 — — 2,104
$13,56¢ $11,46( $— $2,10¢

@ Cash equivalents consist primarily of money mafiatls and short-term investments with original miudates of three months or less

at the date of purchase, for which the Companyraetes fair value through quoted market pric

Shor-term investments consist primarily of mutual fun8kor-term investments are classified as investmentdadle-for-sale anc

recorded at fair market value, based on quoteeéprit identical assets that are trading in actiaekets as of the end of the period for

which the values are determint

®)  As of January 1, 2011, the Company had investe2 dlion (par value) in ARPS, which are classifislavailabl-for-sale securitie
and reflected at $4.1 million (fair value), whicitiudes an unrealized loss of $84,000. As of Deesrlh, 2011, the Company had
invested $2.1 million (par value) in ARPS, whicle atassified as available-for-sale securities @fidcted at $2.1 million (fair value),
which includes an unrealized loss of $21,000. Thm@any has included its investments related to ARRBe Level 3 categon

(@)

Before utilizing Level 3 inputs in fair value measment, the Company considered significant Levath@ervable inputs of similar assets
in active and inactive markets. The Company’s bralealer received estimated market values froomdegendent pricing service as of
June 30, 2008 and the anticipated future markeddoh investments. These investments consist solegllateralized debt obligations
supported by municipal and state agencies; donohtde mortgage-backed securities or student Idems redemption features that call for
redemption at 100% of par value; and have a cuowrelit rating of A or AAA. For the period betwedmne 30, 2008 through December 31,
2011, the Company received partial redemptionsaavalue on these investments totaling approxim&isl7 million. The fact that there is not
an active market to liquidate these investmentsapasidered in classifying them as Level 3. Dughouncertainty with regard to the short-
term liquidity of these securities, the Companyed®ined that it could not rely on par value to esent fair value. Therefore, the Company
estimated the fair values of these securitieszinij a discounted cash flow valuation model asaoidry 1, 2011 and December 31, 2011. This
analysis considered the collateralization undegythre security investments, the creditworthineshefcounterparty, the timing of expected
future cash flows, and the expectation the secuwrifyhave a successful auction or market liquidifhese securities were also compared, when
possible, to other observable market data withlaincharacteristics to the securities held by tben@any.



As a result of the temporary declines in fair vdioiethe Company’s ARPS, which the Company gengglributes to liquidity issues
rather than credit issues, the Company recordethesgalized loss of $84,000 and $21,000 to accumdlather comprehensive income as of
January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2011, respectidely to the Company’s belief that the market ferse collateralized instruments may take
in excess of twelve months to fully recover, thepany has classified these investments as nond¢umneihas included them in investments
on the consolidated balance sheets at Januaryll,&@ December 31, 2011. As of December 31, 201date, the Company continues to ¢
interest on all of its ARPS instruments. Any futéitectuation in fair value related to these instents that the Company deems to be tempc
including any recoveries of previous write-downsuhd be recorded to accumulated other compreheirsbeene. If the Company determined
that any decrease in the value of the instrumeatsather-than-temporary, it would record a chaogearnings as appropriate. The Company is
not certain how long it may be required to holdresecurity. However, given the Company’s curreshgaosition, liquid cash equivalents and
expected cash provided by operations, it belietvead the ability to hold, and intends to contitméold the ARPS as long-term investments
until the market stabilizes.
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During fiscal 2009, 2010 and 2011, there were aondfers into or out of level 1 and level 2 assEtg following tables present the
Company’s ARPS activity measured at fair value oacarring basis using significant unobservablaiiaglLevel 3) during fiscal 2009, 2010
and 2011 (in thousands):

Long-Term
Investments
Balance as of January 1, 2009 $ 6,351
Redemption at par valt (2,150
Unrealized gains included in other comprehensicerime 63
Balance as of January 2, 2C $ 4,26¢
Long-Term
Investments
Balance as of January 2, 2010 $ 4,264
Redemption at par valt (12%)
Unrealized gains included in other comprehensicerime 2
Balance as of January 1, 2C $ 4,141
Long-Term
Investments
Balance as of January 1, 2C $ 4,141
Redemption at par valt (2,100
Unrealized gains included in other comprehensicerime 63
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 2,104

Non-Financial Assets Valued on a Non-Recurring Basi

The Company’s long-lived or indefinite-lived intdhlg assets are measured at fair value on a namieg basis. These assets are
measured at cost but are written-down to fair valugecessary, as a result of impairment.

As of January 1, 2011, the Company’s long-lived emigfinite-lived intangible assets did not indeat potential impairment under the
provisions of ASC 350 and ASC 360 and, as sucly, Wexe not measured at fair value. As of Decemlie2811, the Company recorded an
impairment loss on certain WAG trade name intargdsdsets, which adjusted such assets to theirdhie; refer to¢Note 6 — Goodwill and
Intangible? for additional information. Accordingly, the Compesother long-lived and indefinitived intangible assets were not measur:
fair value, consistent with the prior year.

Note 4 — Property and Equipment, Net

The Companys fixed assets consisted of computer softwarer(iatly developed and purchased), machinery andoeggnt, furniture an
fixtures, and vehicles, and are stated at costdessmulated depreciation and amortization. Deptieei and amortization are provided for in
amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreei@nsd amortizable assets to operations over thmated service lives. Depreciation expense
for fiscal 2009, 2010 and 2011 was $2.0 million4&3illion and $4.7 million, respectively. Softwaaeortization expense for the same per
was $2.9 million, $6.1 million and $8.0 million,s@ectively. The cost and related accumulated degiiee of assets retired or otherwise
disposed of are removed from the accounts andethdtant gain or loss is reflected in earnings.

Property and equipment consisted of the followihgeauary 1, 2011 and December 31, 2011:

January 1, December 31
2011 2011
(in thousands)

Land $ 63C $ 63C
Building 10,68( 10,68(
Machinery and equipmel 12,21¢ 13,42¢
Computer software (purchased and developed) arnigragat 22,56¢ 37,88(
Vehicles 172 221
Leasehold improvemen 1,961 2,12
Furniture and fixture 1,13¢ 1,244

Construction in proces 5,241 2,467
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January 1, December 31
2011 2011
(in thousands)
54,60( 68,67
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (21,460 (34,046
Property and equipment, r $ 33,14( $ 34,62

At January 1, 2011 and December 31, 2011, $2.1omiind $1.6 million, respectively, of the Compangkt property and equipment v
located in the Philippines. Additionally, gross peoty and equipment includes $0.3 million and $8ilion, respectively, of equipment under
capital lease arrangements and the related acctedulapreciation of $0.2 million and $0.2 millioespectively, as of January 1, 2011 and
December 31, 2011.

Depreciation of property and equipment is providethg the straight-line method for financial repaytpurposes, at rates based on the
following estimated useful lives:

Years

N
[y

Building

Machinery and equipmel

Computer software (purchased and develo
Computer equipmet

Vehicles

Leasehold improvement:

Furniture and fixture

WWWNNN
1
~ 0101 0101 01

* The estimated useful life is the lesser -5 years or the lease ter

Included above, in connection with the acquisitdWAG, the Company allocated $16.4 million of fhechase price to the following
property and equipment:

Gross

Weighted-Average Carrying

Useful Life Amount
(in thousands
Land Indefinite life $ 63C
Building 21 year 10,68(
Furniture and fixture 3 year 402
Machinery and equipme! 2-3 year 3,84:
Leasehold improvemen 5 year 561
Construction in proces 313
Total $ 16,43(

The acquired property and equipment are being degiesl on a straight line basis in accordance thighr estimated useful life. See
“Note 5 — Business Combinatioddelow for further details on the acquisition.

Note 5 — Business Combination

In August 2010, the Company completed the purcfthge‘Acquisition”) of all of the issued and outsting shares of Automotive
Specialty Accessories and Parts, Inc. and its wkmMned subsidiary Whitney Automotive Group, Ineférred to herein as “WAG”), at the
time, a leader in the automobile aftermarket penBorce parts and accessories market. Assets acguitade intangible assets consisting of
customer relationships, technology, and trade nataegible assets such as furniture and fixturegshimery and equipment, and a 350,000
square foot distribution center in LaSalle, lllisavith a headquarter office located in Chicagmdils (the office sublease related to WAG's
former headquarters was terminated in the fourtirtgu of fiscal 2011) . The final purchase pricé\AG was $26.7 million in cash, including
certain adjustments as set forth in that certaiclSPurchase Agreement executed August 2, 2010Rtinehase Agreement”) among Go Fido,
Inc., WAG, 2000 Riverside Capital Appreciation Fuhd®. and the other stockholders of WAG. The Asdigin provided the Company with
product line expansion into all terrain vehicle;reational vehicles and motorcycles, as well ap geoduct knowledge into niche segments
like Jeep, Volkswagen and truck enthusiasts. Txpsesion in the Company’s product line has incrédtsecustomer reach in the doyibursell
automobile
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and off-road accessories market. In addition, WAf@lity located in lllinois, which was custom Hiuior business-to-consumer distribution of
auto parts, allowed the Company to complete a ttigteibution center network. The Company belietrest the combination of WAG'’s
established brands and focus on the customer expeyi coupled with the Company’s capacity to competine, creates opportunity for
growth. These expected synergies from the Acqaisitontributed to the goodwill associated with Awguisition of $9.1 million. See the
purchase price allocation table below for furthetadls.

The Acquisition has been accounted for under thelmse method of accounting in accordance with 88&,Business Combinations
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of WAG hdeen recorded as of the acquisition date at thspective fair values, and combined with
the Company’s assets and liabilities. The resdltgperations of WAG and the estimated fair markates of the acquired assets and liabilities
have been included in the consolidated financatkstents from the date of the Acquisition.

The following table summarizes our allocation af thurchase price for the Acquisition to the esteddair values of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the date of the Acquisiin thousands):

Purchase price paid in ca(1) $ 27,50(
Purchase price adjustme(2) (787)
Final purchase price $ 26,71
Purchase price allocation is presented be
Assets:
Accounts receivabl®) 1,132
Inventory 12,36¢
Deferred income taxe 12C
Property and equipme 16,43(
Intangible assel 17,37¢
Other asset 2,281
Total asset $ 49,71
Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $(23,547)
Accrued expense (4,539
Deferred income taxe (2,739
Other liabilities (1,272
Total liabilities $(32,08)
Goodwill (4) $ 9,08:
Final purchase price $ 26,71

@ Represents the purchase price paid in cash atdsieg of the Acquisition of $27.5 millior

(2) " The purchase price adjustment of $787,000 represketsettlement amount that shareholders of WAGtpaJ.S. Auto Parts* USAF”")
for the negative working capital amount of WAG be tate of the Acquisition. The net working capitBWWAG on the date of the
Acquisition was determined in accordance with teénitions and procedures set forth in the Purchiegeement

@) Accounts receivable decreased by $1.5 million f&#r6 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2011ealto the Compar’s correction of ai
immaterial balance sheet reclassification. Seevb&o additional information

(4} The goodwill resulting from the Acquisition was ndaductible for tax purposes. Goodwill increasedhyb million from $7.6 million in
the third quarter of fiscal 2011 due to the Compsegrrection of an immaterial balance sheet reiliastion. See below for additional
information.

F-21



Table of Contents

U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Of the total purchase price, approximately $8.2iamlhas been allocated to trade name assets wiihdefinite life and $9.2 million has
been allocated to amortizable intangible assetsiged} The amortizable intangible assets are bamgrtized on a straight line basis over their
respective useful lives except for internet platfantellectual property which is amortized on anelerated basis over 10 months based on the
Company’s estimated usage of the asset as follows:

Gross
Weighted-Average Carrying
Useful Life Amount

(in thousands
Intangible assets subject to amortizati

Internet platform intellectual proper 10 month $ 4,30C
Product design intellectual prope 9 year: 2,75C
Customer relationshir 4 year: 2,05(
Favorable lease 2.5 year 78
9,17¢
Intangible assets not subject to amortizat

Trade name indefinite life 8,20(
Total $ 17,37¢

WAG'’s financial results have been included in ocomsolidated statement of operations since the aitigui date of August 12, 2010.
Therefore, pro forma information for the fifty-tweeeks ended December 31, 2011 has not been présémte the results of operations of
WAG have been included in our actual consolidag=tlits of operations for the entire period. Théofeing pro forma financial information
presents the results as if the WAG acquisition daxlirred at the beginning of each prior fiscal ywasented (in thousands, except share and
per share amounts):

Fifty-Two Weeks Ended

January 2, 201( January 1, 201!

Net sales $ 299,55: $ 338,88
Net loss (30,829 (29,802
Basic net loss per sha (2.09) (0.9¢)
Diluted net loss per sha (2.09) (0.99)
Weighted average shares used in computing basiosgeper

common shar 29,851,87 30,269,46
Weighted average shares used in computing dilugetbas pe

common shar 29,851,87. 30,269,46

During fiscal 2010, the net sales of $39.1 millaord the net loss of $6.0 million of WAG were inadgdn our consolidated statement of
operations since the acquisition date of Augus2020.

Related to the Acquisition, the Company has ina@iaequisition and integration related costs of $8illion and $7.4 million for the
fiscal years ended January 1, 2011 and Decemb@Q31, respectively, which have been recorded ivegd and administrative expenses.
These costs included one-time contract cancellatists of $1.5 million that the Company recorde8éptember 2011, pursuant to ASC 420
Exit or Disposal Cost Obligatior(*ASC 420"), for terminating WAG's sublease agreement relateitsttormer corporate offices located in
Chicago, lllinois.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2011, the Compdiscovered that certain accounts receivable wermeously overstated by $1.5
million which also resulted in an understatemershb million in related goodwill. Accordingly, tt@ompany reclassified $1.5 million from
accounts receivable to goodwill in the consoliddiathnce sheet as of January 1, 2011. The Commarsyders this an immaterial
reclassification. This reclassification had no efffen the Company’s previously reported consolidatatements of operations, consolidated
statements of shareholders’ equity nor the conatditinet cash provided by (used in) operating iiesy the net cash used in investing
activities and the net cash provided by (usediigrfcing activities within the consolidated stateinaf cash flows.

No significant integration costs are anticipatethia future, as such the majority of the acquisitimd integration related costs have been
paid as of December 31, 2011.

Note 6 — Goodwill and Intangibles

The Company evaluates goodwill for impainin@n an annual basis or more frequently if eventsrcumstances occur that would indic
a reduction in fair value. As of October 31, 20thle Company performed its annual impairment tedttha excess of fair value estimates over
carrying value for our reporting unit was approxieta $50 million. Based on its analysis, there veblodve to be a 38% decrease in the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit to f&tiép 1. During the fiscal year ended December @11 2there was no change to the Company’s
reporting unit and no events or circumstances oeduhat would indicate an impairment of goodwébkkd on the excess of estimated fair v



over carrying value for our reporting unit.
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The following table summarizes the changes in @adgvill (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2008 and January 2, $ 9,77:
Goodwill from WAG acquisitior 7,36t
Balance at January 1, 2011 (as previously repo $17,131
Adjustment to goodwil 1,51(C
Balance at January 1, 2011 (as adjus $18,641
Adjustment to goodwil 207
Balance at December 31, 20 $18,85¢

During fiscal 2011, the Company recorded goodvdjuatments of $1.7 million related to the immatebialance sheet reclassification of
WAG'’s $1.5 million accounts receivable and thelsatent amount of $0.2 million received from thershalders of WAG for the negative

working capital of WAG on the date of the Acquisiti Seé'Note 5 — Business Combinatioriér additional information on the goodwiill
adjustments.

During fiscal 2009, the Company acquired certaibsites and domain names for a purchase price &,8@8, of which $625,000 was
allocated to amortizable intangibles. During fis2@10, the Company acquired certain websites anthdonames for a purchase price of $1.0
million, of which $843,000 was allocated to amabfe intangibles. In addition, associated withabquisition of WAG, approximately $8.2
million of the total purchase price had been alledao trade name assets with an indefinite lifgé $&.2 million had been allocated to
amortizable intangible assets during the third tpraof fiscal 2010, as noted in the table belowribmyfiscal 2011, the Company purchased
certain domain and trade names for a purchase @fi$@4,000, all of which were allocated to intdrigs assets not subject to amortization.

The Company did not note events or changes inmistances indicating that the carrying value ofintangible assets may not be
recoverable in fiscal 2009 and 2010, thereforemmmairment loss was recognized for intangible asastof fiscal year end 2009 and 2010.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company recorded ecash impairment charge of $5.1 million relatedéctain trade name intangible
assets associated with the WAG acquisition. Thaimgent charge was primarily the result of the detation in the economic environment
and lower sales and profitability which generatesses from WAG. Given the indicators of impairméime, Company utilized the Royalty
Savings method in determining fair value of thelérmame intangible assets. The decrease in fuasteftows resulted in these indefinite-lived
assets being impaired, as the carrying value ofrdte names exceeded the fair value.

Intangibles subject to amortization are expensed stmaight-line basis, except for the internetfptan intellectual property which was
amortized on an accelerated basis. Amortizatioreese relating to intangibles totaled $0.7 milli$g,8 million and $3.7 million for fiscal
2009, fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011, respectively.

Intangibles, excluding goodwill, consisted of tidwing at January 1, 2011 and December 31, 201thousands):

January 1, 2011 December 31, 201.

Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accum. Carrying Carrying Accum. Carrying
Useful Life Amount Amort. Amount Amount Amort. Amount

Intangible assets subject to amortizati

Websites Syearr $2,03t $ (594) $1,441 $2,03t $(1,00)) $1,03¢

Internet platform intellectual proper® 10 month 4,30( (1,989 2,31¢ 4,30( (4,300 —
Product design intellectual prope® 9 year 2,75( (11€) 2,634 2,75( (41¢) 2,33¢
Customer relationshif® 4 year: 2,05( (297) 1,85: 2,05( (712) 1,33¢
Assembled workforc 7 year: 47¢ (182) 29¢€ 481 (27%) 20¢€
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January 1, 2011 December 31, 201.
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accum. Carrying Carrying Accum. Carrying
Useful Life Amount Amort. Amount Amount Amort. Amount
Favorable leas@ 2.5 year 78 (19 64 78 (56) 22
Suk-Total 11,69. (3,089 8,60/ 11,69¢ (6,76() 4,93
Intangible assets not subject to amortizat
Domain and trade nam@ Indefinite life 10,11« — 10,11« 5,05( — 5,05(
Total $21,80F $(3,087) $18,71¢ $16,74« $(6,76() $9,98¢

@ Includes the intangible assets acquired in conoeatith the acquisition of WAG
@ Includes domain and trade names of $8.2 milliorchased in connection with the acquisition of WAG. @ December 31, 2011,
impairment loss of $5.1 million was recorded redaie the WAG trade name

The following table summarizes the future estimatedual amortization expense for these assetstiwerext five years (in thousands):

2012 $1,65¢
2013 1,42¢
2014 50¢&
2015 30€
2016 30€
Thereaftel 72¢
Total $4,93¢

Note 7 — Borrowings

In August 2010, the Company executed a Loan andrg@greement (the “Loan Agreement”) and othefimigve documentation for a
$35 million secured credit facility (the “Facility"Silicon Valley Bank (“Bank”) is the lender undie Facility. The Facility is comprised of a
term loan in the original principal amount of $28liwn and a revolving line of credit with availdity up to $10 million. The Facility has a fir
maturity date of June 30, 2014, and borrowings utite Facility bear interest, at the election & @ompany, at LIBOR (with a floor of
1.25%) plus a margin of from 2.00% to 3.00% perumnpor at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plosegin of from 1.00% to 2.00% per
annum, based upon the Company’s maximum fundedrd#@bt An unused revolving line fee of 0.375% panum is payable on the undrawn
committed amount of the revolving line of credittdrest on outstanding borrowings under the tean kEnd the revolving line of credit is
payable no less than quarterly and the outstarglingipal of the term loan is amortized over foeays and payable quarterly, with any
outstanding amount under the Facility to be paifiliihon the final maturity date. Borrowings undbe Facility are secured by liens over all
assets of the Company, including shares of stoelaah of the Company’s subsidiaries. Ten of the @y's subsidiaries are acting as co-
borrowers under the Facility.

The Loan Agreement requires the Company to comjtly asnumber of restrictive covenants, includintaficial covenants related to
maximum funded debt to consolidated EBITDA, ligtydiand consolidated fixed charge coverage ratiegative pledge requirements;
requirements to deliver quarterly and annual cadat#d financial statements; requirements to mairgdequate insurances; prohibitions on
changes in the business and disposition of the @ogip assets; and other customary covenants. Tar Agreement also requires the
Company to obtain a prior written consent from Baak when the Company determines to pay any dids@m or make any distribution
related to its common stock. The Loan Agreemeritides usual and customary events of defaults anddges for facilities of this nature. In
February and October 2011, the Company and the Batgted into Amendment No. 1 and Amendment Noeshectively, to Loan and
Security Agreement and Limited Waiver (collectivelye “Amendments”). The Amendments waived the Camyfs lack of compliance with
the consolidated fixed charge ratio covenant inLth@n Agreement as of January 1, 2011 and Octok#& 111 to more readily accommodate
Company'’s integration of the WAG acquisition. Ind@enber 2011, the Company and the Bank entereddmendment No. 3 to Loan and
Security Agreement, to amend the Loan Agreemerdnanded (the “Third Amendment”). The Third Amenditr@mends the Company’s
permitted indebtedness to allow debt to certaiemollanks in connection with a vendor purchasing pangram in an aggregate amount not to
exceed $2,500,000 at any one time outstanding.
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As of January 1, 2011, the required consolidategdficharge coverage ratio was 1.10:1.00 and thep@ow's consolidated fixed charge
coverage ratio was 0.60:1.00. For purposes of tzlog the consolidated fixed charge coverage r#ti®@ Amendment No. 1 amended the
definition of “Consolidated EBITDA” to allow the @apany to add back restructuring costs and trarsafties and expense related to the
WAG acquisition to the extent paid on or beforee)80, 2011 in an amount not to exceed $5,000,08tkimggregate for the fourth quarter
ending January 1, 2011 and three consecutive fipaters thereafter to the extent paid during gefods. As amended, the Company’s
consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio was 1.@86:4nd was in compliance.

As of October 1, 2011, the required consolidateddicharge coverage ratio was 1.25:1.00 and thep@oy's consolidated fixed charge
coverage ratio was 0.92:1.00. For purposes of tzlog the consolidated fixed charge coverage r#ti®@ Amendment No. 2 amended the
definition of “Consolidated EBITDA” to allow the @apany to add back restructuring costs and trarsattes and expenses related to the
WAG acquisition to the extent paid in the four ceastive fiscal quarters ended October 1, 2011.mMasraled, the Company’s consolidated
fixed charge coverage ratio was 1.80:1.00 and wasinpliance.

As of December 31, 2011, the Loan Agreement, asidett contains the following remaining financiatepant requirements:

. Maximum funded debt to consolidated EBITDA. A radibaggregate credit extensions outstanding téirtgai 2 month
consolidated EBITDA of not greater than the followi

» 1.50:1.00 for quarters ending October 1, 2011 tijinaiune 30, 201
» 1.00:1.00 for each quarter ending theree
. Consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio of nat tean the ratio set forth belo
« 1.25:1.00 for quarters ending July 2, 2011, Octdh&011 and December 31, 2C
e 1.50:1.00 for each quarter ending thereafter (fefdflarch 2012 amendment belo
. Liquidity as follows:
« Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents minus oulistg advances of at least $7,500,(
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For the quarter ended December 31, 2011, the Compas in compliance with all covenants, as amendeder the Loan Agreement.
The Companys financial covenant ratios under the Loan Agredrasrof December 31, 2011, as amended, were 1r2didimum funded de
to consolidated EBITDA and 1.32 for consolidatect@l charge coverage. As of December 31, 2011, timep@ny’s liquidity was $11,460,000.

During March 2012, the Company determined it waxbable that the consolidated fixed charge coveratie would not be in
compliance with the required 1.50:1.00 minimum ldae the quarter ending March 31, 2012. This daiaation was made during the
Company’s monitoring of their covenants, which ut#s monthly calculations of “Consolidated EBITDgrbjected to quarter end. As a res
on March 23, 2012, the Company and the Bank eniateddmendment No. 4 to Loan and Security Agreenfdre “Fourth Amendment”)The
Fourth Amendment reduced the required consolidiited charge coverage ratio to a minimum of 1.0W0for the one quarter ending March
31, 2012 and to 1.25:1.00 for each quarter endiagehfter. Based on the current covenant calcalgtiie Company’s consolidated fixed
charge coverage ratio is projected to be in compéaas of March 31, 2012. All financial covenantsexpected to be in compliance as of
March 31, 2012 and through the remainder of fi2€dl2.

The Company expects to be in compliance with tharftial covenants, as amended, in the Loan Agretetimeugh the remaining term
the Loan Agreement, however, it is possible thiatesch of the financial covenants may occur inftiere, should the Company’s forecasted
EBITDA levels not be achieved. If the Company brescany of the covenants under the Loan Agreenmehisaunable to obtain waivers from
the Bank, the Bank will be able to exercise thigihts and remedies under the Loan Agreement, iimojua call provision on outstanding debt,
which would have a material adverse effect on thm@any’s business and financial condition.

At December 31, 2011, the LIBOR rate and the mangire 1.25% (floor rate) and 2.50% per annum, respdy. The Company had no
borrowings on the revolving line of credit at Dedmn31, 2011. The remaining term loan balance vi&@sdmillion as of December 31, 2011
and is to be repaid according to the following sthe (in thousands):

Payments Due by Perioc
Total 2012 2013 2014

$ 17,87 $6,25( $6,87¢ $4,75(

Based on the borrowing rates currently availabldnéoCompany for bank loans with similar terms aadrage maturities, the fair value
our long-term debt under the Facility approximatsedaarrying amount as of December 31, 2011.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had a cdp#ak obligation of $172,000. S#éote 12 — Commitments and Contingenciés’
further detail.

Note 8 — Stockholders’ Equity and Share-Based Compsation
Common Stock

The Company has 100,000,000 shares of common atghkrized. We have never paid cash dividends oc@umon stock. The
following issuances of common stock were made dufiscal 2011:

The Company issued 136,770 shares of common stogkdption exercises under the 2007 Omnibus PRdjstzussed below.

Effective in fiscal 2010, the Company’s compensatommittee awarded 59,618 shares of restrictexk $tocertain officers of the
Company. The shares were issued in February 20flcdmpensation expense in the amount of $295,@80aacrued based on the market
value of the Company’s stock as of the grant datéscal 2010.

Share-Based Compensation Plan Information

The Company adopted the 2007 Omnibus Incentive (2007 Omnibus Plan”) in January 2007, whielsdme effective on the
effective date (February 8, 2007) of the regisbraitatement filed in connection with the Comparyisal public offering. Under the 2007
Omnibus Plan, the Company was initially authorite@sue 2.4 million shares of common stock undeious instruments plus an automatic
annual increase on the first day of each of the @omw's fiscal years beginning on January 1, 20@Bearding on January 1, 2017 equal to
(i) the lesser of (A) 1,500,000 shares of commoulsor (B) five percent (5%) of the number of sisasécommon stock outstanding on the last
day of the immediately preceding fiscal year orgiich lesser number of shares of common stockt@srdined by the Company’s Board of
Directors. Options granted under the 2007 Omniblas Benerally expire no later than ten years frbendate of grant and generally vest over a
period of four years. The exercise price of ali@pgrants must be equal to 100% of the fair mavieie on the date of grant. The 2007
Omnibus Plan provides for automatic grant of ogitmmpurchase common stock to non-employee director

At December 31, 2011, 2,385,987 shares were aVaifabfuture grants under the 2007 Omnibus Plan.
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The following table summarizes the Company'’s stogton activity under the 2007 Omnibus Plan:

Weighted Average

Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Shares Exercise Price Term (in years) Intrinsic Value
Options outstanding, January 1, 2( 4,815,11! $ 4.1C 7.7¢
Granted 1,080,00! $ 6.57
Exercisec (136,77() $ 3.02
Expired (104,36%) $ 6.51
Forfeited (127,89 $ 6.1¢
Options outstanding, December 31, 2I 5,526,09! $ 4.51 6.9¢ $ 5,191,00!
Vested and expected to vest at December :
2011 5,235,86! $ 4.4z 6.84 $ 5,167,00!
Options exercisable, December 31, 2! 3,540,90: $ 3.97 6.2¢ $ 4,039,00!

The weighted-average fair value of options gramti@dng fiscal 2009, fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011 Was40, $3.75 and $3.28,
respectively.

The intrinsic value of stock options at the dat¢hef exercise is the difference between the fdirevaf the stock at the date of exercise
and the exercise price. During fiscal 2010 and 2€1d total intrinsic value of the exercised opsiavas $1.4 million and $0.5 million,
respectively. There was no intrinsic value for ops exercised in fiscal 2009. Aggregate Intrins&dué (in the table) is calculated as the
difference between the exercise price of underlgwgrds and the fair value price of the Compangiamon stock for options that were in-the-
money as of December 31, 2011.

Under the 2007 Omnibus Plan, the Company had $8lidmof unrecognized share-based compensatioeesp related to stock options
outstanding as of December 31, 2011, which expsraepected to be recognized over a weighted-aequagod of 2.47 years.

Additional information with respect to outstandiogtions under the 2007 Omnibus Plan as of Dece@he2011 is as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Contractual Term Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Price Options Outstanding (in years) Price Options Exercisable Price
$1.31 75,00( 7.1 $ 1.31 51,56: $ 1.31
$1.59 725,00( 7.01 $ 1.5¢ 528,64« $ 1.5¢
$1.74-$2.14 720,69: 6.81 $ 1.91 547,68 $ 1.9:
$3.0¢-$3.24 722,58¢ 6.2¢ $ 3.1Z 649,66" $ 3.1Z
$3.64-$4.47 567,29:. 6.57 $ 3.9 503,33¢ $ 3.8t
$4.64-$5.00 616,60: 8.4¢ $ 481 226,41( $ 491
$5.3¢-$5.81 649,00( 6.3( $ 5.5¢ 526,08: $ 5.62
$5.8¢-$7.80 598,37! 6.5¢€ $ 7.1: 150,45 $ 6.9t
$7.9¢-$8.08 567,50( 8.0 $ 8.0C 117,50( $ 8.0¢
$8.3--$9.41 284,03¢ 6.4¢ $ 8.5¢ 239,57( $ 8.6F
Totals 5,526,00! 6.9¢ $ 451 3,540,90: $ 3.97

The Company adopted the 2007 New Employee InceRfiae (the “2007 New Employee Plan”) in October 200nder the 2007 New
Employee Plan, the Company is authorized to isstienllion shares of common stock under variousrimaents solely to new employees.
Options granted under the 2007 New Employee Plaergdly expire no later than ten years from the @ditgrant and generally vest over a
period of four years. The exercise price of ali@pgrants must not be less than 100% of the fairket value on the date of grant.

At December 31, 2011, 750,000 shares were avaifabfeiture grants under the 2007 New Employee Plan
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The following table summarizes the Company'’s stogtion activity under the 2007 New Employee Plan:

Weighted Average

Remaining
Weighted Contractual Term
Average Aggregate
Shares Exercise Price (in years) Intrinsic Value
Options outstanding, January 1, 2( 1,250,001 $ 5.6¢ 7.32
Granted — —
Exercisec — —
Expired — —
Forfeited — —
Options outstanding, December 31, 2 1,250,00! $ 5.6t 6.3 $ 1,610,001
Vested and expected to vest at December
2011 1,246,34: $ 5.6€ 6.32 $ 1,598,001
Options exercisable, December 31, 2 1,133,33. $ 6.11 6.24 $ 1,234,001

The weighted-average fair value of options grawmiiedng fiscal 2009 was $0.51, there were no newooptgranted in fiscal 2010 and
fiscal 2011.

Aggregate Intrinsic Value (in the table) is caldcathas the difference between the exercise pritieeofinderlying awards and the fair
value price of the Company’s common stock for amithat were in-the-money as of December 31, 2011.

Under the 2007 New Employee Plan, the Company B&®D$H0 of unrecognized share-based compensati@nsgpelated to stock
options outstanding as of December 31, 2011, whigiense is expected to be recognized over a weighterage period of 1.13 years.

Additional information with respect to outstandiogtions under the 2007 New Employee Plan as of mbee 31, 2011 is as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Contractual Term Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Price Options Outstanding (in years) Price Options Exercisable Price
$1.15-$1.59 500,00( 7.1% $ 1.1f 383,33: $ 1.1f
$8.65 750,00( 5.7¢ $ 8.6¢ 750,00( $ 8.6¢
Totals 1,250,001 6.3¢ $ 5.6t 1,133,33 $ 6.11

The Company adopted the U.S. Auto Parts Netwoik,2006 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plaim’March 2006. All stock options
purchase common stock granted to employees in 2@d6 granted under the 2006 Plan and had exendtesgqual to the fair value of the
underlying stock, as determined by the Company'arBof Directors on the applicable option granedat the time of grant, the Board of
Directors determined the value of the underlyiragktoy considering a number of factors, includigjdrical and projected financial results,
the risks the Company faced, the preferences dEtdmpany’s preferred stock holders and the ladigafdity of the Company’s common
stock. No stock options were granted by the Compatiny to the adoption of the 2006 Plan. As of Dmber 31, 2011, there were no shares
available for future grants under the 2006 Plan.

The following table summarizes the Company'’s stogtons activity under the 2006 Plan:

Weighted Average

Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Term Aggregate
Shares Exercise Price (in years) Intrinsic Value
Options outstanding, January 1, 2011 713,30 $ 8.2¢ 5.47%
Granted — $ —
Exercisec — $ —
Expired (34,67¢) $ 11.4¢
Forfeited — $ —
Options outstanding, December 31, 2I 678,62¢ $ 8.1z 4.4¢4 $ —
Vested and expected to vest at December
2011 678,62¢ $ 8.1z 4,42 $ —
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Weighted Average

Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Term Aggregate
Shares Exercise Price (in years) Intrinsic Value
Options exercisable, December 31, 2! 678,62t $ 8.1z 4.4¢ $ —

There were no new options granted during fiscaP2fi8cal 2010 and fiscal 2011.

Aggregate Intrinsic Value (in the table) is caldcathas the difference between the exercise pricaadérlying awards and the fair value
price of the Company’s common stock for optiong there in-the-money as of December 31, 2011.

The Company has fully recognized share-based cosagien expense related to the 2006 Plan stockmptiatstanding as of
December 31, 2011.

Additional information with respect to outstandiogtions under the 2006 Plan as of December 31, 044 follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted- Weighted-

Remaining Average Average

Options Contractual Term Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding (in years) Price Options Exercisable Price
$6.78 480,88t 4.24 $ 6.7¢ 480,88t $ 6.7¢
$9.17 22,80( 4.3¢ $ 9.17 22,80( $ 9.17
$$11.68 174,94( 4.9¢ $ 11.6¢ 174,94( $ 11.6¢
Total 678,62¢ 4.44 $ 8.1z 678,62 $ 8.1z

Warrants
The following table summarizes the outstanding e@s at December 31, 2011:

Weighted Average

Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Term Aggregate

Shares Exercise Price (in years) Intrinsic Value
Warrants outstanding, January 1, 2011 50,00( $ 4.61 5.7:
Granted — $ —
Exercisec — $ —
Expired — $ —
Forfeited — $ —
Warrants outstanding, December 31, 2 50,00( $ 4.61 4.74 $ 67,000
Warrants exercisable, December 31, 2 43,33: $ 4.64 474 $ 58,00(

On May 5, 2009, the Company issued warrants tohase up to 30,000 shares of common stock at anisagrice of $2.14, which
warrants terminate seven years after their gratet ddne warrants were issued in connection withfitrencial advisory services provided by a
consultant to the Company. The warrants vest itytisix equal monthly increments of 833 shares eadhefast calendar day of each caler
month commencing May 5, 2009. The grant date falme of these warrants issued on May 5, 2009 w&¥9%der share. Accordingly, these
non-employee equity instruments are re-measuréuegssest over the requisite service period. Thmeasured fair value of these warrants
was $2.82 per share as of December 31, 2011. Oh2%p12010, the Company issued additional warrémisurchase up to 20,000 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $8.32, ts#tme holder in connection with the financial adiisservices provided to the Company. The
warrants terminate seven years after their gratet ddne warrants vest in twenty-four equal monthrements of 833 shares each on the last
calendar day of each calendar month commencing 2pyi2010. The grant date fair value of the add#l warrants issued on April 27, 2010
was $2.12 per share. Accordingly, these non-emplegpiity instruments are re-measured as they vestloe requisite service period. The re-
measured fair value of these warrants was $1.28hmee as of December 31, 2011. The Company detedntine fair value of the warrants at
the date of grant, and upon the re-measuremers,daing the Black-Scholes option pricing modeklasn the fair value of the underlying
common stock, the exercise price, remaining cottedderm, risk-free rate and expected volatiltyp warrants were
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exercised in fiscal 2009, 2010 and 2011. Aggretratensic Value (in the table) is calculated as diféerence between the exercise price of
underlying awards and the fair value price of tleenPany’s common stock for warrants that were inftiteney as of December 31, 2011. T«
warrants sharbased compensation expense recognized in fisc&l, 2000 and 2011, amounted to $20,154, $81,29%65(818, respectivel

Performance Stock Options

In February 2009, the Board approved option gramitich contained market condition requirements.seheptions will vest based on the
achievement of specified stock price appreciatidiestones, which represents a market conditionr aviere-year period commencing on
February 16, 2009. The February 2009 option graete for 100,000 shares. The fair value of theamstivere estimated on the date of grant
using the Monte Carlo option pricing model with folowing weighted-average assumptions for theqeeended:

January 2,
2010
Expected life 3.3 year
Risk-free interest rat 1.87%
Expected volatility 50%
Expected dividend yiel 0%
Initial stock price $ 1.1F

In fiscal 2009, 2010 and 2011, the Board appro\sjd00 shares, 200,000 shares and 125,000 shespsgtively, of performance
options that vest over a four-year period basetherachievement of operational goals. The perfoomamption grants were valued using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model in the same neairas other stock option grants, as discussed below

Share-Based Compensation Expense

The fair value of each option grant was estimatethe date of grant using the Black-Scholes opgigcing model with the following
assumptions for each of the periods ended:

January 2, January 1, December 31
2010 2011 2011
Expected life 5.99-6.25year 6-6.25year 6-6.25year
Risk-free interest rat 2% - 3% 2% - 3% 1%-3%
Expected volatility 50%- 52% 51% 50%- 52%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%

The Company recognized shdrased compensation expense of $3.3 million, $2llfomand $2.6 million, net of $245,000, $186,00@
$218,000 of expense capitalized as internally-dgped software, for each of fiscal 2009, 2010 arntll2@espectively. The Company has
recognized an income tax benefit of $1.2 millionfiecal 2009. No tax benefit was recognized fecél 2010 and fiscal 2011 due to the
valuation allowance position. Share-based compemset included in our Consolidated Statements péi@tions as follows:

52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended

January 2, 201( January 1, 201! December 31, 201

Marketing expens $ 43€ $ 321 $ 413
General and administrative expel 2,27¢ 1,86¢ 1,58(
Fulfillment expenst 213 37¢€ 37C
Technology expens 34E 17¢€ 244
Total shar-based compensation expel $ 3,27( $ 2,74 $ 2,607

Under ASC 718, forfeitures are estimated at the tifhgrant and revised, if necessary, in subsequends if actual forfeitures
significantly differ from those estimates. Our gsdited forfeiture rate was calculated based on Bltstarical forfeitures experienced under
equity plans. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 20ftle Company performed its periodic review of tegneated forfeiture rate during the last fifty-
two weeks and noted no significant forfeitures veshicould change the estimated forfeiture rate frbengrevious year. Therefore, the weighted-
average forfeiture rate from 10% to 18% was usexbasistent with the prior year.
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There was $3.5 million, net of estimated forfeitiog approximately $1.8 million, of unrecognizedmensation expense related to stock
options and warrants as of December 31, 2011, wéplense is expected to be recognized over a vesighterage period of 2.40 years. The
table below sets forth the expected amortizatioshaire-based compensation expense for the nexyéaus for all options and warrants
outstanding and unvested as of December 31, 28%@irang all employees remain employed by the Comfrartheir remaining
vesting periods (in thousands):

Fifty -Two Weeks Ending

Dec. 29 Dec. 28 Jan. 3 Jan. 2
2012 2013 2015 2016
Future amortization of share-based compensation $1,68¢ $1,08¢ $62C $153

Note 9 — Net Income (Loss) Per Share

Net income (loss) per share has been computeccordance with ASC 26Barnings per Sharelhe following table sets forth the
computation of basic and diluted net income (Ig®s)share:

52 Weeks Ende 52 Weeks Ende 52 Weeks Ende
January 2, January 1, December 31,
2010 2011 2011

(in thousands, except share and per share dat
Net income (Loss) Per Shal
Numerator:
Net income (loss $ 1,317 $ (13,929 $ (15,13)
Denominator
Weighted-average common shares outstanding

(basic) 29,851,87 30,269,46 30,545,63
Common equivalent shares from common st

options and warran 957,23t — —
Weighted-average common shares outstanding

(diluted) 30,809,11 30,269,46 30,545,63
Basic net income (loss) per shi $ 0.04 $ (0.4¢) $ (0.50
Diluted net income (loss) per shi $ 0.04 $ (0.46) $ (0.50

Potentially dilutive securities were not includede calculation of diluted net income (loss) gleare because these securities would be
anti-dilutive due to the Company’s stock price. Takated securities are as follows (in common egjeivt shares):

52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks

Ended Ended Ended
January 2, January 1, December 31

2010 2011 2011
Common stock warrants — 12,03: 20,00(
Options to purchase common st 6,777,49 1,508,28! 2,524,98.
Total 6,777,49. 1,520,23: 2,544,98.

Additionally, due to the net loss in fiscal 201@discal 2011, 1,700,550 and 1,418,460, respegtic@mmon equivalent warrant and
option shares have been excluded from the computafidiluted net income (loss) per share.

Note 10 — Income Taxes

As discussed ifiNote 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Polcéd Nature of Operations”the Company applies the current U.S.
GAAP on accounting for uncertain tax positions, ethprescribe a recognition threshold and a measnmeattribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of tax positions takexxpected to be taken in a tax return. For thesesfits to be recognized, a tax position
must be more-likely-than-not to be sustained up@menation by taxing authorities. The amount redpegh is measured as the largest amount
of benefit that has greater than 50 percent lilelthof being realized upon ultimate settlement.ddiesider many factors when evaluating and
estimating our tax positions and tax benefits, Whitay require periodic adjustments and which mayanourately forecast actual outcomes.
As of December 31, 2011, the Company had no materi@cognized tax benefits, interest or penaliéésted to federal and state income tax
matters. The Company’s policy is to record inteegst penalties as income tax expense.
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During fiscal 2010, the Company was audited byltibernal Revenue Service for the year ended DeceBhe2008. The audit was
concluded with no change. The tax years 2007-28@t&am open to examination by the major taxing glicons to which the Company is
subject, except the Internal Revenue Service faclvthe tax years 2009-2010 remain open. The Cogngaas not anticipate a significant
change to the amount of unrecognized tax benefitéimthe next twelve months.

The components of income (loss) before income tagasist of the following:

52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks

Ended Ended Ended
January 2, January 1, December 31

2010 2011 2011

(in thousands)

Domestic operation $ 3,79 $ (2,540 $ (16,97¢)
Foreign operation 64t 832 327
Total income (loss) before income ta: $ 4,44 $ (1,70%) $ (16,649

Income tax provision (benefit) for fiscal 2009,cfd 2010 and fiscal 2011 consists of the following:

52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended
January 2, January 1, December 31
2010 2011 2011

(in thousands)

Current:

Federal ta $ (779 $ (439 $ —

State tay 19¢ 8 23

Foreign tax 56 73 4
Total current taxe (525) (359 27
Deferred:

Federal ta 2,56¢ 61 (5,516

State ta 1,08( 13 (1,729

Foreign tax — — —
Total deferred taxe 3,64¢ 74 (7,249
Valuation allowanct — 12,49¢ 5,70¢
Income tax provision (benefit), consolida $ 3,128 $12,21¢ $ (1,519

Income tax provision (benefit) differs from the ambthat would result from applying the federalstary rate as follows:

52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
Ended Ended Ended
January 2, January 1, December 31
2010 2011 2011
(in thousands)
Income tax at U.S. federal statutory r $ 1,511 $ (58)) $ (5,66))
Shar-based compensatic 1,08¢ (93 21
State income tax, net of federal tax efi 72¢ (75¢ (1,629
Tax exempt intere: (16) (8) 3
Foreign tax (163 (210 (10¢)
Non deductible acquisition cos — 25¢ —
Other (29 1 14C
Change in valuation allowan — 13,61( 5,72¢
Effective tax provision (benefi $ 3,128 $12,21¢ $ (1,519
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The Company’s effective tax rate was impacted lopiine taxes incurred in foreign and state jurisditgi With respect to the income of
its foreign subsidiaries, the Company takes thétipaghat the earnings of the foreign subsidiages permanently invested in that jurisdiction.
Additionally, the foreign subsidiaries are currgntl a cumulative deficit earnings and profits piasi for tax purposes. As a result, no
additional income taxes have been provided on tissiple repatriation of these earnings to the gar@mpany. The favorable impact of fore
taxes is due in large part to a tax holiday inRhdippines, which was effective through Septenf@kl. The Company is in the process of
applying for a one year extension. Although managrgrexpects the extension to be approved based discussion with the foreign taxing
authority, the full Philippines tax rate has beppleed to the earnings after the expiration ofittigal tax holiday. The impact of this tax
holiday decreased foreign taxes by $136,000, $082ahd $144,000 for fiscal 2009, fiscal 2010 asddi 2011, respectively. The benefit of
tax holiday on net income (loss) per share (diluteals immaterial for the related years.

For fiscal 2009, fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011, tffeative tax rate for the Company was 70.33%, (2&B% and 9.08%, respectively. The
Company’s effective tax rate for fiscal 2009 différom the U.S. federal statutory rate primarilyaagsult of state income taxes and other non-
deductible permanent differences including stodkoopforfeitures with a tax effected value of $inillion as described below. The Compasy’
effective tax rate for fiscal 2010 differs from tbeS. federal statutory rate primarily as a resfithe recording of a $13.6 million valuation
allowance against the Company’s deferred tax asBeésCompanyg effective tax rate for fiscal 2011 differs frohetU.S. federal statutory r:
primarily as a result of the recording of a $5.Tlion valuation allowance against the Company’setiefd tax assets. Additionally, the
Company’s fiscal 2011 tax benefit was substantidie/result of a $5.1 million impairment loss otaimgibles, as further discussedNote —

6 Goodwill and Intangibles’

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitie}aauary 2, 2010, January 1, 2011 and Decemb&031, consisted of the following:

Deferred tax asset
Inventory and inventory related rese
Shar-based compensatic
Amortization
Sales and bad debt allowan
Vacation accrue
Other comprehensive incor
Net operating loss and AMT credit ce-forwards
Other

Total deferred tax asse
Valuation Allowance

Net deferred tax asse

Deferred tax liabilities
Tax over book depreciatic
Tax over book amortizatic
Prepaid catalog expens
Total deferred tax liabilitie

Net deferred tax assets (liabilitie

January 2,

2010

2,10(¢
$12,49¢

January 1, December 31

2011 2011
(in thousands)

$ 1,71¢ $ 1,591
3,21¢ 4,017
12,517 9,41¢
68¢ 79t

284 29C

34 9
4,16¢ 13,25(
322 65
22,94t 29,43t
(18,33%) (22,81)
4,61( 6,61¢
1,582 5,27(
5,28¢ 2,22¢
42€ 272
7,297 7,76¢

$ (2,68) $ (1,150

At December 31, 2011, federal and state net opgrétiss (“NOL") carryforwards were $28.3 million&f42.2 million respectively.
Federal NOL carryforwards of $2.7 million were aicgd in the acquisition of WAG which are subjecinternal Revenue Code section 382
and limited to an annual usage limitation of $188,0Additionally, a tax benefit of $0.9 million e¢kd to the federal and state NOL
carryforwards which was created by the exercisgtadk options will be credited to additional paideapital once recognized. Federal NOL
carryforwards expire in 2029 and 2030, while st carryforwards begin to expire in 2016. TheestdOL carryforwards expire in the

respective tax years as follows:

2016- 2022
2023- 2031
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The valuation allowance for deferred tax assetsromz during fiscal 2010 and 2011 is based on arikely than not threshold. The
ability to realize deferred tax assets dependerability to generate sufficient taxable incoméhm the carryback or carryforward periods
provided for in the tax law for each applicable jiaisdiction. We considered the following possibtaurces of taxable income when assessing
the realization of deferred tax assets:

. Future reversals of existing taxable temporaryeddhces

. Future taxable income exclusive of reversing terapodifferences and carryforwarc
. Taxable income in prior carryback years; i

. Tax-planning strategie:

The assessment regarding whether a valuation atlosvis required or should be adjusted also corsidenong other matters, the nature,
frequency and severity of recent losses of the @oethUSAP and WAG operations, forecasts of futuddiability, the duration of statutory
carryforward periods, our experience with tax htttés expiring unused and tax planning alternativesiaking such judgments, significant
weight is given to evidence that can be objectivesified.

Concluding that a valuation allowance is not reggiis difficult when there is significant negater@dence that is objective and
verifiable, such as cumulative losses in recentgdithough we expect that the operations of #eently acquired WAG business and our
ability to achieve future profitability of these eqations was enhanced by the cost reductions tuatied as a result of the acquisition and
subsequent integration efforts, WAG’s historic @tierg results remain relevant as they are refleativthe industry and the effect of economic
conditions. The fundamental businesses and inheskstin which the WAG business operates did hainge from those which existed priol
the acquisition. We utilized a three-year analg$iactual results as the primary measure of cunvelédsses in recent years. However, because
a substantial portion of those cumulative loss&gedo impairment of intangible assets and goddthibse three-year cumulative results are
adjusted for the effect of these items. In addijtibe near- and medium-term financial outlook iesidered when assessing the need for a
valuation allowance.

The valuation of deferred tax assets requires juggrand assessment of the future tax consequehegsms that have been recorded in
the financial statements or in the tax returns, @andfuture profitability represents our best estienof those future events. Changes in our
current estimates, due to unanticipated eventsharwise, could have a material effect on our folanhcondition and results of operations.
Prior to the acquisition of WAG, the Company couldd that it was more likely than not that we worddlize the deferred tax assets in all
jurisdictions. However, with the acquisition of WA® 2010, based largely on the weight of the comioumulative thre-year adjusted loss
position, it was determined that it was not mokelf than not that the Company would realize itsdeferred tax assets as of January 1, 2011.
Therefore, a valuation allowance of $18.3 millioaswecorded as of January 1, 2011, of which $4llfomivas recorded in relation to WAG
connection with our acquisition in August 2010. &a®n the same determination, an additional valnallowance of $5.7 million was
recorded as of December 31, 2011, resulting inw@atian allowance balance of $22.8 million as otBmber 31, 2011.

If, in the future, we generate taxable income eustained basis in jurisdictions where we haverdazbfull valuation allowances, our
conclusion regarding the need for full valuatiolmabnces in these tax jurisdictions could changsulting in the reversal of some or all of the
valuation allowances. If our operations generatalite income prior to reaching profitability onwstined basis, we would reverse a portic
the valuation allowance related to the correspandialized tax benefit for that period, without ohg our conclusions on the need for a full
valuation allowance against the remaining net defetax assets.

Included in accrued expenses are income taxes [@agh$39,000, $95,000 and $93,000 for the fisealrg ended 2009, 2010 and 2011,
respectively, consisting primarily of foreign taxes

Note 11 — Related-Party Transactions

Beginning in November 2003, the Company leasecdoitporate headquarters and primary warehouse frianCNloe, LLC (“Nia Chloe),
a member of which, Sol Khazani, is one of our baaeinbers. Another Nia Chloe member, Mehran Nia, alss one of our board members
until his resignation in December 2009. Lease paymand expenses associated with this related padpgement totaled $535,000, $389,000
and $374,000, respectively, for fiscal years 2@08,0 and 2011. The Company has evaluated itsopkitip with Nia Chloe with regard to
ASC 810Consolidation(*ASC 810”) . The Company has determined that Nido€ does not meet the criteria for consolidatioder ASC 810
and therefore this entity is not consolidated im @ompany'’s financial statements.
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From time to time, the Company purchased invenfianyn an entity that was partially owned until 2a@@a member of the Company’s
Board of Directors. During fiscal 2009, the Compguychased inventory totaling $330,000, from thiétgnwvhich the Company believes to be
at fair market value.

Since October 2006, the Company has purchasedpaidh engine marketing services from an entitylo€h a member of the
Company’s Board of Directors served as CEO unfi®8and chairman until mid-2009. During fiscal 200% Company purchased paid search
engine marketing services totaling $225,000 froenghtity, which the Company believes to be atrfarket value.

In September 2008, the Company entered into a kagrvaement with a member of the Company’s Boardiméctors, Mehran Nia, to
provide consulting services. The arrangement cbalterminated by either party at anytime, and thectbr was paid $10,000 per month.
Mr. Nia resigned from the Board of Directors in Batber 2009. During fiscal 2009 and 2010, the tmakulting fees paid were $120,000 and
$10,000, respectively, to the individual. The agament was terminated in January 2010, and thedamanent was made to settle the account
at that time.

The Company has entered into indemnification agesgswith the Company’s directors and executiveefs. These agreements require
the Company to indemnify these individuals to thiéekt extent permitted under law against liakgbtthat may arise by reason of their service
to the Company, and to advance expenses incurradesilt of any proceeding against them as tolwfiey could be indemnified. The
Company also intends to enter into indemnificaigneements with the Company’s future directorsexetutive officers.

Note 12 — Commitments and Contingencies

The Company’s corporate headquarters and primarghease facilities are located in Carson, Califariis of December 31, 2011, we
maintained multiple separate leases for the CafGalifornia facilities, one of which will expire Ma31, 2013 and another is scheduled to
expire on March 31, 2012.

On September 22, 2011, the Company entered intblaase agreement (the “Sublease”) with Timec Compec. (“Timec”) for the
leasing of approximately 25,000 square feet of cential office space located at 16941 Keegan Ave@aeson, California 90746. The
Sublease enabled the Company to consolidate iporate office space from three buildings into care will allow the Company to
consolidate its California fulfillment operatiomg® one warehouse, which reduced its monthly repéese and is expected to create wareh
operating efficiencies once the space consoliddiambeen completed. The Sublease has an initialde60 months (the “Initial Term”), and
commenced on November 1, 2011. Pursuant to thestefithe Sublease, effective thend2 month of thitealrTerm, we have the ability to
terminate the Sublease in exchange for the payofentermination fee. Additionally, we have theioptto renew the Sublease at the end o
Initial Term for an additional 12 month period,vasll as the option to renew the Sublease for aitiaddl period thereafter through January
2020. Pursuant to the terms of the Sublease, tligineluding additional rent, shall be approxiniya®26,300 per month for the first year,
$27,600 per month for the second year, $29,100nperth for the third year, $30,600 per month forfinath year, and $32,300 per month for
the fifth year. Rent for any subsequent term, afterexpiration of the Initial Term, will be negatiéd in good faith between the parties. Under
the terms of the Sublease, we are required to aininertain levels of insurance and are requirdddemnify Timec for losses incurred that
related to our use or occupancy of the property.

In January 2010, the Company’s Philippines subsidéatered into a new lease agreement that witbmecodate the Company’s
Philippines workforce into one office building froits previous offices in Pasig and Makati; the ésafor the Pasig and Makati facilities were
terminated in July and October 2010, respectivétyder the terms of the lease agreement, the Cormgudatgd approximately 39,665 square
feet of space for a period of 63 months, effecklach 1, 2010. Monthly rental fee of approximat$®6,000 is subject to 5% annual escalation
beginning on the 3rd year of the lease term andwable for a sixty (60)-month term upon mutual agrent of both parties.

In December 2008, the Company entered into a faer-pperating lease for warehouse space in Chdggpéiaginia, which commenced
in January 2009 and was initially scheduled to expi December 2013. Under the terms of the lehseCompany added approximately 72,
square feet of space for initial monthly rent opegximately $15,000 with annual rent escalationddiionally, the Company had the option to
extend the terms for an additional five years obefore June 30, 2013. In July 2011, we signediexyfear extension to June 30, 2016, which
also added approximately 87,000 square feet ofesgdee monthly base rent commitment was $59,7@0 Becember 31, 2011.

Upon our acquisition of WAG, we assumed a leassedlto their office and warehouse space (60,84&redfeet) in Independence, Ohio
which was originally executed on January 1, 2008amended on October 3, 2003 and February 1, Z0@8lease expires on January 31,
2013, with two five-year renewal options. The mdpthase rent commitment was $16,700 as of Deceidibe2011.
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Also, upon our acquisition of WAG, we assumed deage related to their corporate headquarter offi2e323 square feet) in Chicago,
lllinois which was originally executed on DecemBdef007. The term of the lease commenced on Magd@8 and would have expired on
January 13, 2017. The annual base rent for thialiféase term through January 31, 2009 was $0l®mivith an annual escalation of $0.1
million commencing from February 1, 2009 througé thmaining lease term. In October 2011, the CompAA\G, and Discovery
Communications, LLC (“Discovery”) entered into ayput Agreement for the purpose of providing Disagwsith an incentive to enter into a
direct lease agreement with 111 East Wacker LLGgtBVacker”) for WAG’s former corporate headquariecated in Chicago, lllinois. In
connection with the Buyout Agreement, the totaigdtion of $1.5 million that was recorded in Sepbem2011 was paid by the Company to
Discovery during the fourth quarter of fiscal 20Also, in October 2011, the Company, WAG, East Véaend Marketing Werks, Inc.
(“Marketing Werks’) entered into a Lease, Subleasd, License Termination and Surrender Agreemébat‘{[ermination Agreement”) for the
purpose of terminating WAG’s sublease agreemerit Mirketing Werks, dated December 4, 2007, relaidafAG’s former corporate
headquarters in Chicago, lllinois.

Facility rent expense, inclusive of amounts paidelated party Nia Chloe, for fiscal years 20091@@nd 2011, was $1.9 million, $2.4
million and $2.6 million, respectively.

Future minimum facility lease payments requiredarrttie above operating leases as of December 21,&@ $1,653,000, $1,283,000,
$1,130,000, $1,127,000 and $691,000 for 2012 t® 2@kpectively.

Capital lease commitments at December 31, 2011 asfellows:

2012 201: Total
Capital lease commitmen $14:z $38 $181
Less: interest paymen _ (8 ) )
Capital lease principal obligatiol $13¢ $37 $172

Legal Matters

The Company is subject to legal proceedings arithslavhich arise in the ordinary course of its bass Although occasional adverse
decisions or settlements may occur, the potertgs, lif any, cannot be reasonably estimated. Honvédve Company believes that the final
disposition of such matters will not have a matax@verse effect on the financial position, resafteperations or cash flow of the Company
with the exception of the items noted below. Thenpany maintains liability insurance coverage tagebthe Company’s assets from losses
arising out of or involving activities associatedhwongoing and normal business operations.

Parts Geek Litigation

In June 2009, the Company filed suit in the Uniidtes District Court for the Central District adilfornia against Parts Geek LLC
(“Parts Geek”), certain of its members and emplseyfee misappropriation of trade secrets, breaatootract and unfair competition and
requesting monetary damages and injunctive redied, Parts Geek filed an answer in August 2009ahudry 2010, the complaint was amer
to include claims for copyright infringement andaid Lucas Thomason, a former employee, as ani@ualiparty. Parts Geek filed an answer
and counterclaims to the amended complaint in Fepra010. Each party filed a motion for summarygenent requesting that the Court rule
on all claims made in this matter without sendimg matter to a jury. In June 2010, the Court ra@edll claims in the matter, denying the
Company'’s claims against Parts Geek and Lucas Téomand denying Parts Geek’s claims against thep@ogn The judge additionally
denied Parts Geek’s counterclaims against the Coynarts Geek and Lucas Thomason petitioned thet @morder the Company to pay
their legal fees and costs, the Court ordered thrafany to do so and in August 2010 all partieusdted that approximately $1.1 million of
legal fees and costs would be owed to Parts Gegkacas Thomason should the Company lose its apgpesih its appeal and lose in trial. A
bond has been posted to guarantee payment of $tlidnmplus interest, at a cost of approximately@million to the Company. The Comps
is not required to pay the fees and costs at ithis; tthey would be due if the Company loses itseappnd determines to not appeal beyond the
9th Circuit Court of Appeals, or if the Company wion appeal but loses at trial once the case ianmded to the trial court and, in accordance
with ASC 450-20Loss ContingencieSASC 450-20"), the Company has not accrued fos¢hiees and costs. The Company filed an appeal an
filed its initial brief on January 21, 2011. The@hkebrief was filed March 21, 2011. The appeal hasn fully briefed by all parties and oral
argument before the® Circuit Court of Appeals oedion March 6, 2012. The ruling on the appeahiey9th Circuit Court of Appeals is
pending. The Company has analyzed this matterdardance with ASC 450-20 and, in accordance wighdifinition of probable loss
described therein, it has concluded that no acdsuacessary at this time. In addition, the Corgdeglieves that any reasonably possible Ic
which may be incurred would not be material tofthancial statements as a whole.
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California Air Resources Board Inquiry

The Company received an inquiry by the CaliforninResources Board (“CARB”) into sales of non-Gatifia compliant catalytic
converters in the state of California via our stsbip and drop-ship network. In March 2010, andragaJune 2010, the Company met with
CARB to discuss alleged sales of catalytic convsiiteto California by the Company and third-pantiypgliers that are not compliant with
California regulations. CARB informed the Compahgttpenalties shall be assessed with regard to@mcompliant sales. On October 26,
2011, the Company and CARB entered into a settltagneement related to this inquiry. Without admgtany liability, the Company agreed
to pay a non-material cash penalty, subject togeffset by contributions from some of the Comparthird-party suppliers, in exchange for a
release from CARB of the Company and such thirdypsuppliers.

Asbestos

WAG is a named defendant in several lawsuits innglelaims for damages caused by installation akés during the late 1960’s and
early 1970's that contained asbestos. WAG markegetdin brakes, but did not manufacture any brak&sG maintains liability insurance
coverage to protect its and the Company’s assets lvsses arising from the litigation and coverisgerovided on an occurrence rather than a
claims made basis, and the Company is not expéatedur significant out-of-pocket costs in connectwith this matter that would be
material to its consolidated financial statements.

Note 13 — Employee Retirement Plan and Deferred Cgmensation Plan

Effective February 17, 2006, the Company adoptédlgk) defined contribution retirement plan covgralil full time employees who
have completed one month of service. The Compary atats sole discretion, match fifty cents pelatoup to 6% of each participating
employee’s salary. The Compasycontributions vest in annual installments oveedhyears. Discretionary contributions made byGbepany
totaled $154,000, $213,000 and $300,000 for fi26&0, fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011, respectively.

In January 2010, the Company adopted the U.S. Ratts Network, Inc. Management Deferred Compensé&tlan (the “Deferred
Compensation Plan”), for the purpose of providiighty compensated employees a program to meetfihaincial planning needs. The
Deferred Compensation Plan provides participants thie opportunity to defer up to 90% of their baakary and up to 100% of their annual
earned bonus, all of which, together with the aisged investment returns, are 100% vested fronotiiget. The Deferred Compensation Plan,
which is designed to be exempt from most provisimithe Employee Retirement Security Act of 19&informally funded by the Company
through the purchase of Compamyed life insurance policies with the Company (Ewer) as the owner and beneficiary, in order tesprve
the tax-deferred savings advantages of a non-ipaliflan. The plan assets are the cash surrentler @bthe Company-owned life insurance
policies and not associated with the deferred corsqt@on liability. The deferred compensation lidigs (consisting of employer contributions,
employee deferrals and associated earnings anekloarse general unsecured obligations of USAP.ilitias under the Plan are recorded at
amounts due to participants, based on the fairevafyparticipants’ selected investments. The Compaay at its discretion contribute certain
amounts to eligible employee accounts. In Janu@iy) 2the Company began to contribute 50% of ttet #% of participants’ eligible
contributions into their Deferred Compensation Rlaoounts. In September 2010, the Company establishd transferred its ownership to a
rabbi trust to hold the Company-owned life insumpolicies. As of January 1, 2011, the assets asacéated liabilities of the Deferred
Compensation Plan were $0.3 million $0.2 millioespectively, and are included in other non-curassets and other non-current liabilities in
our consolidated balance sheets. As of Decembe2(®1l,, the assets and associated liabilities oDéferred Compensation Plan were $0.5
million $0.4 million and are included in other nouarrent assets and other non-current liabilitiespectively, in our consolidated balance
sheets. For fiscal 2010, the associated liabiliti@énly include the employee contributions of $@i#lion and the Company contributions of
$34,000. For fiscal 2011, the associated liabdlitieainly include the employee contributions of $@ilion and the Company contributions of
$74,000. For fiscal 2010, included in other incothe, Company recorded a net gain of $11,000 fockiange in the cash surrender value o
Companyewned life insurance policies. For fiscal 2011 Juded in other income, the Company recorded aasst of $34,000 for the change
the cash surrender value of the Company-ownedhigierance policies.

Note 14 — Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

The following quarterly information includes alljagtments which management considers necessagyféir presentation of such
information. For interim quarterly financial statents, the provision for income taxes is estimatdgithe best available information for
projected results for the entire year. The sunheffour quarters may not agree to the year totaltduwounding within a quarter.
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Thirteen Weeks Ended

Thirteen Weeks Ended

April 3, July 3, Oct. 2, Jan 1, April 2, July 2, Oct. 1, Dec 31,
2010 2010 2010 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Consolidated Statement of Income Data:
Net sales $ 5629 $ 5318 $ 72,34¢ $ 8045( $ 86,97¢ $ 8426¢ $ 7859 $§ 77,23
Gross profit 19,801 18,397 24,001 27,39¢ 30,41¢ 28,41« 24,34t 23,82t
Income (loss) from operatiol 2,47¢ 65¢ (1,980 (2,580) 23 (2,237) (5,21¢) (8,577)
Income (loss) before income tax 2,497 687 (2,060 (2,839 (227) (2,369) (5,30¢6) (8,747)
Net income (loss $ 1547 $ 46z $ (13,039 $ (2,896 $ (245) $ (2,569 $ (5,30¢) $ (7,020)
Basic net income (loss) per share as reported djndtad $ 0.0t $ 0.0z $ 043 $ 0.10) $ 0.0 $ 0.0¢) $ 0.17) $ (0.23)
Diluted net income (loss) per share as reportedaaijastec $ 0.0t $ 0.01 $ 0.49) $ 0.10 $ 0.0 $ 0.0 $ 0.17) $ (0.29)
Shares used in computation of basic net incoms)(josr share as

reported and adjuste 30,003,11 30,314,47 30,357,98 30,402,26. 30,450,07 30,543,03 30,571,47 30,617,96
Shares used in computation of diluted net incomss{l per share as

reported and adjuste 31,425,00 31,994,44 30,357,98 30,402,26.

Note 15 — Subsequent Event

31,450,07  30,543,03

30,571,47 30,617,96

On March 23, 2012, the Company and Silicon VallenBentered into an Amendment No. 4 to Loan andii@gAgreement (the
“Fourth Amendment”) pursuant to which the Compang &ilicon Valley Bank amended that certain Load 8ecurity Agreement dated
August 13, 2010, as amended. The Fourth Amendnmeended one financial covenant to reduce the prelsicequired ratio levels for the one
guarter ending March 31, 2012 and for each fisoarigr thereafter, as defined. SBete 7 — Borrowings”for additional information.
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AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO
LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

T HiIS A MENDMENT N 0. 470 L OAN AND SECURITY A GREEMENT (this “ Amendment”) is entered into this 23rd day of March, 2012, by
and among@ILICON VALLEY BANK , a California banking corporation Bank ”), U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. , a Delaware
corporation (“USAPN”), AUTOMOTIVE SPECIALTY ACCESSORIES AND PARTS, INC. , a Delaware corporation 8SAP "), GO
FIDO, INC. , a Delaware corporation o Fido”), PARTS BIN, INC. , a Delaware corporation Parts Bin "), LOBO MARKETING ,

INC. , a Texas corporation (‘obo "), WHITNEY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP, INC. , a Delaware corporation Whitney "), PRIVATE
LABEL PARTS, INC ., a Delaware corporation Private Label "), PACIFIC 3PL, INC ., a Delaware corporation Pacific ”), AUTOMD,
INC ., a Delaware corporation AutoMD "), andLOCAL BODY SHOPS, INC ., a Delaware corporation [‘ocal Body Shops’ and with
USAPN, ASAP, Go Fido, Parts Bin, Lobo, Whitney Mate Label, Pacific, and AutoMD, each 86rrower " and collectively, the ‘Borrower
"). Capitalized terms used herein without definitishall have the same meanings given them in tae llgreement (as defined below).

R ECITALS

A. Borrower and Bank entered into that certain Loath &ecurity Agreement dated as of August 13, 204@naended by that certain
Amendment No. 1 to Loan and Security Agreementlandted Waiver dated as of February 28, 2011, asradad by that certain Amendment
No. 2 to Loan and Security Agreement and Limitediadated as of November 7, 2011, as amendedatycéntain Amendment No. 3
Loan and Security Agreement dated as of Decemhe2®dl (as amended, restated, or otherwise modifoea time to time, the Loan
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Bank agreed to extendraale available to Borrower certain advances ofegon

B. Borrower desires that Bank amend the Loan Agreemmgoi the terms and conditions more fully set fowthein.
C. Subject to the representations and warranties afoBer herein and upon the terms and condition$ostt in this Amendment, Bank
is willing to so amend the Loan Agreement.
AGREEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the foregoing Recitals arterwaling to be legally bound, the parties hereteagas follows:

1. AMENDMENT TO L OAN A GREEMENT .

1.1 Section 6.7 (Financial Covenants)Subsection (c) of Section 6.7 of the Loan Agreeinamended and restated in its entirety
as follows:



“(c) Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage Ra#loConsolidated Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio, nredsas of the last day of each fiscal
quarter, for the period set forth below of not I the ratio set forth below opposite such gerio

Period Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio
For the one quarter period ending March 31, 2 1.00:1.0C
For the one quarter period ending each fiscal gu#inereafte 1.25:1.0C

Notwithstanding the forgoing, the covenants in Béxtion 6.7 are subject to adjustment shouldrtliell Audit reveal material adverse
derivations in Borrower’s financial position as quaned to Borrower’s financial position based ominfation provided to Bank on or
before the Effective Date.”

1.2 Exhibit D (Compliance Certificate). Exhibit D to the Loan Agreement is amended asthted in its entirety and replaced w
Exhibit A hereto.

2. BORROWER ' SR EPRESENTATIONS A ND W ARRANTIES . Borrower represents and warrants that:

(a) immediately upon giving effect to this Amendmenttie representations and warranties containeloki.oan
Documents are true, accurate and complete in daénahrespects as of the date hereof (excepta@titent such representations and warranties
relate to an earlier date, in which case theyrareand correct in all material respects as of slath), and (ii) no Event of Default has occurred
and is continuing;

(b) Borrower has the corporate power and authorityezete and deliver this Amendment and to perfomoltligations
under the Loan Agreement, as amended by this Amentim

(c) the certificate of incorporation, bylaws and otheganizational documents of Borrower delivered &mBon the Effectiv
Date remain true, accurate and complete and haveeen amended, supplemented or restated and cieatinue to be in full force and
effect;

(d) the execution and delivery by Borrower of this Amerent and the performance by Borrower of its obidges under the
Loan Agreement, as amended by this Amendment, baee duly authorized by all necessary corporaieracn the part of Borrower;

(e)this Amendment has been duly executed and deliveyd®brrower and is the binding obligation of Boser, enforceabl
against it in accordance with its terms, excepgueh enforceability may be limited by bankrupteysdlvency, reorganization, liquidation,
moratorium or other similar laws of general appgima and equitable principles relating to or affiegtcreditors’ rights; and

(f) as of the date hereof, Borrower has no defenséssighe obligations to pay any amounts under thiga@tions.
Borrower acknowledges that Bank has acted in gaitd &nd



has conducted in a commercially reasonable matseglationships with Borrower in connection wittistAmendment and in connection with
the Loan Documents.

Borrower understands and acknowledges that Baehktering into this Amendment in reliance upon, emplartial consideration fc
the above representations and warranties, andsatfraesuch reliance is reasonable and appropriate.

3. L miTATION . The amendments set forth_in Sectioof this Amendment shall be limited precisely astteri and shall not be deemed
(a) to be a waiver of, or consent under, any tereoadition of any instrument or agreement, (bpéoa modification of any other term or
condition of the Loan Agreement or of any othetrmsient or agreement, (c) to prejudice any righteonedy which Bank may now have
or may have in the future under or in connectiothwhe Loan Agreement, the other Loan Documentngrother instrument or
agreement or (d) to be a consent to any future dment, modification, or waiver to any instrumenegreement. Except as expressly
amended hereby, the Loan Agreement shall contmfigliforce and effect.

4. EFFeCTIVENESS . This Amendment shall become effective upon @ dine execution and delivery of this Amendmentdgheparty
hereto and delivery of same to Bank and (ii) paynigrBorrower of an amendment fee in the amounaktpu$50,000.

5. EXPENSES. Borrower agrees to pay Bank Expenses (includingabe and expenses of Bank’s counsel, advisorsamslltants)
accrued and incurred in connection with the tratigas contemplated by this Amendment and all oBenk Expenses (including the fees and
expenses of Bank’s counsel, advisors and conssjtpayable in accordance with the Loan Agreement.

6. CouNTERPARTS . This Amendment may be signed in any number ohtarparts, and by different parties hereto in s#par
counterparts, with the same effect as if the signestto each such counterpart were upon a singfieiment. All counterparts shall be deemed
an original of this Amendment.

7. I NTEGRATION . This Amendment and any documents executed inexdiom herewith or pursuant hereto contain theremtgreement
between the parties with respect to the subjectamhéereof and supersede all prior agreements rsitagelings, offers and negotiations, oral or
written, with respect thereto and no extrinsic evice whatsoever may be introduced in any judicialrbitration proceeding, if any, involving
this Amendment; except that any financing statemenbther agreements or instruments filed by Baitk respect to Borrower shall remain
full force and effect.

8. GOVERNING L Aw ; V ENUE . THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND SHALL BE COISTRUED AND
ENFORCED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATEROCALIFORNIA. Borrower and Bank each submit to thelusive
jurisdiction of the State and Federal courts int&a&liara County, Californiz

[signature page follows



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAmendment to be executed as of the dateiristen above.

BORROWER:
U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC

By /s/ Shane Evangeli
Name: Shane Evangelit
Title:  Chief Executive Office

PARTS BIN, INC.

By /s/ Shane Evangeli
Name: Shane Evangeli
Title: Presiden

LOBO MARKETING, INC.

By /s/ Brian Hafel
Name: Brian Hafer
Title: Presiden

AUTOMOTIVE SPECIALTY ACCESSORIES ANIL
PARTS, INC.

By /s/ David Spangle
Name: David Spangle
Title:  Presiden

GO FIDO, INC.

By /sl Michael Bucs
Name: Michael Bucs
Title: Presiden

WHITNEY AUTOMOTIVE GROUP, INC.

By /s] Tony Savast
Name: Tony Savasti
Title:  Presiden

PRIVATE LABEL PARTS, INC.

By /s/ Shannon Loga
Name: Shannon Loga
Title:  Secretary

-Signature Page-
Amendment No. 4 to
Loan and Security Agreeme



PACIFIC 3PL, INC.

By /sl Rick Ellis

Name: Rick Ellis
Title: Presiden

AUTOMD, INC.

By /s/ Anton Reu

Name: Anton Reul
Title: Presiden

LOCAL BODY SHOPS, INC

By /s/ David Hernande

Name: David Hernande
Title: Presiden

-Signature Page-
Amendment No. 4 to
Loan and Security Agreeme



BANK:
SILICON VALLEY BANK

By /sl Jack Garz

Name: Jack Garzi
Title:  Relationship Manage

-Signature Page-
Amendment No. 4 to
Loan and Security Agreeme



EXHIBIT D
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

TO: SILICON VALLEY BANK Date:
FROM: U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC

The undersigned authorized officerldfS. Auto P ARTs N ETWORK , | NC. (* Administrative Borrower”) certifies that under the terms and
conditions of the Loan and Security Agreement betw&dministrative Borrower\ UTOMOTIVE SPECIALTY A CCESSORIES ANDP ARTS, | NC .
(“ ASAP"), G oF Do, INC. (* Go Fido”), PARTSB IN, I NC. (* Parts Bin”), L oBOM ARKETING , I NC. (“ Lob0"), W HITNEY A
UTOMOTIVE G ROUP, | NC. (* Whitney”) , PRIVATE L ABEL P ARTS, I NC . (“ Private Label”) , P aciFic 3PL, | nc. (* Pacific”), A uto MD, |
NC . (* AutoMD”) andL ocaL B oby SHops, | NC. (* Local Body Shop$, and with Administrative Borrower, ASAP, Go Fidearts Bin
Lobo, Whitney, Private Label, Pacific and AutoMch a “Borrower” and collectively, the ‘Borrower”) and Bank (the “Agreement’):

(1) Each Borrower is in complete compliance for pleeiod ending with all requiredet@nts except as noted below;

(2) there are no Events of Default, except as nbe&tow; (3) all representations and warrantieh@Agreement are true and correct in all
material respects on this date except as noteavbelovided, however, that such materiality qualifshall not be applicable to any
representations and warranties that already arn#figdaor modified by materiality in the text there and provided, further that those
representations and warranties expressly refetoiregspecific date shall be true, accurate and &t all material respects as of such date;
(4) Each Borrower, and each of its Subsidiariesehanely filed, or have obtained extensions ftingj, all required tax returns and reports, and
each Borrower has timely paid all foreign, fedes#hte and local taxes, assessments, depositoatribations owed by each Borrower except
as otherwise permitted pursuant to the terms ofi@eb.8 of the Agreement; and (5) no Liens havernblevied or claims made against any
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries relating to aitbemployee payroll or benefits of which Borroviass not previously provided written
notification to Bank.

Attached are the required documents supportingéhiication. The undersigned certifies that thase prepared in accordance with GAAP
consistently applied from one period to the nextegt as explained in an accompanying letter omfmtets. The undersigned acknowledges that
no borrowings may be requested at any time or afadetermination that Borrower is not in compliawgéh any of the terms of the Agreeme
and that compliance is determined not just at #te this certificate is delivered. Capitalized temased but not otherwise defined herein shall
have the meanings given them in the Agreement.

Please indicate compliance status by circling YestN\under “Complies” column.

Reporting Covenant Required Complies
Quarterly consolidated and consolidating finanstatement: Quarterly within 45 days (first thre Yes No
with Compliance Certificate; A/IR & A/P Aging quarters of fiscal yea
Annual consolidated and consolidating financial FYE within 90 days Yes No
statements (CPA Audited) + C
10-Q, 1(-K and &K Within 5 days after filing with SE( Yes No
Board approved financial projections Not later than January 30 of ee Yes No

calendar yea

The following Intellectual Property was registe(ed a registration application submitted) after Efeective Date (if no registrations, state
@ NOﬂE”)




Financial Covenant Required

Maintain on eQuarterly Basis:
Maximum Funded Debt to TTM Consolidated EBITC

Effective Date through October 1, 20 2.25:1.0(
January 1, 2011 through July 2, 2( 2.00:1.0¢
October 1, 2011 through July 1, 2C 1.50:1.0(
Thereaftel 1.00:1.0¢
Liquidity $7,500,001

Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage Rz
One quarter period ending March 31, 2 1.00:1.0(
1.25:1.0(

One quarter period ending each fiscal quarter #ite

Actual Complies

_ .0 Yes
_ .o Yes
_ .0 Yes

$ Yes
_ .o Yes
_ Lo

No

No
No

No

No

The following financial covenant analysJis][es] anfbrmation set forth in Schedule 1 attached feeage true and accurate as of the date

of this Certificate.

The following are the exceptions with respect ® ¢krtification above: (If no exceptions existista&No exceptions to note.”)

ADMINISTRATIVE BORROWER: BANK USE ONLY
U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. Received by
AUTHORIZED SIGNEF

Date:

By:

Name Verified:

Title: AUTHORIZED SIGNEF
Date:

Compliance Status:

Yes



Schedule 1 to Compliance Certificate

Financial Covenants of Borrower
In the event of a conflict between this Schedule e Loan Agreement, the terms of the Loan Agregrsieall govern.

Dated:
l. Maximum Funded Debt to Consolidated EBITDA(Section 6.7(a)

Required: See chart below

Period Maximum Funded Debt to EBITDA

Effective Date through October 1, 20 2.25:1.0C
January 1, 2011 through July 2, 2( 2.0:1.00
October 1, 2011 through July 1, 2C 1.5:1.00

Thereaftel 1.0:1.00
Actual:
A.

1. Advances outstandi

2. Amount of Term Loan outstandi

3. Credit Extensions outstanding (lind Alus line A.2)

B. Net Income
To the extent included in the determination of Mebme
Depreciation expen
Amortization expen:
Income tax expen
Stoc-based compensatic

Impairment of intangible ass

o g b~ w N PRE

Restructuring costs and transacties nd expenses related to Whitney Stock Purcbake extent paid in tt
fiscal quarters ending January 1, 2011, April 2.2Quly 2, 2011 or October 1, 20

@ BH H B

&h BH PH BH B



7. The sum of lines 1 throug|!

D. Consolidated Interest Expen

E. Consolidated EBITDA (line B plus line C.7 plus libg

F.  Maximum Funded Debt to Consolidated Adjusted EBIT{iAe A.3 divided by line E

Is line F equal to or less than 1.

No, not in complianc

II.  Liquidity (Section 6.7(b)

Required: $7,500,0

Actual:

A. Unrestricted cash and Cash Equivale
B. Advances outstandir

C. Liquidity (line A minus line B)

Is line C equal to or greater than $7,500,0

No, not in complianc

[ll. Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage Rati(Section 6.7(c)

Required: See chart belc
Period

For the one quarter period ending March 31, 2

For the one quarter period ending each fiscal quart

thereaftel

Actual:

A. Net Income

B. To the extent included in the determination of Mebme

1. Depreciation expen

2. Amortization expen:

Yes, in complian

Yes, in complian

Fixed Charge Coverage Ratic
1.00:1.0C

1.25:1.0C




3. Income tax expen

4, Stoc-based compensatic

5. Impairment of intangible ass

6. Restructuring costs and transacties fnd expenses related to Whitney Stock Purchake extent paid in the
fiscal quarters ending January 1, 2011, April 22Quly 2, 2011 or October 1, 20

7. Integration capital expenditures rsdiatio the Whitney Stock Purchase to the extent ipaide fiscal quarter
ending January 1, 2011, April 2, 2011, July 2, 264 Dctober 1, 201

8. The sum of lines 1 throug|

Consolidated Interest Expen
Consolidated EBITDA (line A plus line B.8 plus li®

Taxes based on income actually paid in cash (ekajudcome tax refunds received in cash during qesfiod as a result
of an ove-payment of taxes actually paid in such peri

Consolidated Capital Expenditur

1. Consolidated Interest Expe

2. Payments made on account of prin@pabdebtedness of Borrower and its Subsidiariesl(iding principal
payments in respect of the Term Lo

3. Cash dividends, distributions, repasgs and redemptions in respect of stock of Adinatige Borrowel
Consolidated Fixed Charges (line G.1 plus G.2 QB
Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio ((lineibusiline E minus line F) divided by line |

Is line | equal to or greater than :1.00?

No, not in complianc Yes, in complianci

&hH BH BH PH

&

©h BH BH P



EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Name

PartsBin, Inc

Power Host, Inc.(1

U.S. Auto Parts Network (Philippines) Corporat
Lobo Marketing, Inc

Go Fido, Inc.

Private Label Parts, In

Pacific 3PL, Inc

AutoMD, Inc.

Local Body Shops, Inc

Automotive Specialty Accessories and Parts, Ing
Whitney Automotive Group, Inc. (¢

Value Solutions, Inc. (&

(1) Subsidiary of PartsBin, Ini
(2) Subsidiary of Go Fido, Inc

Jurisdiction DBA

Delaware

Ontario, Canad

Philippines

Texas

Delaware

Delaware Kool-Vue
Delaware

Delaware

Delaware Perfect Fit
Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

(3) Subsidiary of Automotive Specialty Accessories Biadtts, Inc. Value Solutions, Inc. was dissolved0d1.



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statement Nos. 333-143179, 333-149973;1&8224, 333-165493 and 333-
173851 on Form S-8 and Registration Statement 8R%-.163811 and 333-173856 on Form S-3/A of ourmspmtated March 26, 2012, relating
to the financial statements of U.S. Auto Parts MekyInc. and subsidiaries, and the effectivenéd$.8. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and

subsidiaries internal control over financial repayt appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10fKJd&5. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and
subsidiaries for the period ended December 31,.2011

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Los Angeles, CA
March 26, 2012



EXHIBIT 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdllewing Registration Statements:
(1) Registration Statement (Forn-8 33:-143179) pertaining to the 2007 Omnibus IncentivanRiInd the 2006 Equity Incentive Plar

U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 333-149978ppeng to 2007 New Employee Incentive Plan aredl2807 Omnibus Incentive
Plan of U.S. Auto Parts Network, In

(3) Registration Statement (Forn-8 333-158224) pertaining to the 2007 Omnibus IncentivenRif U.S. Auto Parts Network, In

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-3/A 3B33811) pertaining to the Prospectus of U.S. Aad$Network, Inc. for the registration
2,500,000 shares of its common stock,

(5) Registration Statement (Forn-3/A 332-173856) pertaining to the Prospectus of U.S. Aad$Network, Inc. for the registration
up to $200,000,000 of its common sto

of our report dated March 12, 2010, with respe¢h&oconsolidated statements of operations, stddkhsd equity and cash flows of U.S. Auto
Parts Network, Inc. included in this Annual Rep@trm 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2011.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLF

Los Angeles, California
March 26, 2012



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT
RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Shane Evangelist, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fK.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financéarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision to provide reasonable assuranagday the reliability of financial reporting anltket preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles; and

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyabm® that has materially affected, or is reasopdikély
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal trmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEthe registrant’s Board of Directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfgaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 26, 2012

/sl SHANE EVANGELIST
Shane Evangelit

Chief Executive Office
(principal executive officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT
RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David Robson, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fK.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financéarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision to provide reasonable assuranagday the reliability of financial reporting anltket preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles; and

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proes) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyabm® that has materially affected, or is reasopdikély
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal trmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEthe registrant’s Board of Directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfgaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a simiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 26, 2012

/s/ DAVID ROBSON
David Robsor

Chief Financial Office
(principal financial officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of U.S. Autarf3 Network, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fbe fiscal year ended December 31,
2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Shemangelist, Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1280adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@rles- Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 26, 2012

/sl SHANE EVANGELIST
Shane Evangelis
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of U.S. Autarf3 Network, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fbe fiscal year ended December 31,
2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, DaRidbson, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350,dagpted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@deof 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdititon and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 26, 2012

/s/ DAVID ROBSON
David Robsor
Chief Financial Office




